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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowleage and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statermnent herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March

Revenue

Gross profit

Loss before income tax

Loss attributable to the owners of
the Company

Basic loss per Share (HK cents)

Dividend per Share (HK cents)

Yo s

EH

BR BT {575 B &S 18
ARrE)EB ANEAEE
BREXREE M)

BRERE (BMU)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Total assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to the owners of
the Company

mEE
AehREEHED
BaE

ARARHRE NEEER

BE=ZA=1—HIFE

Changes

0.4%
197.4%
8.5%

11.3%
-11.9%
N/A A5

R & B BRI
R=ZA=+—4H

Changes

14.2%
104.9%
4.7%

116.0%

2016

S
HK$’000
FAT

370,939
68,651
(49,218)

(46,443)
(1.18)
N/A 738 3

2016
—g-xE
HK$’000
FAT

418,840
127,377
414,209

4,631

2015
“E-—RF
HK$ 000
FET

369,635
23,082
(45,352)

(41,723)
(1.34)
N/A 1~ i

2015
—E—hF
HK$'000
FET

366,612
62,166

395,578

(28,966)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHEE

RATIOS b=
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
2016 2015

—EB-XRE —FT—hF
Return on equity (Note a) BBl (fita) -1,002.9% N/AZ 38
Return on assets (Note b) BER (Aatb) -11.1% -11.4%
Current ratio (Note c) BN (KfiFe ) 2.13 times{Z 1.66 timesfZ
Gearing ratio (Note d) BEEARBLE (Mitd) 62.5% 70.1%
Notes: HaE -
(@ Return on equity is calculated as net loss divided by Shareholders’ equity. (@) #EmEIFR i FBER AR RERTE
(b) Return on assets is calculated as net loss divided by total assets. (o) BERMINZFEBRINBEETE-
()  Current ratio is calculated as total current assets divided by total current  (¢) mEILLEIRRBE ELTERARE B EETE

liabilities. Ho

(d)  Gearing ratio is calculated as total amount of bank overdraft, promissory ~ (d) ZEEBBLEDNIZBITES AL EE AIREE

note, convertible notes, finance lease payables and advance received
from customers divided by total assets.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
2 5 @

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of waterworks
engineering services for the public sector in Hong Kong, television
broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the
PRC) in return for advertising and related revenue and large outdoor
display screen advertisement in the PRC.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2010 and the Shares were listed on GEM on
30 August 2010.

Currently, the Group’s television broadcasting business is mainly
carried out through Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific and its subsidiaries. The
Group’s large outdoor display screen advertisement business is
mainly carried out through Shenzhen Qianhai Xinhua TV Cultural
Development Limited* OFIIBI/EFEERLBERERAA) .

The Group’s business of provision of waterworks engineering
services for the public sector is carried out through TYW and
TY Civil respectively with TYW responsible for signing and
implementing civil engineering contracts as a main contractor and
forming joint operations while TY Civil responsible for signing and
implementing civil engineering contracts as a subcontractor.

* for identification purpose only

AEE TR AF B REBFIRHKTE TR -
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Etr e

B AEEZERBEREHIELHEER
TFREREWBRARET  REBZKREF I
BRARESRBRAZELRIIBEMEERX
LERBRABET

AEBID R EBERKEREXRLIARRE
PR TRREEH EXRKBEAEMN
THAEBINUARKIGEERRI RETL
ARIREH MEXTARMNBEASBEHSN
BRI MBEITEARIREL-
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CORPORATE PROFILE
2 B o

REGISTRATIONS HELD FOR UNDERTAKING

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has obtained the following registrations from Works
Branch Development Bureau (2% & /@ T##}) of the Government

for undertaking projects as a main contractor:

Registration

R

RREBIEXRBFE2EM

AEBEARFERERTERIE TRM
PR EARERELR:

Value of project which the Group is eligible to undertake
under the relevant registration

REEBEMAEESEREAKE IR ZEE

Approved Contractors for Public Works
— Waterworks Category (Group C)
(probationary status)

RAI A TR AR — /KB IIRER
(R (ARl &%)

Approved Contractors for Public Works
— Roads and Drainage Category (Group B)
(confirmed status)

RAINH TR — B MRBITEER
(2#8) ([&wRl 5)

Approved Contractors for Public Works
— Site Formation Category (Group B)
(probationary status)
RAAHTEARE R TEIRRER
(z#) (I#RRl1 &%)

A maximum of two contracts exceeding HK$185 million each in
any one category, provided that the total value of works in any
one category does not exceed HK$500 million

&% RER—ER R 7 W IE & 8 8185,000,0008 TR & 4
HEAE AT — {28 51 ) T A2 48 (B {5 T 8 38500,000,00078 7T

Current contract value up to HK$185 million

& #935 (B A& = 1¥185,000,000/%8 7T

Current contract value up to HK$185 million

& #935 (B & = 1¥185,000,000/%8 7T

Also, the Group has registered under the Voluntary Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (3ES& HIME S BB M HIE) , which is
maintained by the Construction Industry Council (i %% &) ,
for participating in civil engineering works, road works and drainage

services and waterworks engineering services as a sub-contractor.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY AT BEEE

The following diagram illustrates the corporate structure of the
Company as at 31 March 2016:

The Company
(Cayman Islands)
Investment holding, provision of management
services and television broadcasting business

ADE
(F8#8)
BRER - RUEERER
BREWER
100%
Shenzhen Qianhai
Succeed Capital Xinhua TV Cultural
TYW (BVI) Limited Profit Station Limited Limited Axis Concept Limited Core Galaxy Limited Development Limited’|
Bv) Bv) Bv) BV) BVI) (PRC)
Investment holding Investment holding Investment holding Investment holding Investment holding Advertising business
i Succeed Capital FYIREHEER
XEBRRERAT
(F5)
100% ‘ 100%
100% 100% ‘ ‘
TY Civil .
China Cultural . .
Yw (Hong Kong) Heritage Research Xinhua TV o Xinhua Outdoor International Capital
Holding of motor N . Karaoke Limited N Market Research
(Hong Kong) vehicles, provision Development Asia-Pacific (Hong Kong) Display Network Center Limited
Provision of waterworks o Wate;\NZrk% ol Center Limited (Hong Kong) Provgi;s\on ff Broadcast Limited (Hong Kong)
nd laying of water pipes N (Hong Kong) Television broadcasting ) (Hong Kong) 9 9
o laying of water pipes Inactive business management services Inactive Inactive
3 £ AF HR 2 g
RELK PEALBEHR FHERAT FERRBEERAT ERAKTS
BRALERAT ) TRBOBRAT
u ?Hz%</‘é

100%

Xinhua TV
Hong Kong Operating
Co., Limited
(Hong Kong)
Television

broadcasting business
HEBRBEE
EERRAR

*for identification purpose only

I FEBRERERAT 7

2015/2016 £ =&



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AT EH

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hao (Chairman)

Mr. Zou Chen Dong (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John

Dr. Lee Yuk Lun, JP (resigned on 13 July 2015)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Li Yong Sheng

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zou Chen Dong
Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yuet Tai, CPA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (Chairman)

Dr. Li Yong Sheng

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao
Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Jin Hai Tao (Chairman)

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Hao (Chairman)

Mr. Zou Chen Dong

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Jin Hai Tao
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

FMEES

SEEEE(XE)
HEHEE 2 LHES K FHL
(R=ZF—AFAA+/\HEZE)
FERILE  HLHES X FH+
FRFEEE

EREGRSE (RZFE—LFAHT/NVAEFFHE)

REZES

SREFEE (F/E)

RN £

ERREE 2 LHEE AP+
(RZF—AFAAT/NHEZF)
FEREE  HEHES X Fait

GBI E

FRERRE

GEREE (RZF—AFAH1T/NVHEFE)

BEREEEZES

TRk BE e LHES A TFwt (EE)
HEELE

FThR¥ELESE

ZEED

BEEtEEAERA R
CVCE ES-Fia]

T HER
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 2708-10, 27/F.,
Dah Sing Financial Centre,
108 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.cnctv.hk

STOCK CODE

8356
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Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman
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DEFINITIONS
Z =

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following 7RI ERA - b X S HAES T 57852 5% 7]
words and expressions shall have the following meanings when — Z (& AH X T 5 -

used herein:

“AGM”
[ARBEFAE

“Board”
[EEg]

“BVI”
[RBERES ]

“China Xinhua NNC”

(B EHEERE]

“CNC China”

[ BT 2E 5 E B AR A
(FRE)

“Company”

B N/NT

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Financial Statements”

[ 75 ¥R K

the annual general meeting of the Company

ARARRBERE

the board of Directors

E=g

the British Virgin Islands
REBRZES

China Xinhua News Network Co., Limited (FEFEHHESRBER QA , a
company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xinhua News
Agency (#7Z4t ) and a Shareholder of the Company
PEHERREREERDG] —KREBBTMA L AR R R EML 2 2 EM
BAR WRARBIKRER

P EFEFEEBIRB AR A A, a company incorporated in the PRC, which owns
100% of the equity interests in China Xinhua NNC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xinhua News Agency and a substantial Shareholder of the Company
REEFEERMEAERAR — KRR AWMLz AR AT BEFENE
BRAEI00%KRE  RFEG 2 EMBRATRARGBZEERE

CNC Holdings Limited ( # BIFTE ERITAR B R A ) , a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 15 March 2010
HFBFTESEERERAR — ZR T —FF=AThBERSESTML
ZBRAT]

director(s) of the Company

ZAN/NET: ==

the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016

AEFBEE T ARF-A=1T BUEFEZREZMBEHRR
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DEFINITIONS
Z =

“GEM”
FIEE

“GEM Listing Rules”
[BI %Mk Em#R Al

“Government”

[ R |

“Group”
[REE ]

“HK$” and “HK cent(s)”
7] R 7L

“Hong Kong”
(&

“Macau”

R

“Mr. Chia”
[Eigea

“Mr. Kan”
[ 5T 4 ]

“PRC”
[ B

the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
Bt <2 By Bl S AR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM

BIRIRFE S LM RA

the Government of Hong Kong

EBBA

the Company and its subsidiaries
Apal REWB AT

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEATE BB T MBI

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFNITHE

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H BRI R TT R

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John (#iZ%F) , an executive Director
WITESFH =L E

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung ( f& B ) , an executive Director
MITESHEELEE

the People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
hEARANE TEEEE RFIKAE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as

amended or otherwise modified from time to time
BEEPIEST1EFZF RBEGH (LTRHEE] sk A A5 R i&2k)

12 CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



“Share(s)”
[ |

“Share Option Scheme”
[ At 2l

“Shareholder(s)”
[ R |

“Shunleetat”

[ Shunleetat |

“Stock Exchange”

56 52 FfT

“TY Civil”

[EXRLTK]

“TYW’

[ K

“WSD”

[7k#5E |

“Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific”

[FrEERTAE]

oy
[% |

ordinary share(s) of the Company
KRR EBK

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 11 August 2010
ARBRZE—ZEFN\A+T—BARAZBERESTE

holder(s) of the Share(s)
ELESESIN

Shunleetat (BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI which is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Kan

Shunleetat (BVI) Limited * —X N RBRABHSEMK L NG HELTELEE
wmHEE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMAERSMAR AT

Tsun Yip Civil Construction Company Limited (2 AR Ti2ERAE]) , a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 16 June 2000 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EEITATIRERAR] — KR _ZEZEZFAAATABEEBIMKIZERA
A DARREZAEE2ENB AT

Tsun Yip Waterworks Construction Company Limited (3 3 /KFEEEGR A F)) , a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 6 February 1996 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

EEKBREEBERAR —XR—ANARF_ANBEESTIMKZZEBRA
a DARRIZzHEZENE AR

Water Supplies Department of the Government (7K )
BT KT E

Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific Operating Co., Limited (IZEEZ Rz K S EZS AR AR, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 22 December 2009 and
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MESEDABEBEEARAR — XN _EFNF+-_A -+ -_BEEBZMK
NZBRAR DARRZHEEEZEENBAA

per cent
B
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHBESE

To all Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

During the year ended 31 March 2016, we had obtained
approximately HK$370.9 million revenue, which represented an
increase of approximately 0.4% over the revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2015 (2015: HK$369.6 million).

The gross profit increased by approximately 197.4% from
approximately HK$23.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2015
to approximately HK$68.7 million for the year ended 31 March
2016.

The net loss of our Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK$46.4 million, representing approximately 11.3%
increase from that of previous year (2015: HK$41.7 million).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to operate the core
businesses and at the same time to seek suitable investment
opportunities from time to time to develop its existing business
portfolio and engage in new line of business with growth potential.
During the year, revenue derived from provision of waterworks
engineering services remained the main contributor of revenue of
the Group while the Group devoted efforts to develop its other core
businesses.

Despite the fierce competition in the construction industry in Hong
Kong, the Group possesses its business strengths and competitive
advantage, including proven track record in construction industry,
good reputation and well-established presence in foundation,
established operating history and numerous licences, permits and
qualifications, which enable the Group to grow and enhance the
profitability of the Group. In addition, the Group will continue to
seek to develop other projects in due time, and strive to become
a leading position in Hong Kong and will progress forward in
a sustainable manner. In view of the above, we expected that
the business and revenue will continue to grow steadily in the
foreseeable future.

14 CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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Nowadays, the traditional media is facing intensifying competition
from online and digital alternatives worldwide. Due to accelerated
changes in advertising business, the Group has actively responded
to the market trend and started strategic cooperation, co-
development and sharing of resources with other media service
providers at the same time to boost up sales capacity and
resources matching within the industry. Backup with the brand
name of Xinhua News Agency, we believe that the Group can
generate satisfactory return to the Company and its Shareholders
as a whole in the long run. Together with our most important asset,
our loyal and established team, the Group is well positioned to seize
every opportunity in the years to come.

The Group will pursue diversification in its businesses and income
streams by exploring opportunities with prospects which could
complement or create potential synergies to its existing core
operations. Besides, the Group will give due consideration on
evaluating new investment opportunities and exploring new
business opportunities in terms of their overall long-term efficiency
in order to maximize profit and return for the Group.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my most sincere appreciation to all the management team
and staff for their dedication and contribution over the past years. |
would also like to thank all the Shareholders, customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continuous support and trust.

Zhang Hao
Chairman

15 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CE R E R SR

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of waterworks
engineering services for the public sector in Hong Kong, television
broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the
PRC) in return for advertising and related revenue and large outdoor
display screen advertisement business in the PRC. During the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Group continued to focus on rendering
waterworks engineering services to the public sector in Hong Kong
and further develop its television broadcasting business in the Asia-
Pacific region (excluding the PRC) and large outdoor display screen
advertisement business in the PRC.

Provision of waterworks engineering services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has been
undertaking three main contracts and seven subcontracts. Among
the ten contracts, four are related to provision of waterworks
engineering services and the remaining contracts are related to
provision of drainage and site formation services. Details of the
contracts undertaken are set out below:

X o

AEBFEAEB QAL IPIRENRS TRRA -
REEKE (TEIEFE)EITERERER AR
SESREBWEARRPRHETRKEFINGE
TRESEK -BE-_T—XF=A=+—H
EFE AEBEEEITRNER B AR EIM
REKBIERG TE—FPHEERGARE
(TBEPR) 2ERBRESLFBEZ KRS
INETRESEK-

RHKBEIRRY

BE_ZT—RE=ZA=+—HBLFE *5E
—HET=BRIGHRLtESBEH K&t
AT ERmREEHKE TR -
HEra AR IR ORI M B S ERF A RE
PR ZFBRIIMT

Contract period
Contract number Particulars of contract Client under main contracts
BNESR ERFE EF BEXEANEHNEH
Main contracts
TEH
8/WSD/11 Construction of Pak Shek Kok Fresh Water  WSD Dec 2011 - May 2014
Service Reservoir Extension
HABRKEKEMERLRE KBZE “E——F+ZR%
“Z-HNFRA
3/WSD/13 Mainlying near She Shan Tsuen, Tai Po WSD Sept 2013 - Jul 2016
ABELHIEERATE KB “T-ZFAAZ
“E-EEA
DC/2013/09 Advance Works for Shek Wu Hui Sewage ~ Drainage Services July 2015 - Aug 2017
Treatment Works - Further Expansion Department of
Phase 1A and Sewerage Works at Ping the Government
Che Road
RS KEERABIEE—PRE BRCRGE “E-1FtAHE
FIAR T ERMTKETLR —Z2—+E)N\A
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Contract period

Contract number Particulars of contract Client under main contracts
B BHFE EF BEXEANEHNH
Subcontracts
2884
8/WSD/10 Replacement and rehabilitation of Hsin Chong Apr 2011 - Dec 2015
water mains, stage 4 phase 1 Construction
—mains in Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, Company Limited
North District and Tai Po
FHREEEKEIRSMBREIN-T HELERBRLA —T——4F0AZ
P 7oBA b RAFKE T2 s
DC/2012/04 Sewerage in Kau Lung Hang San Wai, Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Jun 2012 - Dec 2017
Kau Lung Hang Lo Wai and Tai Hang Joint Venture
NERHE NERZERET AKRE MEEXKE St NG ES
S “E—tFTZA
DC/2012/07 Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Oct 2012 - Jul 2016
- village sewerage, stage 2, phase 1 Joint Venture Total contract value
MRATTK IR 25t — B2k R 15 MEERHE “E-_FtHE HKS2.035.2 mi
—E AEL ,035.2 million
BENERE
DC/2012/08 Lam Tsuen Valley Sewerage Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Oct 2012 - Aug 2016 2,035,200,00078 72
- village sewerage, stage 2, phase 2 Joint Venture Total amount of
M AREKNE R 5 — FE2RE R E28 MEERHE —ZT-—Ft+fR% o
—E— &N\ A works certified
(Note)
5/WSD/13 Replacement and rehabilitation of Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Nov 2013 - May 2016 E;Eg 280 S
n 0 A i I E%E
water mains, stage 4 phase 1 and Joint Venture (H)
stage 4 phase 2 - malmslm northern 1,281,900, 0003 7
and eastern New Territories
FARBEKEIRFAERE1AREL HEERHE I B K
BREH - AL BRI KELR N
CV/2015/03 Site Formation and Infrastructural Works Hsin Chong Tsun Yip ~ Nov 2015 - May 2019
near Tong Hang Road and Tsz Tin Road Joint Venture
in Area 54, Tuen Mun
AETEPIARETRREAROMETE NEEXHE “E-0Ft—AZ
RERSDEIRE —Z-NFLA
810B West Kowloon Terminus Station South, Laing O'Rourke —Hsin  Jun 2015 - Oct 2015

Note: Amount of works certified is based on the certificates of payment

Contract 810B

7L eyt (/) + 5498108

received from client.

Chong - Paul Y
Joint Venture

Laing O’Rourke—
Hsin Chong—Paul
Y Joint Venture

“Z2-RE/ PZE
—“E-h%F+A

TBIE °

Wit BEEEIEDHEIREES PRI N HEE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CE R E R SR

Among the above ten contracts, a main contract (contract
numbered DC/2013/09) and two subcontracts (contract numbered
810B and CV/2015/03) were newly awarded during the year ended
31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the two contracts with
contracts numbered 5/WSD/13 and DC/2012/07 were the
main contributors to the Group’s revenue, which generated
approximately HK$166.7 million and approximately HK$43.2
million, constituting approximately 44.9% and approximately
11.6% of the Group's total revenue respectively.

Television broadcasting business

The Group has developed a broadcasting network of television
channels with relatively extensive scale. Currently, it is broadcasting
the television programmes relating to information contents from
China Xinhua News Network Channel and China Xinhua News
Network World Channel (collectively the “CNC Channels”) in the
Asia-Pacific region (excluding the PRC). In order to boost up this
business segment, the Group aimed to co-operate with strategic
partners pursuant to which the Group would jointly organize
functions and activities with the strategic partners and provide
airtime slot of the CNC Channels to the strategic partners in return
for sharing of advertising revenue. Also, during the year, the Group
had successfully entered into an advertising agency agreement
pursuant to which the Group granted 50% advertising time slot
to the advertisement agent exclusively for a minimum guarantee
of RMB10.0 million per year for a term of three years. The Group
believes that the new co-operation arrangement would increase the
utilization of airtime slot of the CNC Channels as well as minimize
the costs and risks for organizing different activities and functions.
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EFRTIEEHOF —BEEHN(EHHE:
DC/2013/09) K MIEH B & 4 (& KR 5
810BX&CV/2015/03) iR EE T — R F=H
= t+—RIEFEHEN-

BHE T R"E=A=1+—BHIEE A6k
8% A5/WSD/13%DC/2012/07 2 R IA A #) = AN
£B8 2 EEZWERIR - 9 BIEE &£ 49166,700,000
7 7T K #943,200,00058 7T © 1h AN E B B ZF L
44.9% K& 4911.6% °

ERBHRE

AEEDEHRE —(ARERANERIBEFERE
o R AKRBERTEARE (TREFR)EF
MEBREFBEFMESHEFINAERPRNES
BREES (FHB[ZECNCHEE]WEMAR
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REEBHEE B AEBBREE B R
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BRI — B EERERE  Hit - AEEN
RIEREEEF AR10,000,0007T M % EE
REBRELS0NESEREE  BEI=F K
@B FEETHBRAZECNCIHER
FBRF B 8 M) AR 2 - 3 Rk K 4B A5 TEDE B A KR
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During the year, two feature programmes of the Company,
namely “ICAC” and “Macau Macau”, have been awarded the
Best Documentary (& E428kH #2) and Jury Recommendations

(FIZ&%RIHESE) respectively at the Gold Aries Award
Macau International Film Festival 2016 (2016 & 3 4385 EIER
BE/F1) which was held in Macau. Gold Aries Award Macau
International Film Festival is organised by Macau International
Film & Multicultural Development Promotion Association and
coorganised by Beijing Film Academy and is cooperating with
numerous international internet enterprises. The Awards affirmed
the production quality and success of feature programmes of the
Company. The Group will continue to produce information contents
according to different social themes.

Large outdoor display screen advertisement business

Due to keen competition in the PRC market, the development
pace of large outdoor display screen advertisement business is
stagnant. The Group also faces certain uncertainties and risks
in operating this business segment. Although the Group aimed
to consolidate the existing LED displays and build more LED
displays in suitable regions, the progress is still very slow due
to resistance from different regulations in different provinces.
Currently, the Group has made continuous efforts to improve the
operational efficiency by implementing cost control initiatives and
co-operating with strategic partners in order to reduce the risks in
running this business. Going forward, the Group will remain prudent
yet responsive to changing market conditions and execute on
market opportunities for any development in order to sustain the
profitability improvement in the long run.

The Group is dedicated to creating ample value by various means
to its Shareholders. Instead of focusing on short-term catalysts,
the Group concentrates on reinforcing its competitive advantages
for the delivery of long-term sustainable value. Looking into
the future, the Group will continue to explore related industries
through strategic cooperation, investment and acquisition while
consolidating the existing businesses, to increase the revenue of
the Group and maintain a steady growth.

TR ARFREE M LER (RBRAE) &
CRFPRFT) PORPIERM 220168 F EERPIE
REXEHPORRERELEN BRTZ SR
PR ¢ FERFIEREZH R
REFEZTXLERRES IR IEREY
Bl WERZEREBBERSE -%F
REE-—TEETARBBTERIFMABZER
BRI - REE RS EER BT RL S T EEUE
BEAR -

REFHMETRRESES

EEBNERSRER TR - REBRKE I
By RS RE RS T AR ERER &
EAREBEEEAEBLEDR TR NGB
2R E Z LEDBRF - HE AR A 0 #) A [F
MEFMR ERNIFETEEE -RE AREDHN
WS ) BRERK A ERRESEE
MR WHRRHEH S FARELERETZ
R REARK  AEBEDHEEREHZEN™
S EECAERRNHEREARRERTE
I8 £

AEBREBBEETERBREELEEE-
AEBEEFTRAFFEBURERENF
BEE SNARIEHEERT ZELH R
BRI AEBEEEIRIRNE X2 R - #E
BEREEIE  RERBBRRABMITE B
AL E 2 Wasd R EIg &K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CE R E R SR

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group reported a revenue
of approximately HK$370.9 million (2015: approximately HK$369.6
million), representing an increase of approximately 0.4% as
compared with that for the previous year. The revenue derived
from provision of waterworks engineering services and television
broadcasting business as well as large outdoor display screen
advertisement business constituted approximately 97.3% and
approximately 2.7% of the Group’s total revenue respectively.
The increase in revenue was mainly due to large portion of
revenue derived from and recognised at the early stage of certain
waterworks engineering projects in the current year. For the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Group derived aggregate advertising
revenue of approximately HK$9.9 million (2015: approximately
HK$10.9 million) from television broadcasting business and large
outdoor display screen advertisement business.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the revenue of the Group
was primarily generated from the undertaking of waterworks

Bt %5 12 R

iy

BHE-_T—
#7370,900,0008 7 (—ZE—RHF: 4
PR I N 490.4% © HR 4

15 W

369,600,0005# 7T, )

NE=ZA=+—HBIFE ~&H

KT T2 RS R AR FE IR 75 LAl K BY = Hh g
TRESEBEA ZWaD Mh RSB B KR
#997.3% K #92.7% ©
A TR IIRIEB 2 REBn Y as A W) HARS ER EE

ERERMB-BE_ZT

LFEE A&ERE

TRESEGELESK

254/

IO fwes

—NF=
BREMEB R AL P INE
#E#79,900,0007%&

WEHIBINEBERRNAFE

A=+-H

7T (ZZF— 1 4 : £910,900,000/# 7T ) °

HEz—-F
WHmEEREBAD

—REFE=ZA=T—HIFE ~&H
SRS NARZKBIIES

contracts in the capacity of a subcontractor. The breakdown of — #) X ANE B & (5 |8 7 48 2 LUk 25 = 1B 5

total revenue by nature of capacity of the Group is set forth below: — ZAT :
For the year ended 31 March
BZ2=A=1t—-HLEE
2016 2015
“E-XE —Z-h%F

HK$'000 % of total HK$ 000 % of total

s 1hAERE

FET B (%) FAET B2 (%)

Main contractor TARER 40,435 11.2 28,094 7.8

Subcontractor NEH 235,340 65.2 247,891 69.1

Jointly controlled operations HRER L 85,223 23.6 82,699 23.1

Total B 360,998 100.0 358,684 100.0
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Cost of services

The Group’s cost of services decreased by approximately 12.8%
to approximately HK$302.3 million (2015: approximately HK$346.6
million) for the year ended 31 March 2016 as compared with that
for the previous year. The Group’s cost of services mainly includes
costs of construction services, costs of television broadcasting
business and direct costs attributable to large outdoor display
screen advertisement business. Costs of construction services
mainly comprise raw materials, direct labour and subcontracting
fee for services provided by the subcontractors. Costs of television
broadcasting business mainly comprise transmission costs
and broadcasting fee. Transmission costs comprise satellite
transmission fee and carriage fee payable to satellite operators
while broadcasting fee comprises annual fee payable to media
broadcasting providers and China Xinhua NNC. Direct costs
attributable to large outdoor display screen advertisement business
mainly comprise depreciation charges of LED display screens and
control room. The decrease in cost of services was mainly due to
the fact that certain waterworks engineering projects were at the
final stage of completion or were completed in the current year and
thus the subcontracting fee decreased accordingly.

The following table sets out a breakdown of the Group’s cost of
services:

AR 5 A A

AEEREBEEZE-_E—XXEFZA=Z+—81L
FE 2 RIS A A 4302,300,0008 7t (=&
— 7 5 : #J346,600,000/8 70 ) * B EF R D4
12.8% ° NEBMBRIEK A X ZERIERERBEK
RN -BREBEBEGKAARABEINERRE
EEBEBOCEER RN BEREXNEAETER
FEMB BES IR BERERBEH DS
ER -ERBHESKATEBFEEERAR
BHREA BERAQEHEEXERAREN
BELEB 2 ERER MEMRERASIEE
NP EEEREERRTPBEFETRESEEZ
FE KAUFPINBRREEESEMZEENK
AREEBRELEDBETRREREHECHEER-
BREKARDEEHRAFES TRKELEE
BEASRBTHREERSIETKARSBERA
Ibt AR PRk D FT B o

TREINARERBRAZF1E -

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLEE

Costs of construction services BERMSHKA
Raw materials Rt
Direct labour EBYT
Subcontracting fee NBEER
Other direct costs HEHEKA
Subtotal NG

Costs of television broadcasting business ERBEHEBAA

Transmission costs BRAR
Broadcasting fee and other direct costs BRERAREMEEKA

Subtotal NG

2016 2015

ZE-xE —E-hF
HK$'000 % of total HK$ 000 % of total
iyt 1haEgE
FET B (%) FAT B L(%)
28,494 9.4 44,155 12.8
71,801 23.8 65,865 19.0
124,964 413 162,374 46.9
64,990 215 61,138 17.6
290,249 96.0 333,532 96.3
2,500 0.8 2,500 0.7
6,398 21 7,784 2.2
8,898 29 10,284 2.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+-BLEE

Direct costs attributable to large outdoor display AR EINETR R E % £75

screen advertisement business Elh 2 EBKA
Subtotal NG
Total B

2016 2015

—E-RE “E-HE
HK$'000 % of total HK$ 000 % of total
e 1A
FET B (%) FET B (%)
3,141 1.1 2,737 0.8
3,141 1.1 2,737 0.8
302,288 100.0 346,553 100.0

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
increased by approximately 197.4% to approximately HK$68.7
million (2015: approximately HK$23.1 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The gross profit margin of the Group
increased to approximately 18.5% for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: approximately 6.2%). The increase in gross profit and
gross profit margin was largely due to large portion of revenue and
gross margin derived from and recognised at the early stage of
certain waterworks engineering projects during the year.

Other income

The Group’s other income for the year ended 31 March 2016
decreased by approximately 78.1% to approximately HK$0.9
million (2015: approximately HK$4.1 million) as compared with that
for the previous year. The decrease in other income was mainly due
to the recognition of one-off item, i.e. the waiver of promissory note
interests from a noteholder in the previous year.
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Other gains and losses

The Group’s other gains and losses for the year ended 31 March
2016 decreased by approximately 80.7% to approximately HK$2.0
million (2015: approximately HK$10.1 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The decrease in other gains and losses
was mainly due to recognition of one-off item, i.e. gains arising on
extension of promissory note in the previous year.

Amortisation expenses

The Group’s amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 March
2016 decreased by approximately 2.0% to approximately HK$23.6
million (2015: approximately HK$24.1 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The amortisation expenses mainly
consisted of amortisation charges of television broadcasting right
and film rights for the television broadcasting business.

Selling and distribution expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the year
ended 31 March 2016 decreased by approximately 57.1% to
approximately HK$97,000 (2015: approximately HK$0.2 million)
as compared with that for the previous year. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly consisted of advertising expenses for
the television broadcasting business.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March
2016 increased by approximately 5.6% to approximately HK$35.0
million (2015: approximately HK$33.1 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The administrative expenses mainly
consisted of auditors’ remuneration, legal and professional fees,
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration), depreciation
expenses and rental expenses. The increase in the administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in staff costs and
rental expenses due to the expansion of business.

Httg 2 % 18

AREBRBEE-_T—ANF-A=Z+—HLHF
§ 2 E i 2= K &5 48 /& 492,000,000 7T ( =
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2016
increased by approximately 33.3% to approximately HK$34.3
million (2015: approximately HK$25.7 million) as compared with
that for the previous year. The finance costs mainly consist of
interest expenses for the promissory note and convertible notes.
The increase in finance costs was mainly due to recognition of
adjustment of overprovision of interest expenses of convertible
notes in prior years which were resulted from the exercise of
conversion rights of convertible notes by certain noteholders during
the year ended 31 March 2015.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible assets

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with China Xinhua NNC, APT
Satellite TV Development Limited and Proud Glory Investments
Limited to acquire entire equity interest of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$700.0 million,
comprising (a) issuance of 474,335,664 Shares to China Xinhua
NNC at HK$0.196 per share; and (b) HK$607,030,210 by way
of the issue of the convertible notes to China Xinhua NNC, Proud
Glory Investments Limited and APT Satellite TV Development
Limited at a conversion price of HK$0.196 per Share. The Group
completed its very substantial acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the
entire equity interest in Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific on 9 December 2011
and commenced the television broadcasting business since then.

The recoverable amounts of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March
2016 and 2015, were determined with reference to a valuation
conducted by an independent valuer, based on income-based
approach, after considering the financial information of Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March 2016 and 2015, including but not
limited to (i) the financial position of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 and 2015; (ii) the total revenue
derived from television broadcasting business; (iii) number of
existing contracts and memorandum of understanding; and (iv) the
market and industry condition. During the year ended 31 March
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2016, although the television broadcasting business continues to
make steady growth and progress when compared with previous
years, it is still under development and far behind the development
schedule as expected. It has not yet brought in satisfactory return
to the Group since the Acquisition. Due to the unsatisfactory
results in these years and relatively slow development pace of
television broadcasting business, the Directors considered that
major inputs regarding revenue were adjusted downwards to
reflect the current situation for prudence sake. As such, the
recoverable amount of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March 2016
is amounted to approximately HK$99.3 million and the impairment
loss, which arose from the difference between the aggregate
carrying amount of intangible assets and the recoverable amount
of entire equity interest in Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific as at 31 March
2016, of approximately HK$19.8 million is recognised in respect
of intangible assets for the year ended 31 March 2016. Except
aforesaid, to the best of knowledge and belief of the Directors,
there has not been any change of valuation methodology, basis
of valuation and assumptions as at 31 March 2016 and no other
changes in circumstance and reasons giving rise to changes in
valuation approach. All changes of inputs are made to reflect
the recent development of television broadcasting business as
compared to that expected in previous years.

The recoverable amount of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific approximated
to the carrying amount of intangible assets, i.e., television
broadcasting right as at 31 March 2015. Therefore, no impairment
loss was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2015. To
the best of knowledge and belief of the Directors, there had not
been any change of valuation methodology, basis of valuation
and assumptions as at 31 March 2015 and no other changes
in circumstance and reasons giving rise to changes in valuation
approach. All changes of inputs were made to reflect the recent
development of television broadcasting business as compared to
that expected in previous years.
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Net loss

The net loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2016 increased by 11.3% to approximately
HK$46.4 million (2015: approximately HK$41.7 million) as
compared with that for the previous year. The increase in net loss
was mainly resulted from net effect of increase in gross profit
against recognition of impairment loss in respect of intangible
assets, decrease in other income and other gains and losses for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Loss per Share

The basic loss per Share for the year ended 31 March 2016 was
approximately HK1.18 cents (2015: approximately HK1.34 cents).

PROSPECTS

The near-term outlook for Hong Kong economy will be full of
challenge and filled with uncertainties. To deal with the unstable
market situation, the Group has reallocated resources to
diversify the existing businesses and explore potential business
opportunities. By doing so, the Group will endeavour to seek long-
term business and profit growth by adopting measures to adjust its
business strategies to align with corporate missions and objectives
and implementing prudent capital management and liquidity risk
management so as to improve business performance and returns
for the shareholders of the Company.
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Provision of waterworks engineering services

This business segment was operated in tough environment
resulting from the substantial increase in construction costs
including materials, staff and labor costs which had adversely
impacted the overall cost structure which in turn affected the
Group’s overall performance and the operating margins. Also, as
the delays in awarding of tenders for numerous major government
infrastructure construction projects due to various external
factors and slow economic growth, the Group faces challenges
in this business segment. If the problem is not resolved, it will
result in fewer new public works projects obtained from the
Government. With the gradual completion of certain major ongoing
projects, the Group is looking forward to the rolling out of new
infrastructure projects. With reduced construction projects in the
market, the Group had prudently adjusted its overall business
strategy, including tendering certain construction contracts from
private sectors, in order to minimize our exposure to any further
unexpected changes in this industry. The Group will implement a
detailed management system to oversee this business segment
through selected projects and clients and to discontinue certain
operations with low efficiency and cost effectiveness and high risks
to ensure that the construction business remains healthy for future
development. On 15 July 2015 and 20 November 2015, the Group
has successfully obtained a new main construction of advance
work for Shek Wu Hui sewage treatment works — further expansion
phase 1A and sewerage works at Ping Che Road (contract
numbered DC/2013/09) and a new subcontract construction of
site formation and infrastructural works near Tong Hang Road
and Tsz Tin Road in Area 54 Tuen Mun (contract numbered
CV/2015/03), with contract sum of approximately HK$156.0 million
and approximately HK$428.4 million respectively.

Despite the vigorous competition in Hong Kong construction
industry, the Group s still optimistic to maintain steady growth in net
profit and scale of operations due to its long established reputation
and proven ability. The Group has demonstrated itself capability
to strengthen medium-term profitability by enhancing scale and
market share. With a view of good reputation and proven track
record, the Group is confident that the profitability can be sustained
in the long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Television broadcasting business

Driven by new media and technologies, the Group is facing
constant challenges of descending scale of traditional advertising
market, especially television advertising industry. In face of the
difficult operating environment, the Group will continue to step
up its collaboration efforts with strategic partners to complement
each other’s advantages and achieve win-win situations. Besides
of increasing the coverage of the CNC Channels by strengthening
and rejuvenating its marketing and sales team internally, the Group
would hire experienced and competent staff to take part in the
growing businesses of the Group. The Group would continue
to invest in the Group’s core brandname, enhance the Group’s
marketing activities and expanding network and execute on market
opportunities for any new strategic co-operation in order to further
diversify the Group’s existing business and minimize the exposure
to any unexpected changes in this business segment.

Leveraging on its resources and capabilities, the Group has been
exploring new business opportunities to create new sources of
revenue or to generate additional revenue from the growing internet
market. The Group’s video contents are now uploaded on different
media digital platforms, such as NetEase, Sohu and Tencent for
subscription. Looking forward, the Group will continue to adopt the
diversification strategy and actively explore opportunities in mobile
and internet-related businesses in order to cope with the fast-
growing mobile internet market.

Large outdoor display screen advertisement business

Under the circumstances of overcapacity and fierce competition in
the industry, coupled with the increasingly stringent requirements
imposed on the industry, the operation of this business segment
confronted greater challenges. Currently, the Group will seek
co-operation from different parties, including but not limited to
commercial real estate developers, PRC government authorities
and other potential partners in order to speed up the development
of this business segment. The Group will maintain a firm direction
of development and grasp and execute business opportunities
in the market. In particular, the Group believes that the existing
businesses of the Group will complement with each other and there
will be synergies between them.

28

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

ERBHRE

ATHRE MRS ARE LR R HRESRE
EME (LERERESE) REER 2 DE -
REBRE 2 ERRE N EESME N R
B SIERHIEHAIE BHEREBBER
BRAR -RBEBINRREFTENETISHEER
RIHEBBIEAZECNCIHE L BEHE
AEEERERARBRERNZEINMAREE
ARgERZEH AEEREEREANEE
20 b8~ DGR AN 6R 8] 2 T 55 1 R A B S 9 AR
BRI AITERMFTEBEEIEZ TISHE A
—FETMAREZREXHERBEREZE

50 BB R (E AT TR R 2 SNEE L 2 LR o

MAEERMEN AEE-—BEERZHNE
BHe  LElEFH ks RKE BaigR e
ABHE T IS EREER SN ER - ARE 2 RIEA R £
BEETFERRHUFFE 0BS5S RMEER -
AHETR] - REARR  AEBEBEBRIMZ TR
B WEBERRFHRNEBEEERB I EL
BB NEHRERERR Z FHREBENS -

REFHMETRRESES

FITERNERBRIEBFHRUZES T ME
RITEWHEMBREE 2B WEBKH B2

OB APRE - B AEBEESKETR
FHEZEE BIEETRAEEEERERE -
PEBAEEREMEBERNE ZCEIE LAINR
REBDBCER - AEBZERFMBEE
T RNSERRATHS Lo EBKE L
HE AEEREAEB 2 REXKIEEAE
7 R I 2 TG EE L 15 (R 3 E o



The Group will further enhance the existing business operations,
actively responding to severe market conditions and exploring
potential ways for sustained development of the Group in order
to create favourable value returns for its Shareholders. We are
optimistic on our long term prospects and are fully committed
to continue our current strategies and operational excellence to
weather the challenges. Looking forwards, the Group actively
pushed forward mergers and acquisitions which enabled the Group
to introduce talents, explore the markets, reinforce its influence,
enlarge its business scale and generate synergy effects to its
existing businesses.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Shares were listed on GEM on 30 August 2010. The capital of
the Group comprises only ordinary shares.

On 21 July 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Ping An of China Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
to place an aggregate of 300,000,000 Shares to not less than
six placees at an issue price of HK$0.25 per placing Share
and that the net price to the Company of each placing Share is
approximately HK$0.24375. The placing price represents (i) a
discount of approximately 15.25% to the closing price of HK$0.295
per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 21 July 2015,
being the last trading date of the placing agreement; and (i) a
discount of approximately 18.75% to the average closing price of
HK$0.307 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five
consecutive trading days preceeding 21 July 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The placing Shares were placed to not less than six placees, who
and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent institutional,
professional and/or individual investors and not concert parties
with the controlling shareholder(s) (if any) (as defined under Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers), and not connected with
any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder (if any) of
the Company or its subsidiaries and their respective associates.
None of the placees and their respective associates became a
substantial shareholder of the Company as a result of the placing.
The Directors were of the view that the placing would strengthen
the financial position of the Group, including its ability to meet any
future obligations and further expand the Group’s business. The
Directors considered that the terms of the placing agreement,
including the rate of the placing commission, were fair and
reasonable based on the current market conditions. Accordingly,
the Board considered that the placing was in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The completion of the placing took place on 4 August 2015 and
aggregate of 260,000,000 placing Shares have been successfully
placed to not less than six placees at issue price of HK$0.25 per
Share and raised gross proceeds of approximately HK$65.0 million.
The proceeds from the placing was used for the purpose of general
working capital of the Company and development of business(es)
in line with future development policy of Xinhua News Agency and
in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$4.6 million in surplus as at 31 March 2016
(81 March 2015: approximately HK$29.0 million in deficit). The
increase in equity was mainly resulted from fund raising activities
from the placing exercise and conversion of convertible notes from
noteholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group generally
financed its operations through internally generated cash flows and
net proceeds from placing exercise.
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As at 31 March 2016, the Group had net current assets of
approximately HK$148.0 million (31 March 2015: approximately
HK$73.2 million), including cash balance of approximately
HK$127.4 million (31 March 2015: approximately HK$62.2 million).
The current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current
liabilities, was approximately 2.13 as at 31 March 2016 (31 March
2015: approximately 1.66). The increase in net current assets
and current ratio were primarily due to fund raising activities from
placing exercise during the year.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, which is based on the amount of total bank
overdraft, promissory note, convertible notes, finance lease
payables and advance received from customers divided by total
assets, was approximately 62.5% as at 31 March 2016 (31 March
2015: approximately 70.1%). The decrease in gearing ratio was
resulted from increase in total assets due to fund raising activities
from the placing exercise during the current year.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Directors
consider that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in the functional currency of each individual group
entity. During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group was
mainly exposed to foreign currency exchange risk of United States
Dollars and Renminbi and the management mainly monitored the
foreign currency exchange risk with advices from the Group’s major
banks.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had an outstanding commitment
of approximately HK$0.7 million in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. Save as abovesaid, the Group did
not have any other significant capital commitments as at 31 March
2016 (31 March 2015: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s motor vehicles with net book values of approximately
HK$14.4 million was held under finance lease as at 31 March
2016. As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s machineries and motor
vehicles with net book values of approximately HK$0.8 million and
approximately HK$12.3 million were held under finance lease. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged its motor vehicles with net
book values of approximately HK$89,000 (2015: machinery and
motor vehicles with net book values of approximately HK$12,000
and approximately HK$0.7 million respectively) as securities for its
performance of obligations as a subcontractor of the Replacement
and Rehabilitation of water mains, Stage 4, Phrase 1 — Mains in
Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, North District and Tai Po.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (31 March 2015: Nil).

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2016 the Group had 307 full-time staff in Hong
Kong and the PRC and over 90% of them are direct labour. Total
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended
31 March 2016 amounted to approximately HK$86.6 million
(2015: approximately HK$80.2 million), representing an increase of
approximately 8.0% over that for the previous year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in the number of staff to support the
expansion of the Group’s business.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Except for investment in subsidiaries, during the year ended 31
March 2016 and as at the end of the reporting period, the Group
did not hold any significant investment in equity interest in any
company.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

(@ On 2 February 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties pursuant
to which a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company will
acquire 100% equity interest in Shenzhen City Century
Culture Creative Limited* ORI 42 (L BIZBR A F])
(“Shenzhen Culture Company”) at a total consideration of
HK$600,000,000. The consideration will be partly settled by
cash and partly by the issue and allotment of consideration
shares. The primary business of Shenzhen Culture Company
and its subsidiary is the operation and management of
Shenzhen City Culture Creative Park* Q&I XL BIE &)
in return for rental income including management fee. The
proposed acquisition has not yet been completed as at the
reporting date. Further details of the proposed acquisition
were set out in the announcement of the company dated 3
June 2016.

(b) On 25 March 2016, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding with independent third
parties pursuant to which the Company proposed to inject
cash into Tianjin Anlian Chengtong Information Technology
Company Limited* (K 2L EZBEEHMBRAA)
(“Tianjin Technology Company”) as registered capital. Upon
completion of the proposed capital injection, the Company
will become the single largest shareholder of the Tianjin
Technology Company. The Tianjin Technology Company is
mainly engaged in the operation and management of the
supply chain management system, namely ALCT Supply
Chain Platform (=R EREIREZ 5 F A), which is
capable of connecting the tax system of the PRC tax authority
for issue of VAT invoice. As at the reporting date, the Group
has not yet entered into any formal capital injection agreement.
Further details of the proposed capital injection were set out in
the announcement of the company dated 29 March 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any.
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

*

for identification purpose only

EAREREREEZRRETE

(a) NZE—RF-_A-H ANEBEEFL
FE=RRINEERE B ARRZ—
fE 2 & M8 A 7%= 8K E600,000,000
BT EE R Tt 42 XL B E AR A A
(DRYISE R T ) Z100%A%4E - (KB 15
BONUNBREEE R D EBEETTMACEE
REBRODZFREE  FIERF R
ENBARIZEEXKAEBEEREER
L aIBEE - WERF S WA (BIEE
BE) MRS AH ERKESEEMNE
TN -ERWEBEEZE—LHFBIRN
AR HEBA-—ZE—R"FAAZBZA
G

by R-ZE—ARF=A-_+HB AAAHE
BN E=FRI VR E R B AR
A RKELEIZBESRMAR A A
([REFMAR]) EABRSIESTME
RoRBZFEIETHE  ARRBK AR
ERM AR ZE—&RARE - RERIM
RAFENREEEREBHREEETER
G ERERERET ST S HEH
EER BN s B R AR
HIBEHRBER -NREBH AEB MR
FIVEMERTERZ - BRIEIECE
—SHBHRARRBPEAE T —RF
—A-thBzAHmA-

BRENFIEEEN RZE—AF=A=1+—
A AEEYEREAREREAEESNEH
flET &l
EABBERHENBARREE LA

HE_T-RE=A=1—HILFE xEEYL
BEEAEARBLEENEARREB AR -

2015/2016 £if TEFEBRERERAT 33



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hao (&%) ,
and is responsible for the overall business planning and corporate

aged 53, the chairman of the Board

strategy of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated from the institute of
German Language of Shanghai International Studies University
r*w /$

( EBINHE RIS 2
1983. Mr. Zhang joined Xinhua News Agency after his graduation

<) with a degree of Bachelor of Arts in

and held the positions of editor, reporter, senior editor ( = &% 4
#5 ) and deputy officer of International Department of Xinhua News
Agency CFTE+ BIFR#B&IE1E) . He was the officer of Xinhua
News Agency Audio News Desk (#E+ F £ E6) in 2003 and
was re-designated as the deputy officer of Xinhua News Agency
Audio and Video News Desk (HT# 4 &R 4850) in 2009 and
2010. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of the board and legal
representative of CNC China. Mr. Zhang is a director of China
Xinhua NNC. In the last three years, he held no directorships in
any listed public companies. Mr. Zhang has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 August 2014, and will continue thereafter
until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other or three months’ salary being
payment in lieu of notice.

A

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

BEE

BITES

RERE 53 REEGEE AEAEEZ
BT R ARIRE - RAEER—NN\=ZF
EENLEIEBEREZR BEXEEL
B cRBHEE REEEANELTE BAE
REE RE BRREMTELBRRE P EFE-
ﬁ%:%%z%ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂmé
—ZETNFE —SFERAEARFELSEIE
%%EEO%%EEE$Iﬁ%%%@ﬁm($
Bl) 2ERRKEAARK SREE /P REIERN
HERAAES ABEA=FA BEENEM L
m@%@?%&&ﬁé%%ﬁw%%iaﬁ$

ANARFIRBEHN BZE—WENA=ZTH
HREVTSEBH=F WEHEER EEEM—
ARS—HFEERADPR=ZEAZEER B
XN =EAFSERBINS AL



Mr. Zou Chen Dong (8FfE 5 ) , aged 47, is the vice chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the overall project management and
the daily operation. Mr. Zou is a reporter superior ( F{Es2 % ) of
Xinhua News Agency. Mr. Zou graduated from the Department of
Journalism of China People’s Liberation Army Nanjing School of
Department Political Science ( F B A R % 1K ZE 8 R BUA 20t 37
B &) in 1990 and joined Xinhua News Agency in 2001. He was
a reporter of Tibet People’s Broadcast Television ( Fa i A K & 1&
T 5 ) and Tibet Television (FAEMR & ) in 1991, a reporter in
China Central People’s Broadcast Television ( 7 Bl 41 s A R &1
B A ) in 1994, a reporter in a Tibet correspondent of New China
Agency People’s Liberation Army in 2001 and the news director
of Shanghai Securities News (_E/&7& %% ) in 2007. Mr. Zou is
a director of China Xinhua NNC. Mr. Zou has about 20 years of
experience in the media industry. In the last three years, he held no
directorships in any listed public companies. Mr. Zou has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 9 December 2011, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other or three months’ salary
being payment in lieu of notice.

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (fBI#f) , aged 51, is the founder of
the Group. Mr. Kan formed TYW and TY Civil in 1996 and 2000
respectively and has been the director of both companies since
their formation. Mr. Kan has over 25 years of experience in handling
civil engineering projects of various types. In the last three years, he
held no directorships in any listed public companies. Mr. Kan has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from 11 August 2010, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other or three months’ salary
being payment in lieu of notice. In addition, Mr. Kan has entered into
an employment contract with TYW to act as the director of TYW
for a continuous term commencing from 6 February 1996 until
terminated by not less than thirty days’ notice in writing served by
either party on the other or thirty days’ salary being payment in lieu
of notice.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John ({3 %) , aged 46, is the
compliance officer of the Group and is responsible for the financial
and compliance aspects of the Group. Mr. Chia has about 20 years
of experience in corporate finance, management and investment
and he joined the Group in May 2009. Mr. Chia graduated with
a degree of Bachelor of Science in accounting and finance from
Purdue University, Indiana, the United States of America (“USA”) in
1994. Mr. Chia obtained a master degree of Corporate Governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2014. In the last
three years, he held no directorships in any listed public companies.
He has entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from 11 August 2010, and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or three
months’ salary being payment in lieu of notice.

Non-Executive Director

Dr. Li Yong Sheng ( Z>kFt) , aged 45, is a reporter superior ( =
fE£527% ) of Xinhua News Agency and has been working in Xinhua
News Agency since his graduation from Wuhan University with a
degree of Bachelor of Economics and Management in 1992. Dr.
Li obtained a Doctorate of philosophy in Economics from Wuhan
University of Technology in 2010. Dr. Li has held the positions of
reporter and editor in financial and economical businesses. Dr. Li
has served as the associate director of the service line of Xinhua
News Agency (Tt ARIEH AR BI4ES) since 2003 and the editor
of Xinhua News Agency Audio and Video News Desk and the officer
of the Financial Television Centre ( B 4&X EAR H L E1F ) since 2009.
In the last three years, Dr. Li did not hold any directorships in any
listed public companies.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, Gas, up (B #:% 2 ) , aged 64, has
been appointed by the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 18 May 2015. The Hon. Ip is a non-official member
of the Executive Council, a member of the Legislative Council
of the Hong Kong representing the District Council (The First)
functional constituency and a member of the Democratic Alliance
for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong (“DAB”). The
Hon. Ip Was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 1999
and was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) in the HKSAR
2004 Honours List. The Hon. Ip is presently a Deputy to the 12th
National People’s Congress of PRC for HKSAR, the Chairman of
Legislative Council Panel on Security, the DAB Party Affairs Advisor
and the Convenor of DAB Legislative Council Caucus. The Hon. Ip
also currently serves as a non-executive director of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority, a member of Central and
Western District Council (Kwun Lung) and the deputy chairman of
Hon Wah Educational Organisation. The Hon. Ip was a member
of the Legislative Council between 1995-1997, a member of the
Provisional Legislative Council between 1997-1998, a member
of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR representing the district
council functional constituency between 2000-2004 and between
2008-2012. The Hon. Ip is currently appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 15). Save as disclosed above, The Hon. Ip did not
hold any directorships in any other listed public companies in last
three years. He has not, by himself or through his firm in which he
practices, provided professional services to the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, 58S, JP (F &85 4 ) , aged 66,
obtained a degree of master of Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008 and a degree of master
of Buddhist studies from The University of Hong Kong in 2010.
Mr. Wan was appointed as a Justice of the Peace (JP) in 1997
and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region 2004 Honours List. Mr. Wan
is engaged in the business of property and chattel valuation and
auction. Mr. Wan is a fellow of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, an associate of The Institution of Business Agents,
a member of The Land Institute (London), an associate of The
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a fellow of The Institute of
Administrative Accounting. Mr. Wan is currently appointed as
the independent non-executive director of Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited (a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 746). Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wan did
not hold any directorships in any other listed public companies in
last three years. He has not, by himself or through his firm in which
he practices, provided professional services to the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Mr. Jin Hai Tao (¥18/%) , aged 62, has over 33 years’
experience in enterprise management, investment, financing and
capital market operations. He is on the professional expert board
of the Science, Technology & Economic Expert Committee of the
Ministry of Science and Technology (B & Rl % SRl £ & &
KEZBEZHZK) . He has a Master degree in management from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (#E A 2 T K £
T2 (EEE)IEL). In addition, Mr. Jin is the vice chairman of
Shenzhen Chamber of Investment (SZCI) GRIITHEEH € 15 E
@ &), executive vice president of Shenzhen Finance Consultant
Association ORYITT £ BER B #1782 &) and honorary
chairman of Wenzhou Association for Investment in Enterprises
CRMTREREEESR) .

He joined Shenzhen Capital Group Co., Ltd (GRIIITH Al ¥ri& &&=
BB A]) as chairman from 2004 to 2015. He was a director of
Shenzhen Terca Technology Co., Ltd CRINTT B ERI D E
FR/AF]) (a company listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 002213) from 2006 to 2014. Between 1993 and 2000, Mr.
Jin was a deputy general manager of Shenzhen Electronic Group
Co., Ltd OFIIEREREHFR A7) ) and vice president and general
manager of Shenzhen SEG Co., Ltd CRIIEE KRB ER A A])
(a company listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
200058). Currently, he is an independent non-executive director of
Wisdom Sports Group (a company listed in the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 1661) since June 2013. Save as disclosed above,
Mr. Jin did not hold any directorships in any other listed public
companies in the last three years. He has not, by himself or through
his firm in which he practices, provided professional services to the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (T 2% % 4 ), aged 48,
has been appointed by the Company as the independent non-
executive Director on 16 December 2013. Mr. Wong graduated
with professional diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic in 1990 and obtained a degree of bachelor of law from
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China in 1998 and a
degree of master of science from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1999. Mr. Wong has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Wong is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong
previously worked at one of the reputable international accounting
firms for six years and also worked in Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited for over 13 years with last position as
senior manager of the Listing Division of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited. Mr. Wong worked in a financial service
institution licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
as vice president of corporate finance division for more than
four years. Mr. Wong is the chief executive officer of a financial
service institution providing corporate finance advisory licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission. In the last three years,
Mr. Wong did not hold any directorships in any listed public
companies. He has not, by himself or through his firm in which he
practices, provided professional services to the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Board hereby presents this corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and enhance the performance of the Group.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
the Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016, except for
paragraphs A.2.7 of the Code. This report further illustrates in
detail as to how the Code was applied, inclusive of the considered
reasons for any deviation throughout the year ended 31 March
2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding
them of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required
standards of dealings throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.
The Company was not aware of any non-compliance in this respect
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible
and effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith
and in the best interests of the Company.

Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

42

approval of the Group’s long term objectives and strategy,
policies and annual budgets;

oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;

approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

responsible for the system of internal control and risk
management;

approval of matters in relation to Board membership and
Board remuneration;

review of the existing policies of the Company on corporate
governance;

review of the coverage of knowledge and skills of the training
sessions arranged for the Directors and senior management
by the Company;

evaluated the effectiveness of internal safeguard procedure for
overseeing timely disclosure of material inside information and

perseverance of its confidentiality;

monitor the compliance of code of conduct by the Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

review of the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in this report.
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Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, including four
executive Directors, a non-executive Director and four independent
non-executive Directors and at least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors” section on pages 34 to 40 of this report. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Hao (Chairmarn)
Mr. Zou Chen Dong (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung
Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John
Dr. Lee Yuk Lun, JP
(resigned on 13 July 2015)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Li Yong Sheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B8S JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

Dr. Lee Yuk Lun resigned as executive Director with effect from 13
July 2015 due to his other business commitments which require
more of his attention and dedication. Dr. Lee Yuk Lun confirmed
that he had no disagreement with the Board and there were no
other matters relating to his resignation that need to be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELBRE

Mr. Hau Chit Kit resigned as independent non-executive
Director with effect from 18 May 2015 due to his other business
commitments which require more of his attention and dedication.
Mr. Hau Chit Kit confirmed that he had no disagreement with the
Board and there were no other matters relating to his resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company.

Chairman and chief executive officer

The role and duties of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company are carried out by different individuals.

The chairman of the Board is Mr. Zhang Hao who is responsible
for strategic and business directions to the Board and ensures its
effectiveness in all aspects.

The chief executive officer of the Company is Mr. Zou Chen Dong,
who is responsible for the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations and focuses on implementing objectives, policies
and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.

Management functions delegated by the Board

The Board has delegated the responsibilities of the execution
of strategies and decision making for day-to-day operation and
administration functions of the Company to the management
team headed by the chief executive officer. The Board has set out
guidelines for management team as to when final authority should
rest with the Board and its prior approval should be obtained before
making decisions or entering into any commitments; issue of such
include but not limited to any proposed notifiable transactions,
connected transactions, significant investments, major business
decisions related to operation and business strategy, change of key
management of the Group and disclosure of inside information.
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Appointment, re-election and removal

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. The appointment of
executive Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the
other or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

The non-executive Director was appointed for a specific term of
three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. The
appointment of non-executive Director will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other or the payment of three month salary in
lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed
for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. The appointment of independent non-executive
Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other
or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
at each AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM. All Directors appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Shareholders after their appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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None of the Directors has a service contract with any member
of the Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Paragraph A.2.7 of the Code provides that the chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors without the executive
Directors present. Although the chairman did not hold a meeting
with the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2016, he delegated
the company secretary to gather any concerns and/or questions
that the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors might have and report to him for setting up follow-up
meetings, whenever necessary, in due course.

Relation of the Board Members

All Directors are no relationships (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships) among members
of the Board.

Meeting of the Board

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board had convened
total 10 meetings, four of which are in regular nature. The
attendance record of individual Directors at the Board and
committees” meetings and general meetings are set out in page 54
of this report.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company provides all members of the Board
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position.
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The Directors are aware of the requirement under the paragraph
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development.
During the year, the Directors reviewed the monthly business
and financial updates and other reading materials provided to
them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments. A record

of the Directors’ participation in various continuous professional

development program is kept by the company secretary as below:
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Training

£ 3

FRR

Self-learning

Attend seminar

BEERL SN E
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhang Hao RERE v 4
Mr. Zou Chen Dong BERELE v v
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung BB 4 v v
Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John B e v v
Dr. Lee Yuk Lun, uP BB LT A FaL
(resigned on 13 July 2015) (R-F—AF+H+=HEIE) v -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Li Yong Sheng FkAEL v v
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP ERHRE 245 EE
(appointed on 18 May 2015) A¥wt (RZE—RF

BATAEZ /ic) v/ v
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, 8BS, JP FEREE  HLHEZ

A Faat v v
Mr. Jin Hai Tao GEEE v 7
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth EHREEE v v/
Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015) BEEEEE (R=ZF—aF

BATHFEE) v -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”), to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of reference are set
out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 11 August
2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C.3.3
of the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among
other things, reviewing and supervising the financial reporting
process and internal control systems, as well as the overall risk
management of the Group, reviewing the financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group, and
reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of audit work of the
external auditors.

The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth (Chairman)

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Li Yong Sheng
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The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified
industry experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
accounting matters.

During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the first
quarterly results for three months ended 30 June 2015, the interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2015, the third
quarterly results for the nine months ended 31 December 2015
and the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2016 and is of
the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 11
August 2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.4.5 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying and
nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Hao (Chairman)
Mr. Zou Chen Dong

Independent non-executive Directors

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education background,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments
of the proposed candidates, and also the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. Qualified
candidates will then be recommended to the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee
had convened one meetings to consider the appointment of The
Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP as an independent non-executive
Director and suitable candidate as senior management of the
Company.

Board diversity policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy on 30
August 2013 with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development of the Group. The Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development.

In designing the Board’s composition, the board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Remuneration Committee
The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 11

August 2010 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.1.2 of the Code.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include,
among other things, formulating and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy, determining the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and making recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jin Hai Tao (Chairman)

The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP
(appointed on 18 May 2015)

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration
Committee had convened one meeting to consider the revision of
Directors’ remuneration.

Risk Management Committee

The Company established the Risk Management Committee on 15
June 2016 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules and the Code.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include,
among other things, reviewing the risk management system
of the Group; assessing the risks from major decisions and to
consider solutions for significant risk; monitoring the Group'’s
risk profile; reviewing and monitor emerging risks relating to the
Group’s business and strategies; having periodic assessment on
the Group’s risk profile and risk management capabilities; and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis.
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The composition of the Risk Management Committee is as follows:

Independent non-executive Directors
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP (Chairman)
Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

The Risk Management Committee should meet at least once a
year to consider major investigation findings on risk management
matters and the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks. The Risk Management Committee did not
convene any meeting during the year ended 31 March 2016 as the
Risk Management Committee was established as at the date of this
report.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions
with the following duties:

e to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations on
changes and updating;

e toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

e to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors;

e to review the Company’'s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

e such other corporate governance duties and functions set
out in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the
Board are responsible.
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The Board has reviewed and approved the corporate governance
report set out in this report. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year, and Directors will receive at least 14 days prior written notice
of such meetings. For any ad hoc Board meetings, Directors
are given as much notice as is reasonably practicable in those
circumstances. Agendas and accompanying papers are sent not
less than 3 days before the date of Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same. Draft and
final versions of minutes of regular Board meetings are circulated
to all Directors for their comment and records respectively. All
Directors are kept informed in a timely manner of major changes
that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Board also understands where potential
conflicts of interests arise, the independent non-executive Directors
shall take the lead in discussing the relevant transactions being
contemplated when there is a Director or any of his associates
having a material interest in the transactions and shall abstain from
voting.

B MUERREMREEEARSE -
EXSEMIARRIZEEERBRRRERIAK
ARBBTEREMEEREZBN

R HFETE

ESeBFRIBTORNENER BF
RESZAMKRD THRANKEIEEEH - E
MERERANESFEER ESAEAHABNR
TETUASERBERAITAEA -2 MK b
ZXHREFEEZRTEHMEL =_RZAFH
TEF URREFARTNKEENEHRE
H-BHREZESRLBE 2R EERK D A
ERERES UEREBRRMHEKEER - K
SESLRSENERESA T EANKEEK
ZEREH BREARMRALRI -EZENT
BEMEREEMNRTR BEFREMEBEA
RGP HEREAMNBRARERR  MIBL
FRTEFTARETAWBETZIARRS

53

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELBRE

Details of the Directors’ attendance at Board and committees’
meetings and general meeting for the year ended 31 March 2016
are set out below:

Board
B3¢

Number of meetings RNy 10
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Zhang Hao REEE 10110
Mr. Zou Chen Dong FRELE 1010
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung MERLE 10110
Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John HEHLE 10110
Dr. Lee Yuk Lun, JP (resigned on 13 July 2015) PEBEL A FHL (RoF-7%

+AT=H#) 22
Non-executive Director FHUTES
Dr. Li Yong Sheng Tkt 8/10
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
The Hon. Ip Kok Hin, GBS, JP SAFHE LLHEE L THL

(appointed on 18 May 2015) (R=F-040H1)\AEZ

/f/‘ 6/9
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, BBS, JP. SREE HEHEE A4S 10A10
Mr. Jin Hai Tao %Etrﬁ’ti 10110
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth FRERE 10/10
Mr. Hau Chi Kit (esigned on 18 May 201) EERRE (R=F-FF

FATNHEHF) -
Average attendance rate THLREER 94.7%

*

The Risk Management committee did not convene any meeting during
the year ended 31 March 2016 as the Risk Management Committee was
established as at the date of this report.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Financial
Statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs,
results and cash flows of the Group in accordance with relevant law
and disclosure requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the Financial Statements is set out in “Independent
Auditors’ Report” section on pages 80 to 82 of this report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit services provided by the
Company’s auditor, during the year ended 31 March 2016
amounted to HK$0.68 million.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group conducts an annual review on the need for setting up
an internal audit department. Given the Group’s simple operating
structure, it was decided that the Board would be directly responsible
for internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or for publication, and ensuring compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations. The procedures provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material errors,
losses or fraud.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining the soundness
and effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group to
safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets,
including:

e identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of such
risks identified;

e  developing the necessary measures for managing these risks;
and

e monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy of
such measures.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, Board has entrusted
the Audit Committee with the responsibility to oversee the
implementation of the risk management framework of the Group. In
discharging this responsibility, the Audit Committee:

e  ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the Group are
promptly identified by management;

e assesses the adequacy of action plans and control systems
developed to manage these risks; and

e monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.

The controls built into the risk management framework are intended
to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of failure to
achieve business objectives. These controls provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information or against financial losses
and fraud.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted an annual
review on the Group’s internal control system and considers that
it is adequate and effective during the year ended 31 March 2016.
The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with the
provisions on internal controls as set out in the Code.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Yuet Tai (Z A25) , aged 33, joined the Company in
September 2011 as assistant to chief financial officer and re-
designated as company secretary on 1 June 2012. Ms. Li holds
a bachelor’s degree in business administration in Professional
Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has
over 7 years of working experience in auditing and accounting
in Hong Kong and the PRC. Ms. Li is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Li has served in an international accounting firm for
five years. In the last three years, Ms. Li held no directorships in any
listed public companies.
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The company secretary took more than 15 hours’ professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2016. Reporting to the chief
executive officer, the company secretary plays an important role in
ensuring proper Board procedures are tailored to the Company’s
business needs and compliance with all applicable laws, rule
and regulations. The Directors could obtain advices and services
from the company secretary for any updates and developments
in corporate governance, applicable laws and regulations when
necessary.

The company secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, is
responsible for preparing the meeting agenda, serving notice to
the Board at least 14 days before the regular meetings or at a
reasonable time for other ad-hoc meetings, and providing relevant
Board papers to Directors at least 3 days before the meetings, so
as to ensure that the Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner for effective
and informed decision making.

The company secretary also ensures that the Board meetings are
convened and constituted in accordance with all applicable laws,
regulations and the procedural requirements set out in the articles
of association at all times. In addition, the company secretary
will take minutes of the meetings and circulate them to Directors
for comments at a reasonable time after the meetings. After
incorporating Directors’ comments, the executed version of the
minutes will be maintained by the company secretary and be open
for Directors’ inspection during normal office hours.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board believes that general meetings can provide an
open forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend general
meetings of the Company and give valuable advices to the
Company through this direct communication platform. The
Company will convene AGM every year and convene any other
extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) as required.
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The way in which Shareholders can convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding not less than 10% of
the issued share capital at the time of deposit of the requisition
and carrying the right of voting at general meeting can deposit
a written request to convene an EGM.

The written request must state the purposes of the meeting,
signed by the Shareholders concerned and deposited to the
Board or the company secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business at Suites 2708-10, 27/F., Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more Shareholders. The request will be verified with
the Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that
the request is proper and in order, the company secretary
will notify the Board to convene an EGM and include the
resolution in the agenda. The Board shall convene and hold
such general meeting within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If the request is verified to be not in order,
Shareholders concerned will be advised of the result and no
EGM will be convened.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such general meeting, the Shareholders
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM,
but any EGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company’s investor relationship contact
at Suites 2708-10, 27/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by phone on +852
3104 2962 or by email at cnc@cnctv.hk.
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’
meetings

To put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings, the
Shareholders shall submit a written notice of those proposals
with the detail contact information to the company secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business. The request
will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution
in the agenda for the general meeting.

Communications with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of the
annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports of the
Company are distributed to its shareholders in accordance
with statutory and regulatory requirements and also to
interested parties recorded in the Company’s mailing lists.
The publications of the Company, including financial reports,
circulars and announcements, are also available on the
Company’s website.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained.

All Board members, the chairmen of the relevant Board
committees and the external auditor of the Company also
attended the annual general meeting to inter-face with, and
answer questions from the shareholders of the Company.

The attendance of the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company is set out on page 54 of this report.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s corporate website is www.cnctv.hk. The Company
may from time to time conduct investor/analysts briefings and
presentations, roadshows, media interviews, marketing activities
for investors and specialist industry forums etc.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM
website (http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s
corporate website as soon as practicable after their release. The
Company’s constitutional documents are also available on our
website. No significant changes were made to these documents
during the year ended 31 March 2016. Information on our website
will be updated on a regular basis.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report together
with the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and is engaged
in provision of management services and television broadcasting
business. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of waterworks engineering services for the public sector in
Hong Kong, television broadcasting business in the Asia-Pacific
Region (excluding the PRC) and large outdoor display screen
advertisement in the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of business activities of the Group,
including a business review of the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 16 to 33
of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this directors’
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 to 84 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 26 July 2016 to Friday, 29 July 2016, both days inclusive.
During this period, no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queens’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 25 July 2016.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the Financial
Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 36 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 87 of this report and notes 37 and 47 to the Financial
Statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group made the
charitable donations amounting to approximately HK$0.5 million.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s distributable reserves,
including the share premium account, calculated under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
HK$64.8 million in deficit.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of the convertible notes of the Group are set out in note 34
to the Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the last
five financial years is set out on pages 227 to 228 of this report.

PR

AEBRBERETBFEENEERPBRR
BEZ AR RS 5227 = 52288 ©

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FTERFRHED

The percentage of the Group’s revenue, subcontracting costs &HZE -—Z— NFE=ZA=+—HItFE XEH
and purchases of raw materials attributable to the Group’s major 25 » ’JJ\’FEEJZZK&J?MM% BELGASEX
customers, subcontractors and suppliers respectively for the year ZEEF -2 BEEEEERBNE D LD RILOT
ended 31 March 2016 is as follows:

Revenue g

The largest customer BARF 56.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPE 96.3%
Subcontracting costs WAl

The largest subcontractor BADBEH 27.0%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate ARDBEEhR 70.8%
Purchases of raw materials (Notes) PR R AR (M)

The largest supplier BAMER 26.7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hAREEE SR 62.9%

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in any of the Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and
suppliers.

Notes:

Total purchases of raw materials by the Group included purchases of raw
materials by main contractors for the Group’s use in carrying out waterworks
engineering services as a subcontractor for respective contracts. However,
the suppliers from which main contractors purchased the raw materials were
not included as the suppliers of the Group as the Group did not have direct
relationship with these suppliers.

WAL BEER BEZHRASREFH
HPEB AR RRIS%A EBEBEITRA ZEARER
AEBRARS 5 07 R G0 A T
i

fm °

Hiat -

AEERMHRBABRCRIAZERTAN/AEAE
ERBEESD BEETRE TR MBI RME - A
- EAEERERM A L AR R E 2
R RARASEEZEHERTETXHRE-

63

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEERE

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are set
out in note 46 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hao (Chairman)

Mr. Zou Chen Dong (Vice chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John

Dr. Lee Yuk Lun, JP (resigned on 13 July 2015)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Li Yong Sheng

Independent Non-Executive Directors
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBs, Jp
(appointed on 18 May 2015)
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron, B8s, JP
Mr. Jin Hai Tao
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth
Mr. Hau Chi Kit (resigned on 18 May 2015)
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATIONS OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that all Directors
and officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been provided by the Company to cover potential legal actions
against Directors and senior officers.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company. The appointment of
executive Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the
other or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.
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The non-executive Director was appointed for a specific term of
three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
AGM pursuant to the articles of association of the Company. The
appointment of non-executive Director will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ prior
written notice to the other or the payment of three month salary in
lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors was appointed
for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the AGM pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company. The appointment of independent non-executive
Directors will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving not less than three months’ prior written notice to the other
or the payment of three month salary in lieu of notice.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member
of the Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

The biographical details of Directors as at the date of this report are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages
34 to 40 of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or existed during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of
job, performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees, as well as the result of the Group and the market trend.
The Group carries out staff performance appraisal once a year and
the assessment result is used for salary reviews and promotion
decisions. The Group recognises the importance of staff training
and thus regularly provides internal and external training for its staff
to enhance their skills and knowledge.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market
conditions.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
Financial Statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes are set out in note 11 to the
Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme has been adopted to provide incentive
or reward to eligible persons for their contribution to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest. No share
options have been granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in the Shares:

EEREFETRABRAQAFAREMBEE X
) 69 B2 47 - 4 B R 4D B R P R A R AR R K

v}

R-B-—AREF=ZA=+—B BFRARQFX
RITRABRARBRERYEZE (EELE
7 REIE GRPIEXVED) BB - ARRER D K (B #E
EPHEGAREBR S LB GROIEXVEEET R
FEBDHMEARNRE MR IEEE AR (B
ERBEES KRB RN BRIEREREE
SRERENREIAR)  IRBEFHFLHE
{51 55 35216k 78 AT 8% I % 16k P 32t 55 =T fff O 4 25
FORR SRR AR E AR B S5 4615FT L E
FETRZNRERERANE AN A LB
B R FORBIAT

RBRGOEEFRE:

Percentage
of aggregate
interests to

Number of total issued
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held share capital
BEREEE
EBITRAN
% B ERtE iR A Baok
Mr. Kan (Note a) Interest in controlled corporation 69,000,000 1.70%
BxE (Hita) REEHER 2 s
Mr. Chia Beneficial owner 14,600,000 0.36%
A EnEAA
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Notes:

(@ Mr. Kan is the sole beneficial owner of Shunleetat, which was interested in
69,000,000 Shares. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed to be interested
in all the Shares held by Shunleetat.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2016,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or are deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the Group
or who/which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO with details as follows:

TERREEMATREQTRSG RHEEB
R SR KE

REZMM R-_F—R"EF=ZA=+—H 177
AL/ B (EFHARTEZITHABRI)
A R A RIZE 5 M E RO FEXVER
FE2N B3N BRI R AR AR B E R A A A
Pefn - R B E RS IOAR  HEE
SEERFEBAIREMBER TEAEBEAKE
RAWBRAE R ZHERIERIRAEES%
FAENERIORE  KEALERARAIR
BREFRBEGIIEBERMFEZERLRMZ
BRIORR  FIBEMT

Long position in the Shares: RBOHEE:
Number of underlying
Shares under
Number of Shares held convertible notes (Note a)
AREREBETZ
RO #E HBRGHE (H:ta)
Percentage
of aggregate
Interest in Interest in interests to
Beneficial controlled Beneficial controlled Total total issued
Name owner corporation owner corporation interests share capital
RS
REE RS & HERERT
A8 BEREEA EEZER | §:3 2PN EE 2R il REABAE
China Xinhua NNC FEHENHERA 1,188,621,377 - 1,311,378,623 - 2,500,000,000 61.65%
(Note b) (Note b)
(Htb) (Hito)
CNC China FEFENEERE (PE) - 1,188,621,377 - 1,311,378,623  2,500,000,000 61.65%
(Note b) (Note b)
(Hitp) (Histp)
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Notes:

(@) Details of the convertible notes were set out in the circulars of the
Company dated 19 November 2011 and 6 January 2015.

(b)  China Xinhua NNC is wholly and beneficially owned by CNC China.
Accordingly, CNC China is deemed to be interested in the 1,188,621,377
Shares and 1,311,378,623 underlying Shares held by China Xinhua NNC
under the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors
were not aware of any other person/entity (other than the
Directors or chief executive as disclosed in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above) who which had, or is deemed to
have, interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or who which were directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or who/which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during the year
or subsisting at the end of the year are set out below:

Mt -

@ FHREEBENFBEHENRARRBHRA/S-_T——F
T—ATNABER=ZE—RF—-ARENBH-

b) FEHEFREEGBHPRFEREERE (F

ED2ERE=EA Al BREEHFLRBPEE
Bl REFEFESER (PR)EELEEEFE
NEFEEGEMEEM1,188,621,3778K A% D K&
1,311,378,6230% A8 B8 A% 17 #) 1 2

B EXEEEN RZE—XRF=ZA=1+—8"

MEFEMA Mﬂgﬂﬁ@Ai/E% WIEE
X [EERFETHRABRAR A REIGH)
Bkt  HEARDERENER AR | —
BIBEBECESHEETHAS) BEEHER
REABRBESLAEGOIEXVEIE2RE3D
MEVEXRR AR RIREN AR FRA 12
B EESNERSOAE IEZENHEERE
B AR ERMER T RSB ERBKE R F 8RR
RRE FREOEERIRAREES%IA EHY
ERRE  XEATHENRARAREES R
HI B 5GP E3361 17 B 2 Bt 2 # 30K

A

=

J% 3R 90 165

RERFT LN FERIFEZ K 2
BEIIT

71

2015/2016 3 FHEFESRERFRAF



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEERE

On 9 December 2011, the Company issued convertible notes with
the principal amount of approximately HK$607,030,000, carried
interest at the rate of 5% per annum as part of the consideration
for the acquisition of Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific. Each note entitles
the holder to convert to ordinary shares at a conversion price of
approximately HK$0.196 per share. Conversion may occur at any
time between 9 December 2011 and 8 December 2014. If the
notes have not been converted, the Company would redeem on
9 December 2014 at the outstanding principal amount. Interest of
5% per annum would be paid annually until the notes are converted
or redeemed. On 9 December 2014, the Company entered into
the supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC pursuant to which
the Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend certain
terms and conditions of the convertible notes, where (i) the maturity
date of the outstanding convertible notes with principal amount of
HK$277,030,210 was extended for 3 years and the conversion
period was accordingly extended for 3 years to 9 December 2017;
and (i) the interest rate of the convertible notes was amended
from 5% per annum to 3% per annum for the extended period,
being from 9 December 2014 to 9 December 2017. Except for
above-mentioned, the other terms remained unchanged. If the
notes have not been converted, the Company will redeem on 9
December 2017 at the outstanding principal amount. Interest of
3% per annum will be paid annually until the notes are converted or
redeemed.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates including spouses and children under 18
years of age was granted by the Company or its subsidiaries any
right to acquire Shares or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate, or had exercised any such right during the year
ended 31 March 2016.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31
March 2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public
throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and as at the date of
this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into following continuing
connected transactions:
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Television Broadcasting Right Agreement

On 5 September 2011, Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific entered into
a television broadcasting right agreement (the “Television
Broadcasting Right Agreement”) with China Xinhua NNC, pursuant
to which China Xinhua NNC granted the television broadcasting
right in respect of broadcasting information contents from Xinhua
News Agency under the CNC Channels on television channels
in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the PRC) to the Group for
an annual fee of HK$1.0 million prior to 31 December 2016 and
HK$3.0 million with effective from 1 January 2017. The Television
Broadcasting Right Agreement has a term of 120 months from 1
September 2011 to 31 August 2021. Since China Xinhua NNC
is a substantial shareholder of the Company, and therefore a
connected person of the Company within the meaning of the GEM
Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated under the Television
Broadcasting Right Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CRU Framework Agreement

On 19 December 2012, CNC China and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC (“MOFCOM”) Department of Foreign Investment
Administration entered into an advertisement broadcasting
agreement (the “MOFCOM Advertisement Broadcasting
Agreement”) in relation to the provision of advertising resources
of the television channels controlled by CNC China to broadcast
advertisements of the MOFCOM Department of Foreign Investment
Administration.
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On 25 December 2012, Sichuan Branch of Xinhua News
Agency and Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd entered
into an advertisement broadcasting agreement (the “Wuliangye
Advertisement Broadcasting Agreement”) in relation to the
provision of advertising resources of the television channels
controlled by CNC China to broadcast advertisements of Yibin
Wauliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. On 22 July 2013, CNC China
and Sichuan Branch of Xinhua News Agency entered into
the advertisement broadcasting authorisation agreement (the
“Wuliangye Advertisement Broadcasting Authorisation Agreement”)
in relation to the provision of advertising resources of the television
channels controlled by CNC China to broadcast advertisements of
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd.

To support the operation of the Company, on 22 July 2013, the
Company and CNC China entered into the CRU Framework
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company will and will procure
its subsidiaries to provide advertising resources on the television
channels controlled by the Company to CNC China and its
associates for the advertisement business of independent third
party clients undertook by them. As consideration, CNC China
and its associates will pay advertisement broadcasting fees to the
Company and its subsidiaries. The CRU Framework Agreement will
have a term of 3 years ending on 31 March 2016.

In order to implement the CRU Framework Agreement, on 22 July
2013, Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific entered into a channel resources
usage agreement (the “MOFCOM CRU Agreement”) with CNC
China, pursuant to which Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific agreed to provide
advertising resources on its television channels to CNC China
for broadcasting advertisements of the MOFCOM Department of
Foreign Investment Administration. On the same day, Xinhua TV
Asia-Pacific entered into a channel resources usage agreement
(the “Wuliangye CRU Agreement”) with CNC China pursuant
to which Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific agreed to provide advertising
resources on its television channels to CNC China for broadcasting
advertisements of Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Co., Ltd. Both
MOFCOM CRU Agreement and Wuliangye CRU Agreement
became effective on 22 July 2013 and will end on 31 March 2016.
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As consideration for using such advertising resources, CNC
China will pay the Group 50% of the advertisement broadcasting
fees (after deducting applicable PRC taxes) it receives from the
MOFCOM Department of Foreign Investment Administration under
the MOFCOM Advertisement Broadcasting Agreement (including
those received before the effectiveness of the MOFCOM CRU
Agreement); and 50% of the advertisement broadcasting fees (after
deducting applicable PRC taxes) it receives from Sichuan Branch
of Xinhua News Agency under the Wuliangye Advertisement
Broadcasting Authorisation Agreement (including those received
before the effectiveness of the Wuliangye CRU Agreement). Such
advertisement broadcasting fees that CNC China are entitled to
equal to 30% of the advertisement broadcasting fees that Sichuan
Branch of Xinhua News Agency receives from Yibin Wuliangye
Liguor Sales Co., Ltd. under the Wuliangye Advertisement
Broadcasting Agreement (including those received before the
effectiveness of the Wuliangye Advertisement Broadcasting
Authorisation Agreement).

Since CNC China is a substantial shareholder and a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the GEM Listing
Rules, the transactions contemplated under the CRU Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Announcement Posting Agreements

On 3 May 2016 and 6 May 2015, the Company entered into
agreements (the “Announcement Posting Agreements”) with Hong
Kong Listco Limited (“HKLC”) pursuant to which HKLC will provide
the Company with the service of dissemination of announcements
including hosting and posting of announcements, press releases
or other documents as required by the GEM Listing Rules on the
website(s) of the Group at a monthly service fee of HK$750 for a
term of one year commencing from 1 July 2016 and 1 July 2015
respectively. HKLC is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chia. The Company considers
it more cost effective to engage a professional firm to take up this
announcement posting obligation after listing.

76

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

ERNAZEREERCRE PR ENE
BRA (FE) BRAEBZNEBBREHEHBE
ERNIHE R BINRIRE EE RN &
ERWRE (KNRERzPRFER) (2R
RS E B R R A RERFI BN ER)
250%  RERBERRERESEREERZ
EL) DR ESERE (KHNRE
RzhBEFIERE) (BERAEBRIBEZRG
At ERAIEWE 2 B ) 250% ° F R
FEEGE (PR IES ZEREENES
REERLT DB B RERESENIGE
BEERERAEHEERETATKMZES
BB (BERARRESBIIRERHEX
AIEWE 2 &) 230% °

HRPBEHEFRERE (TE) RARBEE
BREBEAL (EERAIERETHRR) X
RIBAIZER E AR R ZE20F - SAEERIERIE
RipER NRETORZERARE 2 FER
B

I B 2 0 160 R

b_\ g_/\iﬁﬂ El&—? ﬂfﬁﬁﬂ/‘_\a ’

ARARAREMBERATR (TARIEMAE])
Alaztiek ([TIEAMEE]) - Bt AFEA

MBRARRIREAMEMRY BIERASE
B A8k e B R T B A - 1R BE R B Sk B AR
tﬁﬁ%ﬁEZﬁﬁX#th%$%%m®§
PRERZE—XREFLHA—HEZZE—
ﬁtﬂ—at%%—ﬁogﬂéﬂME—%E
BAEMKLNAR AFHEEZEERES -
ARARRBR EMEZE -—HFEEAREER
Bz EEE KA



GEM Listing Rules Implications

Pursuant to Rule 20.41 of the GEM Listing Rules, the transactions
contemplated under the Television Broadcasting Right Agreement
are subject to the applicable reporting, annual review and
disclosure requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company will comply with the applicable reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements,
as the case may be, under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
upon any variation or renewal of the Television Broadcasting Right
Agreement.

Also pursuant to Rule 20.41 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
transactions contemplated under the CRU Framework Agreement
are subject to the applicable reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements but exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
because the highest applicable percentage ratio of the annual
caps, calculated on an annual basis, is more than 0.1% but less
than 5%. The Company will comply with the applicable reporting,
disclosure and independent shareholders’ approval requirements,
as the case may be, under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules
upon any variation or renewal of the CRU Framework Agreement.

As the annual service fee payable under the Announcement
Posting Agreements referred to above is less than HK$1.0 million
and none of the percentage ratios, on an annual basis, equals or
exceeds 5%, and that the Announcement Posting Agreements
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, the transactions under the Announcement Posting
Agreements are exempt continuing connected transactions of the
Company pursuant to Rule 20.33(3)(c) of the GEM Listing Rules,
which are exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates has any other conflict

of interests with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 41 to 60

of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

*

78

On 2 February 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with independent third parties pursuant
to which a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company will
acquire 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Culture Company at
a total consideration of HK$600,000,000. The consideration
will be partly settled by cash and partly by the issue and
allotment of consideration shares. The primary business of
Shenzhen Culture Company and its subsidiary is the operation
and management of Shenzhen City Culture Creative Park*
GERINT XL AIZE) in return for rental income including
management fee. The proposed acquisition has not yet been
completed as at the reporting date. Further details of the
proposed acquisition were set out in the announcement of the
company dated 3 June 2016.

On 2 June 2016, the Company entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”) with Tian Mai Ju Yuan (Beijing) Technology
Company Limited* (RIRER (L 3) BB R A F]) (the
“Cooperation Partner”), pursuant to which the Company
and the Cooperation Partner established a cooperation
partnership so as to jointly develop the television e-commerce
business and the exclusive and originated emerging mode of
development of television business to expand the revenue of
the Group. Further details are set out in the announcement of
the company dated 2 June 2016.

for identification purpose only
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AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited which
will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the
forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Hao
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BIAZRBEEE

B e EH AR A

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNC
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 226, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 15 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEHERRAMMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

Revenue
Cost of services

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Amortisation expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

Impairment loss on intangible assets
Impairment loss on trade receivables

Loss before income tax
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income

[tems that may be classified
subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive loss
for the year
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Notes
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12
20
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2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—AHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
370,939 369,635
(302,288) (346,553)
68,651 23,082
906 4,136
1,950 10,083
(23,598) (24,088)
(97) (226)
(34,992) (33,121)
(5,773) 502
7,047 (19,632)
(34,276) (25,720)
(19,751) =
(2,238) =
(49,218) (45,352)
2,775 3,629
(46,443) (41,723)
(1,388) 108
(1,388) 108
(47,831) (41,615)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HEHERRAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

Loss for the year attributable to the

owners of the Company

Total comprehensive loss for
the year attributable to
the owners of the Company

Loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted (HK cents)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEEMBRAR

At 31 March 2016 R-ZF—NF=HA=4+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Current assets
Film rights
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Finance lease payables
Employee benefits
Bank overdraft
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

HRBEE
E RN Y
BVEE

A 4 7518

BBESEATE
ANRZEREE
ReMREEHEY

HEE

RBEE

B 5 R EME MR

MEMREEMNFIA
EEREH
RITEX
EHNEARE

REBEERE

HEERARBER

%
B 5 K A e R IR

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000
Kt FET FE T
18 40,662 40,791
20 99,310 141,081
139,972 181,872

22 - -
24 27,134 23,335
25 116,890 87,122
1,123 -

27 6,344 12,117
28 127,377 62,166
278,868 184,740

418,840 366,612

29 106,951 90,122
30 5,249 4,936
g7 3,354 2,569
32 - 5,978
15,278 7,932

130,832 111,537

148,036 73,203

288,008 255,075
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEEMBRAR

At31 March 2016 R-ZE—N#F=H=+—H

Non-current liabilities FknBEE
Finance lease payables BEMERMNRIAE
Promissory note L ER
Convertible notes AR E
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEE

Total liabilities weE

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8f8)FE

Capital and reserves BEXR#HE
Share capital [N
Reserves G

Total equity R

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2016 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Hao
ROE
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes

it

30
33
34
35

36

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
4,197 4,673
40,995 38,080
211,482 203,326
26,703 37,962
283,377 284,041
414,209 395,578
4,631 (28,966)
4,055 3,693
576 (32,659)
4,631 (28,966)

EXg R T A"EXRATRB#EREE
TEGEEMBHRE XHTIATRRESS

A

a0
RR

Zou Chen Dong
PR R
Director

EF

BERS 2 M iE Rt FER A M Bk 2 — 8D °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GFEEDBYR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

At 1 April 2014
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year:
ltems that may be classified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Issue of shares pursuant to placing

Transaction costs attributable to issue of
shares pursuant o placing

Issue of shares pursuant to the conversion
of convertible notes

Transfer to accumulated losses upon
mature of convertible notes

Recognition of convertible notes equity
reserves on extension of convertible notes

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year:
ltems that may be classified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Issue of shares pursuant to placing

Transaction costs attributable to issue of
shares pursuant to placing

Issue of shares pursuant to the conversion
of convertible notes

Capital contribution from a shareholder

At 31 March 2016

9 The aggregate amount of these balances of approximately HK$576,000 in
surplus (2015: approximately HK$32,659,000 in deficit) was included as
reserves in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March

2016.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

RWZE-MENA—H
FNEE

EREMEEMA:
ERASEERECAR

BERNEBLERER

ERzERA/ (BR) &R

RERERTRA
REEEXTRNENS
LBHA
REAETERRERT]T
)
TRRZRISRERE
Z:BR
ERUARRREED
TARRRREHR
ERUARRREL
BEHARR

R=ZE-RF=A=t-8kK
—Z-H4MA-A

ER2EBRER

RELEXTHRH

BRERERTROEN
RIBA

BEARTERRERT
i)

—ARRIE

RZZ-—~F=A=1—H

consolidated financial statements.

Foreign
Convertible currency
Share Share Capital  notes equity translation Other  Accumulated Total
capital premium* reserves* reserves* reserves* reserves* losses” equity
TRREE HEBE
BA Ry aE EARE BEfRE R Hipfe gitiE aEs
HK8000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TET TET FET TET TET FET TET Tz
(note 36) (note 37) (note 34) (note 37) (note 37) (note 37)
(Hiit36) (Hits7) (Hits4) (Hitsr) (Hiztsr) (Hii#37)
1,980 795912 - 15,663 45 9,868 (1,231,407) (407,939)
- - - - - - (41,723) (41,729)
- - - - 108 - - 108
- - - - 108 - (41,723) (41,615)
33 83,390 - - - - - 83,725
- 2118 - - - - - 2,118
1,378 277,829 - (7,731) - - - 271,476
- - - (7,932) - - 7932 -
- - - 80,844 - - - 80,844
- - - (13,339) - - - (13,339)
3,693 1,165,013 - 67,505 153 9,868 (1,265,198) (28,966)
- - - - - - (46,443) (46,443)
_ - = - (1,389) - = (1,389)
- - - (1,388) - (46,443) (47,831)
260 64,740 - - - - - 65,000
- (1,695) - - - - - (1,665)
102 20,097 - (4,874) - - - 15,326
- - 2,758 - - - - 2,758
4,065 1,238,195 2,758 62,631 (1,235) 9,868 (1,311,641) 4,631
* O RZFE-AFZHA=F—H ZEAEESRLS
576,000,872 Bth (= F—HF - #932,659,000%
T2 EAY) B AT AR & BB R A B 1

2015/2016 3 FHEFESRERFRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

Notes
Bt
Cash flows from operating activities #E& EBEL 2
HEeERE
Loss before income tax KR TS T RIS 1B
Adjustments for: T
Amortisation expenses B
Depreciation of property, Y BEMREEITE
plant and equipment 10
Net gains on disposal of property, HEWE -BE K
plant and equipment B W aIF R 8
Finance costs BE KA 12
Waliver of interests on RREEZEERNE
promissory note 7
Waiver of interests RRAIMIRER 2
on convertible notes FE 7

Changes in fair value of financial assets & B8 512 A&

at fair value through profit or loss ANRZEMEEL
N EZE
Gains arising from extension of ERAHBBESXZ

promissory note Wz 8

Impairment loss on intangible assets BEEEZ
RIE &R 20
Impairment loss on trade receivables 5 RWIAZ
VEREYSEi=! 25
Interest income FEWA 7
Dividend income R 2 A 7
Exchange (gain)/loss, net X (W),
Eia - F 8 8
Operating cash flows before EEEARSHA Z
movements in working capital REFSHRE
Increase in inventories FEIE N

Increase in trade and other receivables 2 5 & H b fE 3k 1B

)i
Increase/(decrease) in trade and 2 5 R HMERKIB
other payables #hn, COfd)

Increase in employee benefits & 8 & F1)3% h1
Purchase of financial assets at fair value fBE B BETDZEATE
through profit or loss ARZEREE
Proceeds from disposals of financial HEBZBEREATE
assets at fair value through profitorloss ABRZ & REEZ
Fri8 k8

% CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

2016 2015
—E—RfF —ZE—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#T
(49,218) (45,352)
23,598 24,088
17,746 18,265
(793) (1,455)
34,276 25,720

- (4,054)

(400) —
5,773 (502)

- (8,708)

19,751 —
2,238 -
(315) (49)
(142) -
(1,157) 80
51,357 8,033
(3,799) (8,380)
(33,006) (8,318)
12,560 (23,458)
785 474

- (31,018)

- 29,888




Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Income tax (paid)/refunded

Net cash generated from/(used in)

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-

sale financial assets
Deposits refunded/(paid) for
acquisition of a subsidiary
Additions of film rights
Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of
shares pursuant to placing

Transaction costs attributable to issue of

shares pursuant to placing
Finance lease charges paid

Repayment of finance lease payables

Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Notes

HiiE

rEms/ (A zR:
(B REMSH

REEBREB
(FrA) R FE

REEFHELEZ
RERE

HEME  BEMEREZ
PS55I

BEYE WELERE

HEAHEESREE
FT 1S 58

Yo B — R FT B 2 =)
RE/(EMEE

NE BR R E

EHAE

B AR

REZBARS TR

MEFHELEZ
RERg
RIRAC & E 1T
PS5 5RIA

RIRACE 1T
1R 3 Z RN
EffRVEHERE
BEMEHERNKIEA
E A8

BMEFHMERTFHE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
27,897 (32,779)
(2,261) 151
25,636 (32,628)
2,680 1,832
(14,025) (7,239)
- 400
1,000 (1,000)
(1,578) (2,129
315 49
142 -
(11,466) (8,087)
65,000 83,725
(1,655) (2,118)
(355) (375)
(5,642) (4,783)
(98) (183)
57,250 76,266
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

Notes
iorza
Net increase in cash and HERBREEEY
cash equivalents 3 hnF AR
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERBRELEEY
at the beginning of the year
Effects of foreign exchange rate Exgasoge

changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRBEEREELEEY
of the year

Analysis of the balance of cashand RE&RBEELZEYEE

cash equivalents: i

Being: Bl :
Cash and cash equivalents ReMASEED
Bank overdraft RITEX

The accompany notes form an integral part of these consolidated K&k 2 Mi it Bt F4R & B gk 2 — &

financial statements.
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2016 2015
—E—-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
71,420 &15,/561
56,188 20,609
(231) 08
127,377 56,188
127,377 62,166
- (5,978)
127,377 56,188
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 15 March 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are located at the offices of Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands and Suites 2708 — 2710, 27/F, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
respectively.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding,
provision of management services and television broadcasting
business. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the
provision of waterworks engineering services, road works
and drainage services and site formation works for the public
sector in Hong Kong, television broadcasting business in the
Asia-Pacific region (excluding the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”)) in return for advertising and related revenue and
large outdoor display screen advertisement business in the
PRC.

At 31 March 2016, the major shareholder of the Company
is China Xinhua News Network Co., Limited (“China Xinhua
NNC”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong.

—REH

ARRR—_E—ZF=ZA+HAREHAS
HERANEF2E (—NA—FEMS &
e RIER]) RASHEEMN L RER R
EREEAR - ARR ZAMPERERE
22 2h 5 Il 4 Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111 » Cayman Islands &2 & i &+ &
THT3E1085% A FT & Al /0271#82708-2710

o

i

ARAZEBRBGRWNEER RHEEE
RFREBRBERES MEKB AR ZE
ZRBAAETERRERFIRHKRBT
IR - B T2 MRS ARAS A S st 88 %
BIR YREAR (TEREPEARLM
(T E]) ) REERBMER UEEF
&S RARRA U AR A R B E R B B A1)
BN REE XS

R-T—RE=A=1—H ARFRIZEE
BRATEMEFHERBEERLAF ([H
BMEHREEGASE])  —KREBBEMK
AVAPA/NCI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations (‘new and
revised HKFRSs”) issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)that are relevant to its
operations and effective for annual periods on or after 1 April
2015.

Amendments to HKAS 19  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
HKFRS 2010 — 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to

HKFRS 2011 — 2013 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments?®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

2. ERMITREETEEMBREER
(BBMBREEN]) (&)

B BB RERZHT REBTE R

B EEL

AEBEWERZFPRA TS R/ME B RE
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BRRBRE
E15%
B R BRE%ER
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B4 (BFTAK)
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(B3TA)
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E10RRABEH
KR 28%:
CHEY
BB RHRELER
F105% - BB K
WEERF12% R
BB oL
F28% (BFTA)
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

e

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or
after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016,
with earlier application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another
revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to
include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EAFIRKETEAYKREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IEBAMEREER]) (£)
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective CHEMAERRERZFHITIRKEITEEY

(Continued) BIREER (&)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BEEYNBHEER IS LHMTA (&)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: BBV BREERFESR 2 EEHE:

e Al recognised financial assets that are within the scope e EEASHEAFIRERMITH
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and REGTEHEEAZMBEERESHE
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised EHEHRBEXNAI A FETE-
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are BEEmMS BEMNAKREGHNRERE
held within a business model whose objective is to collect CEBEARNFE UEKGHRS
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual NEEREEAERHKREELRSH
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and EEFBZEBBEE —MRE%R
interest on the principal outstanding are generally EHRBREBHEHAATE-REHNRRA
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent RUEENASREATEESCHEE
reporting periods. Debt instruments that are held within ZEBEARRAEZAEBIE UK
a business model whose objective is achieved both by EMEEZANGRSRETE BHE
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial E7REMEERINEAERKRER
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial reMEZEBIR RAFEYK
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are WREMEEKEANERE 2 A
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal BE-AEEMERKRERBRAKRES
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through REZSFTHERERATFEFZE 1
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments SN IRIBE B BRELNFSE &
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at Bo{ER AR EEZENREMEE
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, W 2P ARE (WIEFEEE) 2
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrecoverable HEATFEEZE m—RERNEBERENA
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value R B A -

of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

96

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a material impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practical to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

A REET TRV BREER
(BBMBREEN]) (&)

B BB RERZHT REBTE R
B|EER (&)

BEBUBHREERFIRNEHMITR (&)

RARESTERE BN BHRELERFEIR A
‘A e HRaMERERFMERCc2ER
FT{EL 2 MEBEKEARLE - AT - RAK
EETAAEMRI BN B REELE
R HEBRMHEE AL T ER(T

BB BHEERE1SHRKEEF EAH
W 5%

BB MBI E LRI E1557 2 A M H A
E-RE-2ARAHERBREHIEEF
BRMEENREAR REENBREE
AIZE165R AR - EI AR H N EFB
SR EAIFE18R W BB T ERIF 1
SRS X RAEEREN S RERES

ERMBREENFEISRNZORAIARE
B8 P SR L [7) 5 P AR A iﬁ‘iﬁﬁf}%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

o8

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

e  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how to
account for the acquisition of a joint operation that constitutes
a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
Specifically, the amendments state that the relevant principles
on accounting for business combinations in HKFRS 3 and
other standards (e.g. HKAS 12 Income Taxes regarding the
recognition of deferred taxes at the time of acquisition and
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets regarding impairment testing
of a cash-generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of
a joint operation has been allocated) should be applied. The
same requirements should be applied to the formation of a
joint operation if and only if an existing business is contributed
to the joint operation by one of the parties that participate in
the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for
business combinations.

The amendments should be applied prospectively to
acquisitions of interests in joint operations (in which the
activities of the joint operations constitute business as
defined in HKFRS 3) occurring from the beginning of annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 11 may have an impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the future should
such transactions arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=HA=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
prohibit entities from using a revenue-based depreciation
method for items of property, plant and equipment. The
amendments to HKAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an appropriate
basis for amortisation of an intangible asset. This
presumption can only be rebutted in the following two limited
circumstances:

a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Method of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continueq)

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation and
amortisation for its property, plant and equipment, and
intangible assets respectively. The directors of the Company
believe that the straight-line method is the most appropriate
method to reflect the consumption of economic benefits
inherent in the respective assets and accordingly, the directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture:
Bearer Plants

The amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
and HKAS 41 Agriculture define a bearer plant and require
biological assets that meet the definition of a bearer plant to be
accounted for as property, plant and equipment in accordance
with HKAS 16, instead of HKAS 41. The produce growing on
bearer plants continues to be accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 41.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the Group is not engaged in
agricultural activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate

financial statement:

e At cost

e |n accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted

HKFRS 9), or

e Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of

investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change

in status occurred.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements (Continued)

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance
in HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or
disposal group) from held for sale to held for distribution to
owners (or vice versa). The amendments clarify that such
a change should be considered as a continuation of the
original plan of disposal and hence requirements set out in
HKFRS 5 regarding the change of sale plan do not apply.
The amendments also clarify the guidance for when held-for-
distribution accounting is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate used
to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The
assessment of the depth of a market for high quality corporate
bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the same currency
as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which there
is no deep market in such high quality corporate bonds, the
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments will have a material effect on
the amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
a material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the disclosures
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“cO).

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended
with reference to the new CO and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been
changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2015 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the
new requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continueq)

(b) Basis of preparation

106

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which
are described as follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand dollars (HK$'000) except otherwise
indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e  has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group'’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the

other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

® rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and,
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea) 4. BEXRETTBE (£)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (a) #HREBE (&)

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate o FETRTEELEATH K&
that the Group has, or does not have, the current EERise D EEMEEES 2 FMA
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time EMEERERL(BERATR
that decisions need to be made, including voting RARELEZIREFN) ©

patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group B AR ZEGE ARRASEEREE
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the B AR 2 SRR WRA
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income EEAXEFBAMB AR ZIEFIEER
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed - BT FRAMKRESLENB
of during the year are included in the consolidated RAIZBWARFAR T B A EERGFE
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Hl#E s AT AR Ea R REME
income from the date the Group gains control until the AR BEASBTHIENEHAE
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary. MEBAFzBEALE-

Profit or loss and each component item of other B kEMEmks 2 SEE/KER
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of TISEBRARRIHAE A RIEE IR E
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total moMBARIZZEWABE D
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to ERNAIHEEARIEERER (B
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling phReBHYIEERERSHIREA)

interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEFE MBARZHERESE
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting AR UAEHESEHARREAREE
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. FEBE B

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, EERARFE—EENEE -
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions WA FAxREBAAEERKERQAME
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on RPZERERRE KB KBS
consolidation. $H o
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

110

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(b) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

e  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=-A=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

112

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(b) Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, with the corresponding gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(b)

(c)

114

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), or additional
assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(c)

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(d)

116

Interests in joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

e its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

e jts liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

e its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

e its share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

e jts expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with other parties to the joint
operation, and gains and losses resulting from the sale or
contribution are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those asset to
a third party.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuea) 4. BEXRETTBE (£)

(e) Property, plant and equipment () ME- -BERKZHE
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the M- BB RERERKARER R
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less ENMEEZZRFDRERESRE (108 ) R4
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent B EARAKTIER -

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, BE O B) TP BR DA A B - (B 1T I
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, % 2 MR R 2 RRE
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes EBEIIE KABEEXEAR (HE
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing BEREEMS ) REASESER
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s EERZEERR - ZEMER T
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to R AIERE AR D E AR E ER
the appropriate categories of property, plant and B B NG ZEEERNEE
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. AIYEREE R iR B E ) 2 & B 4
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other BHEERIBITE -

property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of MEDREEXNABEFGREEB &
assets less their residual values over their useful lives, H A] {5 A3 4 B DA B AR OE WS 0 DA R
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, Rt EAEH  FREERTE
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed ERE W E AR - EAEEE
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of BRI AR AR - B AN F E
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective BAeExEEFERINT:

basis. The principal annual rates used for the current year
are as follows:

Site offices Over the respective project terms HWEHAE IREBEEEN
HRGFH

Leasehold 30% or over the respective life of HEYZE #E30%IEEEE

improvements the leases, whichever is shorter & HIRR (LAERRE &

RE)FE

Machinery 20% - 30% s 20% - 30%

Furniture and fixtures 20% HKEREKE 20%

Office equipment 20% WMRAER 20%

Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(f

118

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

U]

(9)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(9)

(h)

120

Intangible assets (Continueq)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Film rights

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Cost comprises
direct production expenditures and an appropriate
portion of production overheads. The cost of film rights
are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in accordance
with a formula computed to write off the cost over the
broadcast period.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised

when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i

122

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, of
which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through
profit or loss when the financial asset is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as part of a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (i) held
for trading or (jii) it is designated as at fair value through
profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading or contingent consideration that may be paid by
an acquirer as part of a business combination may be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

e the financial assets forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at
fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 43.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=-A=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective

interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i

126

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i

128

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables, finance lease payables and bank overdraft)

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

The component parts of convertible notes issued by
the Company are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration
of the conversion option.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the lives of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.

Promissory note
Promissory note is recognised initially at their fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z&
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i

132

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on
the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

@)

134

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts for variation orders
and claims. Contract costs comprise direct materials,
costs of subcontracting, direct labour, borrowing
costs attributable directly to the construction and an
appropriate portion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date relative to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are
included to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

)

(k)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown
as the amounts due to customers for contract work.
Amounts received before the related work is performed
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position, as a liability, as advances received under trade
and other payables. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade
and other receivables.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(0

136

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised on
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the certification by architects. If the certificate
of architects was not provided, revenue is recognised
by reference to the proportion of actual costs incurred
up to the date to the estimated total cost of the relevant
contract.

Advertising revenue, net of agency commission
expenses, is recognised upon the broadcast of the
relevant advertisements.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established (provided that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’'s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(m) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before income tax’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(m) Taxation (Continued)

138

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(m) Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,

except when they relate to items that are recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which

case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised

in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from

the initial accounting for a business combination, the

tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.

(n) Employee benefits

1.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised when
they accrue to employees. In particular, a provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of reporting period. Non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(n)

(o)

140

Employee benefits (Continued)
3. Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a
result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

4. Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payments payable on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method, discounted to its present value and
reduced by entitiements accrued under the Group’s
retirement plans that are attributable to contributions
made by the Group.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

4. EXREHBE(H)

(o) EEREFEE (BERMD) 2BE

(%)

] W [B] & B8 7 22 T EURR 5 5 R AN B i
REEzESE -NhEREER
AFEFRAIR S RER A B ATRLIR KA,
REHRAEE ZBARE X R
BREmEHERRRAEEREEZR
PR R E  MARKIR & RE R G

A 4 0 L B o

HEE (HREELEENM) 2B S
BAFHEREREE  MIKZEE (3K
ReEASEM) 2 RREREERR
Y (3] < B8 = R {28 A5 18 B B 1A 18 2 e

27
o

REBENERED EE (SRE
EEBM) 2 REEEMEALEHG
Atz AR El 5 SN REE
TREBBMZEE (RS ELEM)
B N T RUR B B 18 T R
EZRHE{EORERRZEERR

BE PR

() BERIRAEE

W ASERBEEMHEERBERK
HERME MAKEAEARTERE:
FAIAREMAFZEE R AlE

FERR RS -

2015/2016 ik HEMEERZERFRLA

141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(p)

(q)

142

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. WWhen a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(r)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of foreign currency translation reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(s) Segment information

(t)

144

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Related party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
entity that is preparing the financial statements:

(1) A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(t)

Related parties (Continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies:

)

(i)

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsorship employers
are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
service to the Group’s or the Group’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq)

(t)

(u)

146

Related parties (Continued)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a reporting entity and a
related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

Current assets and current liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the reporting date or in the normal course of
the operating cycle. Current liabilities are expected to be
settled within twelve months of the reporting date or in
the normal course of the operating cycle.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those

involving estimations (see below), that management has made

in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies

and that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

()

148

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction
contracts as stated in note 4(j), the Group uses the
percentage of completion method to determine the
appropriate revenues to be recognised in a given period.
If the construction contract works are not certified, the
stage of completion is measured by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the
Group needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each
construction contract, which was determined based on
the estimated total construction contract costs and total
construction contract sum, including confirmed variation
orders and claims, and liquidated damages. If the actual
gross profit margin of construction contract differs from
the management’s estimates, the construction contract
revenue to be recognised within the next year will need to
be adjusted accordingly.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables

The provision for impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and aging analysis of accounts and
on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
account. If the financial conditions of the debtors were
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be required.

(i) Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
management to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill and intangible assets
as at 31 March 2016 were approximately HK$ nil and
approximately HK$99,310,000 respectively (2015: HK$
nil and approximately HK$141,081,000). Details of the
impairment loss calculation are disclosed in note 21.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueq)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

150

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether the financial
assets and non-financial assets have suffered any
impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 4(i) and 4(o) respectively. The assets
are reviewed for the impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount.
The determination of recoverable amount requires an
estimation of future cash flows and the selection of
appropriate discount rates.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of broadcasting right

The Group determines the estimated useful life at
10 years and related amortisation charges for its
broadcasting right. The estimate is based on the license
period of the broadcasting right acquired. Management
will revise the amortisation charge where the useful life is
difference to the one previously estimated.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Useful lives of film rights

The Group determines the estimated useful life in
accordance to the broadcast period of individual film
rights and amortisation for film rights is charged in
accordance to the broadcast period of individual film
rights. The estimate is based on forecasted customer
attrition pattern with reference to similar market
information. Management will revise the amortisation
charge where the useful life is difference to the one
previously estimated.

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The directors estimate the
net realisable value for construction materials based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the directors perform an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of each
reporting period and assess the need for write down of
inventories.

(viii) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
accordingly be adjusted in the relevant tax account in the
year in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

6. REVENUE 6. UWzm=

Revenue recognised during the years ended 31 March 2016 HE_ZT—RFER_T—AF=H=1—

and 2015 were as follows: HIEFERRZKENT
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—hHHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Construction works FEETIE 360,998 358,684
Advertising income 3= N 9,941 10,951
370,939 369,635

OTHER INCOME 7. HMWBA

Other income recognised during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015 were as follows:

HE-T-AFR-F-HF=A=1—
AL FERR L HRAMT -

Interest income ]S
Dividend income f% &

8
8
Waiver of interests on convertible notes ®BR R[N Z1E 2§ B (#/5#34)

(note 34)
Waiver of interests on
promissory note (note 33)

Sundry income IR

152
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REREAREZHE (A12E33)

2016 2015
= —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FRET
315 49

142 -

400 -

- 4,054

49 33

906 4,136




OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HtthmKRER

Other gains and losses recognised during the years ended 31

March 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

Exchange gain/(loss), net

Net gains on disposal of
property, plant and equipment

Gains arising from extension of
promissory note (Note 33)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

bE 5 Wws, (E18) - JF &R

LEWE  BE K
Bz W =FEE

IERAH BB E A 2 W5
(H1:#33)

Information reported to the executive directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the

purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance focuses on types of services delivered or

provided are:

(i)  Provision of waterworks engineering services — provision

of waterworks engineering services, road works and

drainage services and site formation works for public

sector in Hong Kong;

2015/2016 3 HEFESRERBRAF

RE-F AFR-F-BFZA=+—
B L% R 2 A s SR ¢

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
1,157 (80)

793 1,455

- 8,708

1,950 10,083

AARRBMITES (AEBEERRE) A
EBABENPBEERLFEDHREZE
RPN SRRz RGEES:

() RHEKBIRERE - BBERZBEM
RUKETIERSG BRIRENMRER
ARTS - TRIeE AR TR TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(i)  Television broadcasting business — the business of
broadcasting television programmes on television
channels operated by television broadcasting companies
in the Asia-Pacific region (excluding the PRC) in return for
advertising and related revenue; and

(i) Large outdoor display screen advertisement business —
the business of broadcasting advertisements on large
outdoor display screens in the PRC.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately

as each of the products and service lines requires different

resources as well as marketing approaches.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

DEER (&)

(i)

i)

ERERER-—FEMREKRE (T
FEHE) 2ERBERAGAEE 2
RIEBEHEITEARE B BIUARGE
RS %5 &

(2
=
B3,
=
=

Kﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁ%¢

AR EEEMMRBENFETRNER
ARGE R ARIR)EEF IR MLl EEE

DR D FE R

2 N A

R BIR Rl 2 3 M EE D BRI 0 ) U ER K

EENTWT e

BE-ZE—R"E=A=+—HLEE

Provision of Large outdoor

waterworks Television display screen

engineering  broadcasting advertisement
services business business Elimination Total

REKHE B AEEHNET
IERE BHER RESEX Eaf] @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue from external customers REMBEE 2 Wi 360,998 8,589 1,352 - 370,939
Inter-segment sales AR E - 2,586 - (2,586) -
Other income and gains Hip A Rz 1,295 3 1,379 - 2,677
Reportable segment revenue A 2H/A Pk 362,203 11,178 2,731 (2,586) 373,616
Reportable segment results AE2RDBEE 57,801 (46,181) (3,877) 7,743
Unallocated corporate income AAEEERA 854
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBMLERT (23,539)
Finance costs BREKA (34,276)
Loss before income tax BRETEEAER (49,218)
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Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 4. Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned/
loss incurred by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, gains arising from extension of
promissory note, interest income, finance costs, changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
waiver of interests on promissory note and convertible notes
and income tax expenses. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

2015/2016 3 HEFESRERBRAF

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oEER (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE T RA&=A=+—HILFE

Provision of Large outdoor

waterworks Television  display screen

engineering broadcasting  advertisement
services business business Elimination Total

RAKH B AEPIINET
TERS BHER RESER HiH et
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FET FHET FET
Revenue from external customers REIBEP 2 5 358,684 9,881 1,070 - 369,635
Inter-segment sales A E - 788 - (789) -
Other income and gains Hit A R dezs 3 1,455 - - 1,458
Reportable segment revenue DEE:LElen 358,687 12,124 1,070 (788) 371,093
Reportable segment results A2RHBEE 12,859 (25,396) 2,751) (15,288)
Unallocated corporate income RABMEERA 13,344
Unallocated corporate expenses RABMEERZ (17,688)
Finance costs A& A (25,720)
Loss before income tax BREEEAIEE (45,352)

EXERN D BREEKRBINEETP Z
Wegs e

BB B SR BOR B AT APT AL By AN R
SETBEAR - D EEF, (BE)NED
MERDEFRITEAR  ERALEE
EEzWeE FEWA BEKAK BBE
BSEATEARZEREEATEES:
RBRASEBERABBRIEZNERFAE
75t B S Al P SR ER B 048 I, E AE BV B 9B - Ut
DREBLERREZBRABEDEER
MeHERBZFES N -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead) 9. IHER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities REBIZAIZHRLREEDHE D EER
by reportable and operating segment: BEITWOT
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE—R"EF=HA=1+—H
Provision of Large outdoor
waterworks Television display screen
engineering broadcasting advertisement
services business business Total
KB4
R BR ErEAE )
IRR% BHER % st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment assets NHEE 168,671 101,774 10,615 281,060
Unallocated RARE 137,780
Consolidated assets REEE 418,840
Segment liabilities AEBE 66,139 20,452 2,342 88,933
Unallocated Vi 325,276
Consolidated liabilities ReafE 414,209
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—FRE=A=+—H
Provision of Large outdoor
waterworks Television  display screen
engineering  broadcasting  advertisement
services business business Total
| ABES)
Rk BB BrRES |
TRERH% B ¥% st
HKS oo HKS oo HK$ oo HK$ oo
FET FET FHET FET
Segment assets NEEE 129,475 145,299 11,132 285,906
Unallocated RO 80,706
Consolidated assets REEE 366,612
Segment liabilities NEBE 47,879 19,674 445 67,998
Unallocated RO 327,580
Consolidated liabilities ReEE 395,578
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continueq)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continueq)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash

and cash equivalents, current tax recoverable and assets

for corporate use. Goodwill is allocated to segment of

television broadcasting business; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other

than bank overdraft, convertible notes, current and

deferred tax liabilities, finance lease payables and

promissory note.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE

Depreciation of property, WE BERRETE
plant and equipment

Amortisation of film rights BERMRERH

Amortisation of intangible assets E B RS

Impairment loss on intangible assets BYEEZRERSE

Impairment loss on trade receivables BHEWTIR OREEE

Net gains/(losses) on disposal of property, HE¥E FiEkEEZ
plant and equipment Wi/ (B8) 58

9. oWER (&)
PHEEREE (Z)
REZDHRRERDESHBER
. FRBREATEARZEME
§~ﬁi&ﬁ$%gmsﬂw@$%m
BREERAEEEN MBEEAD
Mégkﬁﬂ HEBNAEZERE
R DD
. RITEX  THRRER  EHRIELT
mgﬁﬁ~ﬂéﬁgﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FEIN MEREHSIREEENE -
Hith 7 & & R
BE-Z—A"F=A=+—RHLEFE
Provision of Large outdoor
waterworks Television display screen
engineering  broadcasting advertisement
services business business Unallocated Total
Rt AEFEH
*EIR ER BRR
PR BREYR BEEHS AOE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
16,360 - 2,139 1,005 19,504
12,997 - 2,638 2,111 17,746
- 1,578 - - 1,578
- 22,020 - - 22,020
- 19,751 - - 19,751
- 2,238 - - 2,238
1,243 - - (450) 793
2015/2016 % TEFEBRZRERAT 197




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2015

Additions to non-current assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of film rights
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net gains on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

DEER (&)

Hitvn BMEHR (&)

BE-T-HF=A=1-ALFE

Revenue from major products and services

The Group’s revenue from its major products and services

were as follows:

Construction works
Advertising income

158

Provision of Large outdoor
waterworks Television  display screen
engineering broadcasting  advertisement
services business business Unallocated Total
Rt NIE
KL BiR TN
PR BHE BEE ROME @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FHET FET
REFRDEE 11,417 = 1,934 898 14,249
nE- BERRENE
13,648 1 2,217 2,499 18,265
EFRIERAH - 2,129 - - 2,129
B AERH - 21,959 - - 21,959
HEME BER&EZ
Wz g 1,455 - - - 1,455
REFTEEMRBRBEZWA
AEEREEFEERERE 2B AL
T
2016 2015
= i
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
BETRE 360,998 358,684
BB A 9,941 10,951
370,939 369,635
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong

and the PRC. The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s revenue by location of customers:

Hong Kong BB
PRC s
Overseas & A

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the
assets are located:

BB
&

Hong Kong
PRC

9. oHEHR (&)

REBZEBETEZMNERENTE - TRIZ
HEPUES D 2 AEBKE 2 DT

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
361,198 358,884
7,939 4,060
1,802 6,691
370,939 369,635

AT RIZEEMESRONT ZIERBDEE

ZEEBEZON:
2016 2015
—E-XF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
130,569 171,635
0,403 10,237
139,972 181,872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Included in revenue arising from provision of waterworks
engineering services of approximately HK$360,998,000
(2015: approximately HK$358,684,000) are revenue
generated from three (2015: four) customers amounting
to approximately HK$331,413,000 (2015: approximately
HK$357,617,000) has individually accounted for over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue. No other single customers
contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue for the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

Revenue from major customers is as follows:

Customer A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer D
Others

1&) CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

EFPH
BEFL
BEFPA
ZEPT
Hith

DEER (&)

FHRXERFZENR

REXEIERBEAEENRELD
360,998,000 T (Z T —HF: 4
358,684,000 L) BEH=% (=
T-AF HB)BRPHFRNKZE LD
331,413,000 L (Z & —HF : 4
357,617,000/ 7T ) B 5ll15 2N & B 42 4 55 19
10%A L - BEEME —FXFRBEE_T
—NFERZE-RAF=A=+—HIEFE
EMEAREE W EZR10%3 A L o

RETBEEFPZEEMT
2016 2015
= —ZT—4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
50,581 56,388
- 42,422
210,368 204,402
70,464 54,405
39,526 12,018
370,939 369,635




10. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

Profit/(loss) from operations has been
arrived at after charging:

Contract costs recognised
as expenses
Amortisation of film rights
(included in amortisation expenses)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in amortisation expenses)
Television broadcasting rights fee and
television satellite fees
(included in cost of services)
Expense incurred in provision of
large outdoor display screen
advertisement business
(included in cost of services)
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment®
Staff costs (note 11)
Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$12,494,000 (2015: approximately HK$13,002,000) and
approximately HK$2,391,000 (2015: approximately HK$2,292,000)
have been separately expensed in contract costs recognised as

LEmA, (BR) NG
AT &REAESH

ERRRAXZAHRA

BRI (BRENEH

P )
B EE#H (BRENEH
P )
ERENEERMNEEERER
(BRERRBRAS)

RUABPINETRREESES
EEZRAX
(BRERRBRAS)

A% BRM 7 A
ME BELREBITE

BT (Kaz11)
LAY EZEEHERS

expenses and expensed incurred in provision of large outdoor

display screen advertisement business respectively.
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10. BEEF, (FE)

2016

N
HK$’000
FHT

290,249

1,578

22,020

8,898

3,141
680

17,746
86,603

18,048

2015
—HE
HK$'000
FHET

333,632

2,129

21,959

10,284

2,737
680

18,265
80,197

19,127

/%7[:(—7

* WE - B KR ETTE4912,494,000% T (=
T— 4 : #913,002,0005% 7T ) K& #92,391,000
FF : 492,292,000/ 7T ) B 5 Bl
aﬂ\ﬁﬁ RAEFRY 26 KA IR
BEEBEEZRAY -

KELF S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

11. STAFF COSTS

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration) comprise:

Wages, salaries and other benefits

Contribution to defined
contribution retirement plan

12. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on:
Finance leases payables
Bank overdraft wholly repayable
within five years
Promissory note (note 33)
Convertible notes (note 34)

11. BT HA

BTN (BREESHH) 2%

T
TE R R KT B

12, @MER K

ANEEZFE:
BMEMERNHIEA

RAEFABBEEZRITES

A (f17£33)
AR =R (B73734)
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ES
7

2016 2015
= —ZT—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
83,610 77,823
2,993 2,374
86,603 80,197
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

355 375

98 183

2,915 2,665
30,908 22,497
34,276 25,720




13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(i)

Directors’ remuneration

The aggregate amounts of the remuneration paid and
payable to the directors of the Company by the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 were as

follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2016
Executive director and
chief executive officer
Mr. Zou Chen Dong

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Hao

Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (“Mr. Kan”)

Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John
(“Mr. Chia”)
Dr. Lee Yuk Lun (note (g))

Non-executive Director
Dr. Li Yong Sheng

BE-2-XE&
SA=t+-HILEE
HITEZRTHAEZ

PRREE

HiTEE

frypitea
BEE L ([REE])
AzenE ([HeLl)
FEBRT (M)

FHTEE
FxFEL

Independent Non-executive Directors B 5 /7&Z

Mr. lo Kwok Him (note (c))
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron
Mr. Jin Hai Tao

Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth

Mr. Hau Chi Kit (note (g))

REGR L (M)
FHEBEE
HBBEE
IHELE
REBREE (Hite)

13. EEMERSREEENS

(i) ESE&

AEERBE—T-REFR-_FT—H
FZA=+t—HLEFEENREMAX
NEIESZZMEBBEIT

Contributions

to retirement

Salaries and benefit
Fees other benefits Bonus schemes Total

§eR RKEEA
1w Hit @A AL B3 @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET FET FET FET
- 1,104 92 - 1,196
- 12 - - 12
- 1,812 150 19 1,981
- 840 70 18 928
- 3 - - 3
12 - - - 12
125 - - - 125
144 - - - 144
144 - - - 144
144 - - - 144
19 - - - 19
588 3,771 312 37 4,708
20152016 &% sEFERRERERAT 103




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13. EEMESRSREEEMS (&)

(i) Directors’ remuneration (Continueq) (i) E=M< (&)
Contributions
to retirement
Salaries and benefit
Fees  other benefits Bonus schemes Total
Hek RIS EF
ik Hin &7 TE4 AR et
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March 2015  HZ-T—AfF
ZA=T-BLFE
Executive director and HITEERTHAEH
chief executive officer
Mr. Zou Chen Dong PERLE - 972 50 - 1,022
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zhang Hao (note (a)) R EE (M) - 7 - - 7
Mr. Wu Jin Cai fnote (d)) RBTEE (M) - 6 - - 6
Dr. Lee Yuk Lun (note (g)) FEBET (M) - 12 - 1 13
Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (‘Mr. Kan”) B 5 & ([ E]) - 1,812 - 18 1,830
Mr. Chia Kar Hin, Eric John HEE L ([HEE])
(“Mr. Chia’) - 758 40 18 816
Non-executive Directors HHITEE
Dr. Li Yong Sheng ZkFEL 12 - - - 12
Ms. Liang Hui (note (d) RELT (M) 5 - - - 5
Independent Non-executive Directors 1B S 1TZ %
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron (note (b)) F 55858 4 (#1i# (b)) 21 - - - 21
Mr. Jin Hai Tao HEERE 136 - - - 136
Mr. Wong Chung Yip, Kenneth FREEE 136 - - - 136
Mr. Hau Chi Kit (note (g)) REBEE (HitE) 136 - = - 136
Mr. Chu Siu Lun, Ivan (note (f) KKBEE (H720) 112 = = = 112
558 3,567 90 B 4,252
Notes: Bt -

164

(@  Appointed on 25 August 2014.

(b)  Appointed on 9 February 2015.

(c) Appointed on 18 May 2015.

RZZE—HAF-_RANBEZE-

RZB-—NFNA-+HBEZE-

R=ZB-—AFAATNBERE-

(d) Resigned on 15 September 2014. @ RZZE—MFNLA+RHEBT
(e) Resigned on 18 May 2015. e MNZZE—RFRA+NHEE-
()  Resigned on 31 January 2015. H R-E—RAF—A=t+—HEfE-

(99 Resigned on 13 July 2015.
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13.

14.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

None of directors waived any emoluments during the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 and there were no
emoluments paid by the Group to any directors or chief
executive officer as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Senior management of the Group represents the executive
directors of the Company during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid employees the Group during the
year included two (2015: two) directors. Details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remaining three (2015: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

Basic salaries, bonuses and

other allowances
Contributions to retirement RRE RN ETEI
benefit schemes

13.

14.

EARF S B R EMZRL

2015/2016 £

EEHERSREERME (&)

HE_Z—XRFrR-_Z—RF=ZA=1+—
HIEFE BBREERETHNE  BAE
B I [A) (E ] B B I 1T BN AR =2 AT A T B
S MEB BT ZEMARE B INAR
2 BN e AR R E

ARERE-T—AFR-F—AF=A
=S +—BIEER Y SRERBEREAQ TN
TEE

BEEME

AEERAFEZAERSHREETERE
ME(ZCE—RF MB)EF FHRES
e FEBEN EXMEE18 - Hfp =% (=
E-RF:ZR)RSFEER (LFEARF]
EFHTIE2THRAR) 2HBWET:

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
4,572 3,165

54 53

4,626 3,218
rEFERREREaRas 106D



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

14. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

14. EEME (&)

ReHEE (LHFARRESR) 2MENF
THIEEMAZIT :

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-RF
Number of Number of
employees employees
ESAZ 1ES A&

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t £1,500,000/% 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%8 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -
3 3

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, none
of five highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration and there were no emoluments paid
by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

1% CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

BE-F AFR-F-BF=A=+—
BILFE ERRSHALHRRRLR
EREEAMS - TA%E AL AR
BHRALHEMALNETNE A fEARD
% M AR R DA 2 Bk £
R -



15. INCOME TAX

The amount of income tax in the consolidated statement of

15. Fi8 %

profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents: un

Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
— tax for the year
— over-provision in respect of
prior years

Current tax — Macau Complementary
tax
— tax for the year
— over-provision in respect of
prior years

Deferred tax (note 35)
— current year

Income tax credit

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31

March 2016 and 2015.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the Biritish Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Company and its
subsidiaries incorporated in BVI are not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI respectively.

EHRE-BENEH
—FARA
—BEFEBREEE

=B IA RIS E R

—FRABIA
—BEFEERRE

TEIERIE (H17£35)
— REF

PIEEL 59

Re1E

T

= N

B

REMPEARER MEHESE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—AE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
8,554 1,283
(36) (169)

8,518 1,114

- 60

(34) =

(34) 60
(11,259) (4,803)
(2,775) (3,629)

ERNERREZE _T—R"FER-_FT—A
FZA=Zt—ALFEZAFTRERBEHN

2165% (—ZE—HF:16.5% )5t& -

2015/2016 3 HEFESRERBRAF

REFSHERABEZES ([RBREX
BEDRUIER NRARREREER
LRESEMKRLZMBRRBEHNAEES
BERRBRIZESS A ZEMMAEH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE_FE—ANF=A=+—HIFFE

15. INCOME TAX (Continued)

No Macau Complementary tax has been made for the year
ended 31 March 2016 as the subsidiary incorporated in
Macau has no assessable profits arising in Macau during
the year. Macau Complementary Tax was calculated at
the maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2015.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income tax has been made as
the subsidiary incorporated in PRC had no assessable profits
arising in PRC for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

15. Fr8% (&)

BRRFIEMK Y 2B ARIREBE =
E-RF-A=T—HIFELENEM
EEAEFERRBUM A - S0 B B AN F 2 1 R P
AR NBE_T—RF=A=1—
BIEFE - RPIPT S TR IR AT ERHR
M2 = REB E12%:1H -

LT o A PGS
T AER-F-AF=A=t+—AL%F
7 30 24 7R R A B R B - A B
B S FAS B A R -

FAFRBRRERSES LA MEE RS
RPN ZBRFrS B AT B 2 SRR T :

168

other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at rates, applicable to
profits in the countries concerned
Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Over-provision in respect of prior years
Tax effect of temporary difference
not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

[ncome tax credit

8B 1R

e PSRl
HEZBE

A IR BB 2
BBV E

BERBNBA KRBT E

BEFEBERE
ARRERZR I BBRE

PRBEAERHEBR

Y EER 2 HAB R
ZHBRE

FEhE%
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2016 2015
—E-XE “E-hF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

FET FHET

(49,218) (45,35)

(8,286) 16.8 7,771) 174
676 (1.3) 2,955 6.5)
(22) - (2,149) 47
(70) 0.1 (169) 0.4
(378) 0.8 256 05)

- - (234) 05

5,305 (108) 3,483 7.7)

(2,775) 56 (3,629) 8.0




16.

17.

DIVIDENDS 16.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment
of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016
(2015: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Loss &8

Loss for the purpose of basic and RAUAFTEERER K
diluted loss per share BB EIEnEE

Weighted average number of AU ESREREIERN
ordinary shares for the purpose of LA AR hNAE T I 8L

basic loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015 are the same as the basic loss per share as the
convertible notes outstanding at the end of the reporting
period had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

i aS
EEeTERRNBEE TR F=H

=t BUEFEZEAKRE (ZE—R%F:
) o

BRER

RABEBANCEBRERREEERTS
RIBIAT BT E -

2016 2015
—B-RF —T—4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET TFET
(46,443) (41,723)

Number of shares

RHAME
‘000 ‘000
F F A
3,926,963 3,112,636

HE_ZT—XRFER-_ZT—RF=A=+—
Elitifh'EElE/\\qﬁ&iHﬂ?EZ?fifﬂf—fﬁﬂﬁ
ERHERERAEBRAEGREESTE F
L EREEBHEEGREREEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:

At 1 April 2014
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2015 and
1 April 2015

Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2016

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 April 2014
Depreciation charge

for the year (Note 10)
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 March 2015 and
1 April 2015

Depreciation charge
for the year (Note 10)
Eliminated on disposals

At 31 March 2016

Net book value:
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

170

BE_FE—ANF=A=+1+—HIFFE

18. W% BEKZRE

Leasehold Furnitures Office Motor
improvements  Machinery and fixtures equipment vehicles Site offices Total
HENE
£ BE GAREE HORB BEH WERAZE #st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHET FET FET FET FET
BA:
RZZ-MFMA—H 6,351 27,211 2,768 7,864 29,761 14,655 88,610
NE - 5,023 17 938 8,090 181 14,249
HE = (6,197) - - (1,348) (28) (7,573)
RZZT—HF=AH
=t-Hk
—T-hFNA—H 6,351 26,037 2,785 8,802 36,508 14,808 95,286
NE 2,653 7,529 272 404 8,646 - 19,504
HE (6,270) - (659) (657) (4,520) - (12,108)
RZZ—RF
=A=+—H 2,734 33,566 2,398 8,549 40,629 14,808 102,684
RiHE:
RZZ-—NFENHA—H 3,058 11,613 1,475 4,724 15,007 7,549 43,426
ERNHERX
(Kisz10) 1,881 5,769 499 1,320 5,307 3,489 18,265
&R 8 = (6,109) - - (1,060) 27) (7,196)
RZT—H1F
=A=t-Ak
—Z-AFWMA—-H 4,939 11,278 1,974 6,044 19,254 11,011 54,495
FRHERT
(Hiz#10) 1,671 6,216 409 1,253 5,780 2,417 17,746
HER (6,269) - (449) (418) (3,083) - (10,219)
R-E—RF
=R=1+—H 341 17,489 1,934 6,879 21,951 13,428 62,022
AR E
R-B-R%
=A=+—-H 2,393 16,077 464 1,670 18,678 1,380 40,662
R-E—REF
=A=+—H 1,412 14,764 811 2,758 17,249 3,797 40,791
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
includes the following assets held under finance leases (note
30).

Machinery 1 25
Motor vehicles B

As at 31 March 2016, the Group pledged its machinery with
net book value of approximately nil (2015: approximately
HK$12,000) and motor vehicles with net book value of
approximately HK$89,000 (2015: approximately HK$721,000)
as securities for its performance of being a sub-contractor of
the Replacement and Rehabilitation of water mains, stage 4,
Phase 1 — Mains in Tuen Mun, Yuen Long, North District and
Tai Po.

18. W% BERRHE (&)

ME BEMREBZREDFERRE TR
EREHSRAZEE (KF30)

2016 2015
= —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR

- 767

14,395 12,285
14,395 13,0652

R-E—ARNE=ZA=+—8 A£EIK
HEEAFESNANTEL(ZZ
— R F : #912,0007% 7T ) & £989,000/% 7T
(ZZE—FF: 49721,000/87T) 2 e R E
B AMERBEEAESERBITERRIEE
IKE TIEFEAPEER 18 —"EPT - JuBA - db[&@

RAFKE TR ZEM R -

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

19. GOODWILL

Cost:
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 and
31 March 2016

Accumulated impairment:
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 and
31 March 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

10. B8

AR :

RZZE—NFMNA—B ZF—h1F
=B=+—H8 —Z—HEWA
—BEZTE—R"E=H=+—H

ZatEE:

RZE—NUFRMA—H —ZE—h%F
=B=+—H8 —Z—HEWA

—AER=ZE—R"FE=HA=+—H

BRMEE
R-ZBE-—R"E=ZH=1+—H

R-ZE—RF=A=+—H
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HK$'000
FET

816,877

816,877



20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost:
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 and
31 March 2016

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:
At 1 April 2014
Amortisation for the year (note 10)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015

Amortisation for the year (note 70)
Impairment loss recognised in the year (note 21)

At 31 March 2016

Carrying amount:
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

Intangible assets represent television broadcasting
rights acquired by the Group. The useful life of television

broadcasting right is 10 years.

20. BELEE

%

RZE—NFONA—H —Z—h%F
=BA=4+—H Z—ZFE—AFWNA
—HE-_ZE—XRE=ZA=1+—H

BT RE:
R-ZE—UFEEP A —H
FRE (AE10)

R-ZE—FRE=A=+—HEK
—E—FRFMA—H
FRNE (HE10)
FRERZBAEEE (AF21)
RN-_ZE—XR"E=A=1+—H

BRMEE :
R=-ZB—AR"E=ZA=1+—H

R—E—HRF=A=+—H

Television
broadcasting
right
ERBHE
HK$'000
FET

567,000

403,960
21,959

425,919
22,020
19,751

467,690

99,310

141,081

BVEERASEMRBEZERERE-
EREREZAERFHA TS

2015/2016 €% TEFERRERERAT 1249



NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

21.

174

The directors of the Company had determined that there was
an impairment on the television broadcasting right as at 31
March 2016 as stated in note 21.

The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverable
amount of intangible assets at 31 March 2015 and determined
that no impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The recoverable amount
of intangible assets was assessed by reference to the value in
use calculation.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated for
impairment testing purposes to the cash-generating units of
television broadcasting business (“television broadcasting
CGU”).

The directors of the Company have appointed an independent
valuer to perform a business valuation on the television
broadcasting CGU containing goodwill and intangible assets
which was acquired from the business combination of Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific Operating Co., Limited (“Xinhua TV Asia-
Pacific”) during year ended 31 March 2012.

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

20.

21.

BVEE (&)

A F21 - R T —RNF=A
=+ —H ARAEFCHEESRENE
HIRRE

ARAREER_T—AF=A=t—HE
ﬁ%ﬁﬂR§FZTW@ 2 ¥R - W TE AL

T-RAF=-_A=1t—HLFE A&
ﬁé%m&ﬁmiﬁw 55 P RERRRLE
BER - BYEEZRAIWOSBEHE2E R
REEEE-

BAEREFLEERENH

%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁé*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁawﬂ
EARIENER 2 ReEESM ([ER
%mﬁiéiﬁuno

ARBIEFCRE—RBUGEMAEE
EHEREVEE(BE-_T——F=A
=t HUEFEEHEERTAGELE
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21.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 21.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amounts
of goodwill and television broadcasting right (including in
intangible assets set out in note 20) before impairment loss,
have been allocated to the television broadcasting CGU are as

follows:
Goodwil [
Television broadcasting right BAR R

The recoverable amount of television broadcasting CGU has
been determined on the basis of value in use calculation
and is based on certain key assumptions. The value in use
calculation is based on cash flow projections prepared from
financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of 22.47%
(2015: 18.82%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate ranged from 0% to 7%
(2015: 2.5% to 6%) for different countries and the growth rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
industry. The discount rates used reflect specific risks to the
segment.

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR

HMEREFLEERENR (£)

RETREN HELERENE (25
R0 B EE ) MRBERERT 2

RAEC D REEERERIRSEAESEAMA
YT
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
816,877 816,877
315,727 374,118
1,132,604 1,190,995

BRBBCREEESA 2 E 25T
BEABEAEEE HERETEER
R FABEFENERAARESHE
X —IHEBEENFHZ MBEE K22.47%2
BRIRE (ZZT—AF :18.82% ) mE S
7\/25?5\7\,3”°§Zﬂ$ﬁﬁ1§25ﬁdimh§5?ﬁﬁﬁﬁt
PRBERNTF0%ZET% —hF :2.5%
§6%)Zigﬁf3§ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁﬁi§§$?\hi@ﬁ
FXFHRERE -EAZERER
B 3 50 2 4 FE R Bk
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

21.

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016, due to the unsatisfactory
results and relatively slow development pace of television
broadcasting business, the directors of the Company
determined that there was a need for an impairment on the
intangible assets arising from the acquisition of television
broadcasting business as the recoverable amount of television
broadcasting CGU (being the CGU to which the intangible
assets have been allocated) based on the valuation report by
an independent valuer was calculated to be lower than their
aggregate carrying amounts.

Thus, the impairment loss of intangible assets recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016
was approximately HK$19,751,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, no impairment loss was
recognised in respect of goodwill and intangible assets as the
recoverable amount approximated to the carrying amount of
the unit which was assessed by reference to the value in use
calculation.

The directors of the Company believe that the television
broadcasting CGU containing goodwill and intangible
assets has been reduced to its recoverable amount. The
management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying
amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit.
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21. BEREFEERERNS (&)

RBE-E—AF=-A=+—HLFE"
HRERBEREBZEZETESARER
HEEEBZBERESK ARREFETERA
KWEERERESMEATEHENEE
ﬂﬁ'ﬂﬁ%ﬁf—%ﬁ4ﬁ@ﬁ2ﬁﬁ
HETE BEREBREELEM (BEE
nmﬁ%§E2ﬁﬁéiﬁm2ﬂW@
CHEEREEmAERSE-

At Bz X"F=A=+—H81t
FEZHRABHENMAEMEARSERNER
ZEFEE ZREEEY 519,751,000/8

f[]o

BE_Z-hAF=-A=+t—HLFE H

RA e eBE2EFRFEEEN G2
BURMERE SHBERBENETLE
EWRRMERE-

AABREERAERBEIREELEN (2
ERENEVEE) CHREAEARESE-
AEBEEERRRESBMERZE
2RR 2 EMEEA EEEE TS EHZ
B sRHAEBBZRCELEM AR
Y o & 58 o



22. FILM RIGHTS 22, EXE

HK$'000
FETT
Cost: 29N
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—FEEMA—H 2,980
Additions NE 2,129
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-ZE—RF=A=+—"HBEK
—E-RFWMA—H 5,109
Additions NE 1,578
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF=A=+—H 6,687
Accumulated amortisation and impairment: EFt#ERRE:
At 1 April 2014 R-ZT—pEm [ —A 2,980
Amortisation for the year (note 10) FREE (HaE10) 2,129
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R-E—RF=A=+—HK
—_ZE-RFWMA—H 5,109
Amortisation for the year (note 10) FANEH (HaE10) 1,578
At 31 March 2016 R-E—RE=ZA=+—H 6,687
Carrying amount: RREE :
At 31 March 2016 R-B-A&E=A=1-8 -
At 31 March 2015 R_ZE—HF=A=+—H -
Film rights represent television programmes produced BYRENHASERENEREGTH-E
by the Group. The useful life of film rights is expired upon TMRENRE AT EEHBESRE B
the completion of broadcasting the relevant television AT 4 & fE T o
programmes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=HA=+—HIFFZE

23. JOINT OPERATIONS

178

Details of investment in joint operations as at 31 March 2016

and 2015 were as follows:

Name

=L

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip
Joint Venture (DC/2012/04)
¥ 8 #E E 5 2 (DC/2012/04)

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip
Joint Venture (DC/2012/07)
¥ 8 #E E 5 2 (DC/2012/07)

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip
Joint Venture (DC/2012/08)
3B 5 & (DC/2012/08)

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip
Joint Venture (5/WSD/13)
3B & (5/WSD/13)

Hsin Chong Tsun Yip
Joint Venture (CV/2015/03)
B 5 2 (CV/2015/03)

Note:

Pursuant to the terms of the joint agreements, the profit sharing for each
year of all joint operations listed herein above shall be distributed to the

Place of operation

EEMH

Unincorporated joint operation
operating in Hong Kong

REAEEZBLEGED

Unincorporated joint operation
operating in Hong Kong

REAEEZBLEGED

Unincorporated joint operation
operating in Hong Kong

REAEEZBLEGED

Unincorporated joint operation
operating in Hong Kong

REAEEZFBLEGED

Unincorporated joint operation
operating in Hong Kong

NEBEE

joint operators in proportion to their respective interests.
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ZHBEERELE

RZE-—RERZT—

REeE R ZIREF

Participating shares

2R pl
2016 2015
—E—AE —T-RF

40% 40%
43% 43%
43% 43%
17% 17%
43% -

Mt -

REE &

5 P A B %

BeEn-

RE=A=+—H
BT -

Principal
activity
TEEHR

Civil engineering

ITARIRE

Civil engineering

ITARIRE

Civil engineering

ITARIRE

Civil engineering

ITARIRE

Civil engineering

ITARIRE

G LB SR EREF R

CR DR $: 3= A Fo)

ETH



24,

25.

INVENTORIES

Construction materials

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables (note (i), (i)
Allowance for doubtful debts

Retention receivables
(note (i), (iii}),(note 26)

Other receivables and prepayments
(note (iv))

Amounts due from a substantial
shareholder (note (v))

Deposits

Deposits paid for acquisition of
a subsidiary

24. 78

EEEM Y

B 5 EUEKIR (H1a2() - (i)
R R

FEUR B &

(B &) ~ (i) ~ (K1at26)

H 4t e U SR IE I FB A R
(HaE(v))

R — % £ EREFRIA
(H1aEw))

b

WE— B AR Z2Ze

2015/2016 £

25. E5 Rk HEHAMEWFIE

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-wE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

27,134 23,335

2016 2015
—EXE —T-FE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
62,230 48,165
(2,238) _

50,992 48,165
12,356 9,355

30,858 03,724

- 91

4,684 4,787

- 1,000

116,890 87,122
rEFERRERERAs 179



NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continueq)

Notes:

180

Trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period mainly
derived from provision of construction works on civil engineering
contracts. The related customers are mainly government
department/organisation and reputable corporations. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net
of impairment losses) with the following ageing analysis based on
invoice date as of the end of reporting period:

BNVER sk R4

1 to 3 months 1ZE3(@ A

More than 3 months but FBE3ME BB L K121E B
less than 12 months

Current or less than 1 month 118 A

The Group grants an average credit period of 30 days (2015: 30
days) to its trade customers of contract works. Application for
progress payments of contract works is made on a regular basis.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for
aged analysis) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful
debts because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
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25 B RHEMEKRE

RIE (&)

BT

RBEPRRZEZERFBIERERHEL
ARIBGHZRETR - HRTFEIZRK
FFERFT,/Hets R BRI 2 (% - REEN
EL % FE R EEA -

B 5 RWHIE (BRIRRERBE) T AZES R

Hfto BEURROR - R B A AN S R
2 BT -

2016 2015

S —HF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

59,330 45,530

23 2,633

639 102

59,992 48,165

AEEREANIRESEFKHFH0R
“E-RF:0R)ZEER- AN IRE
ERRIRAHEEE LT

B Er 8 SRR BERREHRE
BHMASEHAERREEBE 2SR (R
TXREAN) READGEEERHEEAE
K& B8 AR T UM -



25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continueqd)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continueq)

Ageing of receivables that are past due but not impaired

25. E5 REAMEWRRIE (&)
izt (&
0 (4

B A MERRIEZ BYE IR R

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Overdue by: B
31 - 60 days 31£260H 23 2,533
Over 90 days HBiEI0H 639 102
662 2,635
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIEBE 22
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE—hF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
Balance at the beginning of the year FY 2 R - 9,469
Impairment loss recognised on B ZEWFIBERER Z REEE
trade receivables 2,238 -
Amounts written-off during the yearas AT AI UK [E] Z #ifi $5 & 58
uncollectible - (9,469)
Balance at the end of the year FRZ 2,238 -

Impairment loss of approximately HK$2,238,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2016 as
the directors of the Company consider that the outstanding amount
were not recoverable.

Retention monies withheld by customers of contract works are
released after the completion of maintenance period of the relevant
contract or in accordance with the terms specified in the relevant
contract.

BE-_Z-— A E=-A=+—RALEERK
tEmkEMEERERERREEELD
2,238,000 70 ' TR EER AR AREZER
EA R U [E o

i) AHNIRFFPZRBSNEBEAORENRS
Ri& KRB IRRI A K05 E IRTRIERR B
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NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—ZF

—NF=ZHA=F—HIFEZE

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continueq)

Notes: (Continueq)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

Trade and other receivables are short term and hence the directors
of the Company consider the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values at the end of the reporting
periods.

It mainly consists of prepayments for insurance and advance
payment to subcontractors.

Amount due from a substantial shareholder is unsecured, interest
free and recoverable on demand. During the year ended 31 March
2016, the highest balance of amount due from a substantial
shareholder was approximately HK$91,000 (2015: approximately
HK$91,000).

On 8 December 2014, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party pursuant to which a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company will acquire 60% of the
issued share capital of Afanti Asset Management Limited at the
consideration of HK$1,000,000. On 30 June 2015, the parties of
sale and purchase agreement entered into a termination agreement
pursuant to which both parties mutually agreed to unconditionally
and irrevocably terminate the sale and purchase agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder with immediate effect.

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORKS

25 B RHEMEKRE

Hrat: (&)

RIE (&)

iy BHREMEUFIASEHY FHibARRE

ERRE S REMBUK
HREHR

(v) UHEEXESERBEMKERS

B

FERE

2 FREER RS

BEXZ

v EBR—BETERRFEAREER REAR

AR ESRK Y E - B =

E—RF=ZA=+—

BIEFE BR—REERRAIBZRSE

##49/591,0008 7T (—F—

JT)

vy M=

T 1 #4991,000/5

—mE+ZANE AEEE-FF

VE=FFINEE R B AR AZ—H
2EWB D A LA 81,000,000 7T 45 B8 2
BRERNERBRAREEITRA 260% ° A
:?—ﬁiﬁﬂz+5

—ID#R LW

CBEWERI AR
VR - 87 B ARR B AR

&TTT%#‘M%JJ:E‘T%Tﬁéﬁ&ﬁlﬁ?ﬁ%&ﬁ
2R 5 B AER -

26. ERENIREFNA

Contracts in progress at the end of the 7 k&

reporting period:

Contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits
less recognised loss

Less: progress billings

182

ESEEZARIKAIE HER
-

HARETH

)

AR B R E R
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2016 2015
—E—-RE — = hF
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
1,370,383 1,282,544
(1,370,383) (1,282,544)




26.

27.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 26.
CONTRACT WORKS (Continued)

“Contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits”
comprise direct materials, costs of subcontracting,
direct labour, an appropriate portion of variable and fixed
construction overheads and gross profit earned to date of the
contracts, which is measured by reference to the certification
by architects.

“Progress billings” represent the amounts billed to the
customers for work performed up to the end of reporting
period.

At 31 March 2016, the retentions held by customers for
contract works included in other receivables (note 25)
amounted to HK$12,356,000 (2015: HK$9,355,000).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 27.
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities: ETES
— Equity securities listed in —REB LM ZBRAFEZH
Hong Kong

The fair values of the listed securities are determined with
reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

BRENTREFRE (&)

25 ELEZARHRAMNDHEREN ] 81
EERYE - BRA BEERSET  aELH
ZT*gﬁ&E%ELﬁ%ﬁH&EA%@EHHFﬁHﬁ
Mz EMN HtE N2 ERZEM2ZE -

FEEFIR] ERBEREHRMETZT
EREFHAREZA.

J‘EA:%*/—ﬁ:ﬂ:waEl EFAE A
EWFRIE (A28 2 NI REFPFER
RE éﬁme%ow@m( T—hF:
9,355,000/ 7T ) °

ERERBAFEARZEMEE

2016 2015
= —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FET
6,344 12,117

THEEZAFENREFBBALSA
BERABFRZMHEABMERE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. HERBETEEY
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from RITAEERIE TS FE N ZESNTF0.001%%0.3%
0.001% — 0.3% (2015: 0.001% — 0.87%) per annum. (== — T4 :0.001%Z20.87% ) it & o
As at 31 March 2016, the cash and cash equivalents of R-ZE—RNF=A=+—H XA&EE]
the Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi ERRCEEVBEEAARBTEZE
amounted to approximately HK$9,625,000 (2015: #99,625,000/% 7T ( == — A4 : £9888,000
approximately HK$888,000) which is not freely convertible into BT HARERABEEME -

other currencies.

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. EF R HEHMENRE

2016 2015

—EB-AF —T—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables 2 S RIE 33,540 22,480

Retention money payables EIREE & 17,197 15,356

Amount due to a shareholder (note (i) &R — &R KB (K7a2(0)) 9,837 17,112

Amount due to a director (note (i) JEN—REZE S IE (M) - 2,758

Deferred revenue EE Y = 8,409 555

Interest payables JE T FI B 20,243 19,917
Amount due to a related party (note (i) FEft— & F8E A L 3KI8

(B &) ) 2,009 2,009

Other payables and accruals H A FE A< 30IE K FE FT IR 15,716 9,935

106,951 90,122
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continueq) 2. EFREMEBNRE &)

Notes:

(i) Amount due to a shareholder represents amount due to a major
substantial shareholder of the Company, China Xinhua NNC, which
is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(i) Amount due to a related party represented amount due to 1% &
& L. FEFHEF L and China Xinhua NNC have a common
shareholder, Xinhua News Agency (¥1%+f) . The amount is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(i)  Amount due to a director was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Group normally settles trade payables within 30 days
(2015: 30 days) credit term. Based on the invoice date, ageing
analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting period is

as follows:

Current or less than 1 month BVEAsk AP 11E A

1 to 3 months 12316 A

More than 3 months but less than B iE3ME A B R 121E A
12 months

More than 12 months Bid121E A

Hiat -

(i)

(i)

RN —RRRREERN R ARAE2RK
RPBEHMEHEERM@ 2RI BEET - 2

BRIRERIEE -

PN — R BEA T RIBEENAESZRT L
ZHRBE - FEFHR R L ER B EREER
Bz ARBR B ER - ZFRREERR 2

BRRERER -

EN—2EEFRA/ERR RERLER

fE5E o

o

AREE—MRMN30A (ZT—AF:30A) 2
EERNBEEZRNRE - REHREH

i

T

HREHIRE 5N FIRRBRER 2 AT A0

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
33,212 14,767
102 7,474

2 —

224 239
33,540 22 480

2015/2016 % TEFERRERERAT 18D



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases a number of its motor vehicles and
machineries. The average lease term is 3 years (2015: 3
years). Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance
leases are fixed at respective contract dates from 2.1% to
3.8% (2015: 2.1% and 3.8%) per annum. The Group has
options to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount
at the end of the lease terms. No arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments.

Future lease payments are due as follows:

At 31 March 2016

30.

BMEHERMSIR

AEBHEREERHEHESE - FHHBRA
=F(ZZE—RF:=F) @mEMAEET
FIEEREZFFNERSEHNAHEE N
F21EE38E (T —HF:2.1E K38
E) AEEFRAABRUNEECHEEER
B WA SN R ST HE -

ARKREENAKENEBERNT :

R-ZE-—XE=ZA=+—H

Present value

Within one year
In more than one year and
not more more than five years

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown
under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after 12
months

186

R—FR
BE—FEIBEALSF

R+ —EAREH
R 2R (DIE
mEBEE)

Rt A RINEE
B
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Future of minimum

Minimum lease finance lease
payments charges payments
REHEN

BEEEENR ARMEMX ZHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHET
5,500 251 5,249
4,312 115 4,197
9,812 366 9,446
(5,249)

4,197




30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (Continueq) 30. MEMHEERMNRE (&)

At 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=HA=+—H
Present value
Future of minimum
Minimum lease finance lease
payments charges payments
RIEHEER
REEER RRBERAX ZHME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Within one year R—FR 5,239 303 4,936
In more than one year and BA—FETERAT
not more more than five years 4,790 117 4,673
10,029 420 9,609
Less: Amount due for settlement JB A Z{E A R EIER
within 12 months (shown ®E 2 5IE (FE
under current liabilities) mEaE) (4,936)
Amount due for settlement RTZEARIBEE

after 12 months Z A 4673




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

31.

32.

33.

188

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Liabilities for employee
benefits comprise:

Annual leave entitlement FREN
Long service payments entitiement RHEIRG S EF

BANK OVERDRAFT

As at 31 March 2015, bank overdraft was secured by
corporate guarantee executed by Shunleetat (BVI) Limited,
which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Kan Kwok
Cheung, a director of the Company, the charges over the
properties held by Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung and personal
guarantee provided by Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung and bear
interest at Hong Kong Dollars’ best lending rate less 1.5% per
annum. The Group didn’t have any bank overdraft as at 31
March 2016.

PROMISSORY NOTE

A promissory note with a principal amount of HK$45,040,000
was issued by Profit Station Limited (“Profit Station”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 11 August 2011
(the “Issue Date”) upon the completion of the acquisition of
17% of equity interests in China New Media (HK) Company.
Limited. The promissory note was unsecured, carried interest
at the rate of 3% per annum and matured on 11 August 2014.
Profit Station might early redeem all or part of the promissory
note at any time from the Issue Date. Unless previously
redeemed, Profit Station will redeem the promissory note on
its maturity date.

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

31.

EBERMABEBRENTER :

32.

33.

EEEA

2016 2015

= —T—AF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FET

1,530 895

1,824 1,674

3,354 2,569

RITEX

R_E—RE=A=+—H8 FTEXD
f Shunleetat (BVI) Limited (I AR I E =
BEEEEZERERRE)BRUZDE
ER HEBRELEMBE2DEZHRL
REGBEF R ERMECEABRERR I
EATHRERFNEBREF15EFE - R
T-RNFZAZ+—H AEBETMIR
TEX -

AR

KRaE 2 B2 E W B R R)Profit Station
Limited ([Profit Station | ) R = ——4F
NA+—B (1378 ]) U iE B
HEE (BB BRAR Z17%R AR 1E 3
17784 %8 /545,040,00078 7T 2 7 H, 22K o 7
HERAEER REMNXIEFERRZ
T —p&E N\ B +— B 3| - Profit Stationa]
PR B 1T B BR1& (E{r] 5 Rl 42 A1 B 21 2 3P =k &6
DAEHFIE - BRIEZ AIE B E - 7 AllProfit
Station# 7 £ 2 B B & [0l 2 K F 4%



33. PROMISSORY NOTE (Continueq)

On 11 August 2014 (the “Renewal Date”), Profit Station has
entered into an extension agreement with the noteholder of
the promissory note pursuant to which the maturity date of
the promissory note was extended from 11 August 2014 to
11 August 2017 and the extended promissory note will be
non-interest bearing with effect from 11 August 2014 till 11
August 2017. Furthermore, the noteholder has agreed to
walive the interest accrued on the promissory note amounting
to approximately HK$4,054,000 (note 7) for the period from
11 August 2011 to 11 August 2014. Except the above-
mentioned, other terms and conditions of the promissory note
remains unchanged.

33. RARE (&)

RZZE—HENA+—RB ([EFBEHE]) -
Profit Station 24 i 215 2 R H AEE]
VERRE B ARZEEZEBHAR
—E—NFENA+—HERE_ZT—tF
NA+—HB BRERZAZEZEEBS —
E—NENAT+—HRBRE_Z—LFN\A
T—BLERE - WIN ZBRFBEAECRE
CRAREZEEA - ZT——FN\A+—HZE
—T—NENA+—BHBEEZFELY
4,054,0007% 7T (B 5E7) o B £t & o6 - &
HERZ HM R RGeS T

At the beginning of the year

Interest charged at effective interest
rate of 5.744%

Interest payable

Gains arising from extension of
promissory note (Note 8)

Interest charged on effective interest
rate of 7.423% (Note 12)

At the end of the year

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FBIT
REH] 38,080 44,609
BRERFIKS744EFE
ZFBREZ - 917
JEAH L2 - (486)
ERAH BBE 4+ 2 W
(MI5E8) - (8,708)
BEBFIERT 423EHE
Z M B (MEE12) 2,915 1,748
RE R 40,995 38,080
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

33.

34.

190

PROMISSORY NOTE (Continueqd)

Interest expenses on the promissory note are calculated using
the effective interest method by applying effective interest rate
of 5.744% from 1 April 2014 to 11 August 2014.

Upon the extension, the fair value of the liability component of
the extended promissory note was reassessed and calculated
using an equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent
instrument at the Renewal Date. The fair value of the liability
component of the extended promissory note at the Renewal
Date amounted to approximately HK$36,332,000. The fair
value is calculated using discounted cash flow method at a
rate of 7.423%.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 9 December 2011, the Company issued convertible notes
with the principal amount of approximately HK$607,030,000,
carried interest at the rate of 5% per annum as part of
the consideration for the acquisition of Xinhua TV Asia-
Pacific Operating Co., Limited. Each note entitles the
holder to convert to ordinary shares at a conversion price of
approximately HK$0.196 per share.

Conversion may occur at any time between 9 December
2011 and 8 December 2014. If the notes have not been
converted, the Company would redeem on 9 December
2014 at the outstanding principal amount. Interest of 5% per
annum would be paid annually until the notes are converted or
redeemed.
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33.

34.

RAARE (&)

A B 2 F B RAS T R BB A =%
E-E—NFENA—BZE-_FT—WNFE/\A
+—BIREBRFES7T44EFHE -

RIERE  KEREALZBAGEHSH 2 AF
BEELEMH WASEIAEREHRBR
ZEMGMNEFHE REFBAH  SRERA
HER A EI D 22 FEE4%36,332,000
BT o A TETIARLIR IR € 8 /A 1R7.423
EzRMEGFHE-

AR E

R-_ZT——F+-ANB ARQAREFTAK
% %8 /5 #7607,030,00078 JT * 1% F 8 K58
EZAMRER ERKEBHESHRD
ABEERARABIZHBIRE-BHRE
T 1B ARG, #90.196% T2
HMEHLBALTBER

MR EETR -_E——F+_-_ANBE
—E-WFE+ZAN\BHE AR
WEE WAL RARHER T —HF
TZANBRABEOASEFEED -§
FORE N EHEGFRN EEHERLR
B E o



34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continueq)

On 9 December 2014, the Company entered into the
supplemental deed with China Xinhua NNC pursuant to which
the Company and China Xinhua NNC agreed to amend certain
terms and conditions of the convertible notes, where (i) the
maturity date of the convertible notes will be extended for 3
years and the conversion period will accordingly be extended
for 3 years to 9 December 2017; and (i) the interest rate of the
convertible notes will be amended from 5% per annum to 3%
per annum for the extended period, being from 9 December
2014 to 9 December 2017.

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
component and equity component. The equity component
is presented in equity heading “convertible notes equity
reserves”. The effective interest rate of the liability component
is 6.64% from 9 December 2011 to 9 December 2014
and 15.98% from 9 December 2014 to 9 December 2017

34. AIRRERE (£)

R-ZE—WFE+-ANB AR AEFAEH
FEFEEAPTLHARE  BHEARQ

RIEFRENENEERERE

ERT AT AR

REZE TR G Ep () THRRRE
Z I HAH S RIE - B LR BEAETER

FEZT—tF+ZANAB: R(i)EKE
MBI —Z—WE+-AhLBE-_ZT—+
FTZANB) 2T BRER 2 FEFH
BF5%EET REFEI% °

AR EEAMETSSEK PR BEE
o kiEmEn - EmEs W‘” s [ AR
BEEEEFEE] BET2Y -8EHX &

%ﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁ_iffi+_ﬂﬂﬁi
—MFE+-ANAR664%NE =

respectively.

Equity component at 1 April 2014

Conversion of convertible notes

Transfer to accumulated losses upon mature of
convertible notes

Recognition of equity component on extension of
convertible notes

Deferred tax liability arising on extension of
convertible notes

Equity component at 31 March 2015 and
1 April 2015

Conversion of convertible notes

Equity component at 31 March 2016

—NE+-_ALBEE-_Z—+tF+=-AN
H&15.98% °
HK$ 000
FETT
MR-_ZT—FEN A —HZEZHmIBD 15,663
R@ﬂﬁh%% (7,731)
AR R EEE 25T EE
(7,932)
ERA IR EERER BRI D
80,844
ERITMBRERELEZEEREBEEE
(13,339)
AL o\l 4E = JB| = =Bl &
“E-—RFNNA—H2ERILD 67,505
Hgmal s EiE (@87
RZE—XRE=ZA=1+—H=Z
B 62,631

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=HA=+—HIFFZE

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continueq) 34, IRBRRE (&)

192

HK$'000
FET
Liability component at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFHNA—HZAEDBD 543,234
Interest charged calculated at an effective interest BERFEE.64%TE 2 F|BFAX
rate of 6.64% 12,791
Interest payable JEATF 2 (7,519)
Conversion of convertible notes HIRAT R R IE (271,476)
Liability component at 9 December 2014 RERFR-_ZE—NFEF+=_ANBZ
before extension BEEHS 277,030
Recognition of equity component on ERABMBREBRERZERE S
extension of convertible notes (80,844)
Interest charged calculated at an effective interest BERFIE15.98%E 2 F| B A X
rate of 15.98% 9,706
Interest payable TR 2 (2,566)
Liability component at 31 March 2015 and RZE—RF=A=+—HBFK=Z%
1 April 2015 —ﬁEEH—EZEﬁﬁBﬁ 203,326
Interest charged calculated at an effective interest BB FIE15.98%5T &
rate of 15.98% (Note 12) FERZ (MzE12) 30,908
Interest payable ANEES) (7,427)
Conversion of convertible notes HIRAT R R IE (15,325)
Liability component at 31 March 2016 R-ZB—XRE=ZA=1+—H
BB 211,482

On 14 August 2015, APT Satellite TV Development Limited
agreed to waive the partial payment of convertible notes
interests amounting to approximately HK$400,000 (note 7).

On 21 August 2015, China Xinhua NNC, a holder of n=
convertible notes, exercised its conversion right to convert the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 into 102,040,816 shares.

102,040,316/ i&% 15 °
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R-ZE—RAFENATTR SAFRERE
AR R A RE %S0 A] 2 R% 25 5 245
FK49400,00078 7T (B 5E7) ©

—RAFENA-_+—HB HEHEH
HERE (—RBABRBREEREE A)TE
H 3 A E 8 7K 4 520,000,000 7T 7, 3 A



35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 April 2014

Recognised directly in equity

(Credited)/charged to profit or loss
for the year (note 15)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015

(Credited)/charged to profit or loss
for the year (note 15)

At 31 March 2016

35. BB HBE

Accelerated
Intangible Convertible  depreciation Unrealised

assets notes allowances income Total

ENEE ABRREE MERERE AR #st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FAT FET FETT FET

RZZ—NE/”A—A 26,903 = 2,850 (327) 29,426

EERNERER - 13,339 - - 13,339
(3t A) /B ERER

(Hit15) (3,623) (1,178) (329) 327 (4,809)

RZE-RE=A=+—HEK

—Z-RFMA—H 23,280 12,161 2,521 - 37,962
(3t A) /B EREE

(Kiz£15) (6,893) (4,838) 472 - (11,259)

RZE-RE=A=1+—H 16,387 7,323 2,993 - 26,703

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$87,655,000 (31 March 2015:
approximately HK$66,725,000) available for offset against
future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely. No

deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax

losses due to the unpredictability of future profits streams.

2015/2016 i HEFEERERERAR

REBEHR AEEBERSAHEBELN
87,655,000 T (ZE—RAF=A=+—
H : #966,725,0005% 7T ) A B {E K $5 7] & (R
HR#E S 2 R 2R s Kl o B O R AR ) i = 2

PATERI - 830 4 34 3% TR B 1R

BE-

RIRIET IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

36. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each

Authorised: JEIE

At 1 April 2014, R-ZZE—NFMPA—H-
31 March 2015, —E-—RF=A=+—8"
1 April 2015 and “E—RAFOA—HEK
31 March 2016 —E-XF=HA=+—H

ERITRAE:
R-FE-—NFMA—H
RIFACEEITRUD

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2014

Issue of shares pursuant to
the placing

Issue of shares pursuant
to the conversions of
convertible notes

RIF A AL R AR
BT

At 31 March 2015 and RZZE-—hF=A=+—HRK

1 April 2015 —E—hHFIHA—H
Issue of shares pursuant to  RIFEE S 21T H
the placing

RIS Al A R R
TITR D

Issue of shares pursuant
to the conversion of
convertible notes

At 31 March 2016 R=-EBE—XRE=ZHA=+—H

Notes:

On 17 July 2014, 334,900,000 shares of HK$0.001 each were
issued by way of placing at a price of HK$0.25 per share for cash
consideration of approximately HK$83,725,000 for the purpose of
the Group’s business development, payment of registered capital
of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC, repayment of unsecured
and non-interest bearing advances from certain directors of the
Company and general working capital of the Company. The excess
of the placing price over the nominal value of the shares issued was
credited to the share premium of the Company.

(@)

194

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

36. R4
BRMEE0.00178 T 2L ER

Notes Number of Share
Bt shares capital
g 4= [
HK$'000
FET
500,000,000,000 500,000
1,980,858,112 1,980
@) 334,900,000 335
b) 1,377,551,019 1,378
3,693,309,131 3,693
() 260,000,000 260
(@) 102,040,816 102
4,055,349,947 4,055

Kiat
@ RZZTE—HNFLtA+ER BBEEEFR

1% 5 §%0.25% 7T 2 B 1% # 17334,900,0008%
FREE0.001B T ZKkGm BEREAD
83,725,000 7T - FA{EAREE 2 XI5 HE - H
N —FER P MR 2 B AR ZEME
N EEEEARGEZARAETESR
REARBIZ—REEES REBBEE
BAORMNEEZSEETARA R ZRG
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

On 26 May 2014, APT Satellite TV Development Limited, a holder of
the convertible notes, exercised its conversion right to convert the
principal amount of HK$35,000,000 into 178,571,429 shares. The
excess of the conversion price over the nominal value of shares of
approximately HK$179,000, was credited to share premium of the
Company.

On 26 May 2014, China Xinhua NNC, a holder of convertible notes,
exercised its conversion right to convert the principal amount
of HK$20,000,000 into 102,040,816 shares. The excess of the
conversion price over the nominal value of shares of approximately
HK$102,000, was credited to share premium of the Company.

On 18 July 2014, a holder of convertible notes exercised its
conversion right to convert the principal amount of HK$60,000,000
into 306,122,448 shares. The excess of the conversion price over
the nominal value of shares of approximately HK$306,000, was
credited to share premium of the Company.

On 27 August 2014, a holder of convertible notes, exercised its
conversion right to convert the principal amount of HK$47,560,000
into 242,653,061 shares. The excess of the conversion price over
the nominal value of shares of approximately HK$243,000, was
credited to share premium of the Company.

On 27 August 2014, Proud Glory Investments Limited, a holder
of convertible notes, exercised its conversion right to convert the
principal amount of HK$27,440,000 into 140,000,000 shares. The
excess of the conversion price over the nominal value of shares of
approximately HK$140,000 was credited to share premium of the
Company.

On 22 September 2014, China Xinhua NNC, a holder of convertible
notes, exercised its conversion right to convert part of the principal
amount of HK$80,000,000 into 408,163,265 shares. The excess
of the conversion price over the nominal value of shares, of
approximately HK$408,000, was credited to share premium of the
Company.

On 4 August 2015, 260,000,000 shares of HK$0.001 each were
issued by way of placing at a price of HK$0.25 per share for cash
consideration of approximately HK$65,000,000 for general working
capital of the Company and development of business(es) in line with
future development policy of Xinhua News Agency, the substantial
shareholder and in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. The excess of the placing price over the
par value of the shares issued was credited to the share premium of
the Company.

36. A (&)

Hist: (4)

)
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R-Z—MERA -+ 8 DAEREE
ERAR(—BARBREEFEAN)ITER
4 DA AN € £ 5835,000,000/8 T 712 A
178,571,429 A% 15 o W IR (BREH AR D EE 2
& FE#179,0007% 7L B 5t AR R Al 2 B 1D i

Be

RZZT—NFRAZ+/B B ENH
BERS (-2 BREEEFAA)TELL
A % 2N & & %720,000,0008 TT 8 7%
102,040,816/ % {7 - KA BB AR EE 2
T F#9102,000/8 TTE 5t AR R B Z {0

B

R-ZE—ME+LA+N\B  — B RREERE
B ATTEE KR #E LA AN £ € %160,000,000
76 7T 5,42 5306,122,448% B 17 © H iR BB
AP B 2 £ FE#9306,000/ TTE 5F AR A F)
2R B o
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47,560,0007% Tt H.# /3242,653,061 IR A 17 °
B R B2 £ % 4)243,0008 T E
FEARR B Z A7 5 (E -

RZZE-—NENA-Z+EH BEKREER
RAB (—BARBREERERFEAITERERL
Wt DA 1§ 7R © & 027,440,000/ 7T X 8 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continuead)

36. A (&)

Hist: (4&)

(d) On 21 August 2015, China Xinhua NNC, a holder of convertible d RZZE—RAFNA=+—H FEHEHE
notes, exercised its conversion right to convert part of the principal EEM(—BUBEBREEFEAN)TERL LS
amount of HK$20,000,000 into 102,040,816 shares. The excess 1 LA 1 5517 78 % <& §820,000,0007 7T 5. 2 5
of the conversion price over the nominal value of shares, of 102,040,8168% A% 17 - HIAERB L RN EEZ
approximately HK$102,000, was credited to the share premium of © F849102,000% ;T B 5t AR A 7l 2 9 4
the Company. Bo
37. RESERVES 37. f#E

The following describes the nature and purpose of each TS AR S REEENEE &

reserve within owners’ equity:

Reserve

fi#te

Share premium

et i (B

Foreign currency translation
reserves

SN B R

Other reserves

H Al {5

Accumulated losses

ES s

o

Description and purpose

B B8

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders provided that
immediately following that date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

BERSHESQGE ARARMEEAIHS K TRER - HEZERIRA
ez BEE AAFKEAXNBEBEEBRETINHNES-

Foreign currency translation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4(r).

HNES R H IR IR B IR INE TS TS MR P EE A 2 SNEE B 4 2 58 - % b
BRIEM 4N E T 2 ST BRI -

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries at the date on which
they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Reorganisation.

ARG HMEEENE AR ARRWEZ BNEE EEFEER
NRANEE BB ETZRNDOEECEZRE-

Cumulative net losses recognised in profit or loss.

RIBEP R Rt ERFRE -
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed at
a board meeting held on 11 August 2010 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to participants for
their contribution to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
expire on 10 August 2020. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the Board may grant options to the Directors, employees,
non-executive Directors, suppliers of goods and services,
customers, advisors and consultants, shareholders or any of
its subsidiaries for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to them, to subscribe for shares in the Company with the
payment of HK$1 per offer.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the Shares of the Company in issue at the
date of listing of the Shares unless the Company obtains the
approval of the Shareholders in general meeting for refreshing
such 10% limit, in which case the total number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company as “refreshed” shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of the approval of
the Shareholders on the refreshment of the limit. The number
of Shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the Shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s Shareholders.
Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be
approved in advance by the Company’s Shareholders.

38. IR RER ZHK

ARBIRBER -_F-FF/\A+—HETT
LEFEEHRBBIRBRIMBAE
2 ([BREtE]) 252 HEY
AEBZBERARERHEBEI N ER- B
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RIEBRESS EF@MESF ER-
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B R ARE - RS EAENE AR
ROBEE TREERRFRISE A
BREH BN IETZ A ARBBERLRF
Bdn o

BB ST 2 BRERT S K&
RpRE - TEBANKRG LT BEBEAR
Bl EBITRMNENI10% HARQFTREA
2 LERRAEEFTEB10%MREERIN - 1£
BB - ARYR [ 4S5 57 BERRAE T 8| A
NEERE A B AR AERT B AT e iR 2 BB AR
REFTH RN B E - T EBBREIESE
MRS HEBITRGBEA10% - R
ESARRRESEIMENERLT RNE
] —F A A gE M EA] A T 2 AR AT
HRBRMDEE TEBBARR AR E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=HA=+—HIFFZE

38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued) 38. URGDAER ZNR (&)

Options granted must be taken up within 21 business days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per each grant
of options. Options may be exercised in whole or in part by
the grantee (or his legal personal representatives) at any time
before the expiry of the period to be determined and notified
by the board to the grantee which in any event shall not be
longer than ten years commencing on the date of the offer
letter and expiring on the last day of such ten-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in
the Share Option Scheme. The exercise price is determined
by the Directors and will not be less than the highest of the
closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, the average closing prices of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options or the nominal value of the Shares.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options other than by issuing the
shares.

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no share
option was granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there is
no outstanding share option under the Share Option Scheme.
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39. OPERATING LEASES

30. KEHE

The Group as lessee

EEEEREBEA
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TET

Minimum lease payments paid FARBLEHEDN
under operating leases 2 xEHEER

during the year 18,048 19,127

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRFNA
(BHEEREMT)

Over five years 8 38 A

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office property, staff quarter, certain
office equipment, television broadcasting right, the use of
satellite capacity and broadcasting services with lease term
of between 1 to 10 years (2015: 1 to 10 years). All operating
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that
the Group exercises its option to renew. The Group does not
have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of
the lease period.

RBEHR - AEBERBETAREEEEHE
EEZARKERER ZZBERMT :

2016 2015
—B-RF —F4aF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
14,349 16,480
37,543 33,024
1,250 5,542
53,142 55,046

REBENKEREETHRAZENE B
ITEE GTHAERE ERERE &
ERERENRB 2 RLHEZAERN
F—F2+F(ZF—2F: —F2+F)

ZENEE -FAEKEH

BRI B

nHBeam
AIASETREGORE -

SERBEOHRREERBEREEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EAXREKIE
2016 2015
—E—R¥ —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure in respect of BB E  BE K&EB
the acquisition of property, plant EETRAERREFEE T BRERA
and equipment contracted for but B EARRE
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 675 —
41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS M. EXBELRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, during the years ended 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2015, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, were conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.

(a) During the year, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions:

B M BEmRE My rREEN
BHE_T-—RE=A=+—HBRZZ—-1
FZA=+T—"HLEFE AEEEBFE
BRI TR G RRREEFRRZAER
ZINREFERGR IR AEE—KRA
BRGBETET

(@ FA AKBEEFZATEETRS:

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—RHF
Related party relationship Type of transaction HK$’000 HK$’000
BAE 5 BA# REEH FET FETT
A company that Mr. Chia Kar Service fee for announcement 9 9
Hin, Eric John (“Mr. Chia”) posting agreement
had material interest
MEE A ([HxE]) AR AL 7 PR TS &
BEEAERZ AT
Company secretarial fees paid - 1
ENARMEER
A company that the spouse of  Legal and professional fee paid 31 85
Mr. Chia had material interest
WEAEEZEBREEAER BNEERFBXER
WA/NE
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

(@) (Continued)

Related party relationship
BAE 7 BA %

China Xinhua NNC

B ¥ EE T E AR A

CNC China
PR EFEERE (FE)

Type of transaction

REEH

Annual fee for television

broadcasting right (note (i)
BIRBREFE (W 70))

Accrued interests on convertible

notes (note (i)

AR B 2 A RS (ATt ()

BEE WA (B et i)

Notes:

(i)

Pursuant to the agreements signed between the Group and
China Xinhua NNC on 5 September 2011, China Xinhua
NNC granted the television broadcasting rights to Xinhua
TV Asia-Pacific for the period from 1 September 2011 to
31 August 2021 on an exclusive basis with an annual fee of
HK$1,000,000 payable by Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific to China
Xinhua NNC prior to 31 December 2016, and HK$3,000,000
payable by Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific to China Xinhua NNC with
effect from 1 January 2017. The transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions under the GEM Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the convertible notes
interests payable to China Xinhua NNC was amounted
to approximately HK$7,427,000 (2015: approximately
HK$10,085,000).

Advertising income (note (i)

M. EXBERIRS (£)

(@ (#&)
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E—FE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,000 1,000
7,427 10,085
3,180 2,578

Kiat -

() WEASERPBEFEFEERER
—E——FNARBRZHE TEH
MENEERBRMEER DN K
TERERENE BRERBERES
—E-——FNA-—BRBRE_ZT_—F
NA=Z+—HLE-R=T—X~E+_A
=t+—Hp HEESRERAEMNFEH
EEE R A 2 F & /1,000,000
TToME=ZE—tF—F—BE
BRDASENABFEREEREZ
E5 843,000,000 ZERFHEHE
FRAIZER ETRAE T 2 HERER
%o

iy BE-ZE—ANE=ZA=+—HLEFE:
FEf P BT E R EAR AR 2 P RAR 5
R B FREEL 57,427,000 (—Z—F
4 : #910,085,000/ 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a) (Continued)
Notes: (Continueq)

@iy  On 22 July 2013, the Company and CNC China entered
into the channel resources usage framework agreement
(the “CRU Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the
Company will and will procure its subsidiaries to provide
advertising resources on the television channels controlled
by the Company to CNC China and its associates for the
advertisement businesses of independent third party clients
undertook by them. As consideration, CNC China will pay the
Group certain percentage of the advertisement broadcasting
fees (after deducting applicable PRC taxes) for using such
advertising resources based on the terms and conditions of
each agreement. The CRU Framework Agreement will have a
term of 3 years ending on 31 March 2016. The transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
GEM Listing Rules.

One of the directors of the Company, Mr. Kan Kwok Cheung (‘Mr.
Kan”), who is also a shareholder of the company, has provided
personal guarantee to the lessor in respect of the Group’s
obligations under finance lease as at the end of the reporting period
as disclosed in note 30.

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, the banking facilities
of the Group were secured by corporate guarantee executed by
Shunleetat (BVI) Limited, which is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Kan, the charges over the properties held by Mr. Kan and
personal guarantee provided by Mr. Kan.
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continueq)

(b)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of the remuneration
paid to them during the year are set out in note 13.

For the transactions constitutes continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules, please refer to
“Connected Transactions” under “Directors’ Report”.

42. NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
entered into finance lease arrangements in respect
of property, plant and equipment with a total capital
value at the inception of the leases of approximately
HK$5,479,000 (2015: approximately HK$7,010,000).

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, the
convertible notes holders exercised their conversion right
to convert part of the principal amount into the shares of
the Company. Please refer to note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements for details.

M. EXBERIRS (£)

(b) XEBEEEEASHMH

AEETBEEBEABRARARES
FAENZEFTMSFBHRME

13 °

(c) BRAMERAIZEMR LM AR N5 4ERE
BRP2ZERS F2H[EFER

FIANEERS] -

2. FREXRH

@ BHE-—TE—ARF=ZA=t+—HL®HF
€ AEBBYE BB KR ET LA
BEHERHE PRHEARENREE
F 1A B 49 55,479,000 7T (=T —

£ 1 #97,010,00055 7T, ) ©

) BEZ

T-—RNEN_FT—THE=H

=t BLEFE JHREEEFAEA
TTEERBERE DO ASEL RN

REIZBD -EHEFFEL

TR R M 5E36 °

2015/2016 ik HEMEERZERFRDA

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

204

Categories of financial instruments

THEE

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including ER&ERFE (BFRE

kIR EEY)

cash and cash equivalents)
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss ZeREE
Financial liabilities EREE
Amortised costs B SH A

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, finance lease payables, bank
overdraft, promissory note and convertible notes. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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43. €@ T A

(@) @I EE5

BRESENTEAR

2016 2015
= —T—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FRAT
205,205 126,095
6,344 12,117
211,549 138,212
360,465 346,560

(b) EREREERNREE

ARBIZEREMTABRESRE
b EURIR B BB R RAFEAR
ZeRMEE - ReMReFEYM E
2 N E A RN FIE - BEE S B R
B RITEX - AABRBRABEKE
B-ZEERMITAZHBREBME
FRE-EREFe R T AMER AR
BEMSER (B%EAR FXERK
HibERER) - FERBRMRBE S
R B o R ER 2 S B B 2 USRI TS SCEL
- EREHZERBRETERERE
R BEEUAMKERZTAETES
Rk



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SREAREEBENRBER (£)
(Continued)
EERREE

(i) Credit risk management (i)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents. Management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the
financial condition of trade customers and, where
appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is
purchased. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the carrying amounts of the recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At the end of reporting
period, the Group has a certain concentration of
credit risk as 35% (2015: 35%) and 61% (2015:
54%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

AEBZEERRIZREES
REMERHFBARB S RRE
EEY - ERECRLEERR

AR 2 ZEEERRERE

E,_T}L o

AEESHESFREPHNMBRA
EITHREEETM X (WER)
BEEEERRR - —BmMs &
SETERNEFERGERR-

AEBZEERRTIZREAY
BRRAKRATNEHEREMEE L
FREEMTE-

*ﬁm%%E TERBRZER
RMEEERRBREMTE B
krfbomﬁ¢%$'$%lz
35% (ZZE—HF:35%)K%61%
T—RF:54%)B 5 REAM
F% RIBBEDRIREAREE R
ABRFRAAEFR HBEE—FE
SEh2EERR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(i) Liquidity risk management

Individual operating entities within the Group are

206

responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans of cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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43. R T R (&)

(b) LRREAREEENRBER (&)

(i)

mEBEL/E R EE

AEBAEGZEERAREH
EEZEEEE BRRSAR
ZHEMBRERBREESARNTE
HReFR EBFEEE TRE
SEEREKY ABEGER
RESgIE  HAET AEH
CHRBEHMERERDEST
SKIA R 38 57 B3 E - AR AN
SEgEFRRRSFERE R
TESRMBBREERNAREE
BERE AREEEMEEER
HEEFE-



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRAREEBENRBUR (£)
(Continued)
(i) Liquidity risk management (Continued) (i) ZEHELEBEE (&)
The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the TRIBEE LRI RIBRL AR
Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities at 31 SEERALFREZBHAEER_Z
March 2016 and 2015 on contractual undiscounted —NERZTE-RAF=ZA=+—
payments: B2 B 8B
Total Total
On Less than 3t0 12 Over undiscounted carrying
demand 3 months months 1year cash flows amount
AURES

RER HR=A =ZE+=fAA BB-F RERE REEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 31 March 2016 R-B-XE=A=+-H
Trade and other payables 25 REAEfTEE 27,040 33,540 20,765 17,197 98,542 98,542
Finance lease payables RMEREEMNTE - 1,459 4,074 4,335 9,868 9,446
Promissory note RERE - - - 45,040 45,040 40,995
Convertible notes ABRREE - - - 276,437 276,437 211,482
27,040 34,999 24,839 343,009 429,887 360,465
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-—hF=A=+—H
Trade and other payables B o REMENKE 31,324 22,480 20,407 15,356 89,567 89,567
Finance lease payables BERERMRE - 1,417 3,822 4,790 10,029 9,609
Bank overdraft RITEL - 5,978 - - 5,978 5978
Promissory note ERRE - = = 45,040 45,040 38,080
Convertible notes AARER - - - 299,397 299,397 208,326
31,324 29,875 24,229 364,583 450,011 346,560
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 43. £ @I B (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies b) cHEARSEENREE (£)
(Continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk management (iii) 7 E 2 g &
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for AEBREF RS S MAT 2 F R
changes in interest rates to the Group’s cash at Rl EARNEERITIRE  RITE
bank, bank overdraft convertible notes, promissory T AR EE A EEE K
note and finance lease payables. The Company BHEERNFRBEB A2ER
manages the risk by regularly evaluating its cash BRMERE AT N HER
flows and by repaying the bank borrowings when EREMEERITERUNEER
sufficient funds are available. % o
Interest rate profile FIFE G
The following table details interest rates analysis that TEREFFMAR R E ST E A=
the directors of the Company evaluate its interest [R\Bg 2 T 547 o
rate risk.
2016 2015
“E-XE —Z-h%F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAI= e
(%)  HK$'000 (%) HK$'000
FEx FET

Financial liabilities SRAE
Fixed rate borrowings B fE

— Finance lease payables — @& & & 708 3.6 9,446 3.6 9,609
- Convertible notes — A BRER 15.78 211,482 15.78 203,326
— Promissory note - EEEE 7.42 40,995 7.42 38,080
Floating rate borrowings ~ j% Bf& 3
- Bank overdraft -RITEX - - 3.5 5,978
Financial assets tHEE
Floating rate assets FEEE
- Bank balances — R % 0.001-0.3 127,372 0.001-0.87 62,156

2% CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RIT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRAREEBENRBUR (&)
(Continued)
(iij) FIFEEREE (&)

(iii) Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a general
decrease or increase of 100 (2015: 100) basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase or decrease the Group’s
loss after tax by approximately HK$1,274,000
(2015: HK$562,000). There is no impact on other
components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis point decrease or
increase represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

HEE T

R-ZE—ARF=ZA=+—8"&
FT A R Tk EFA100( =
T—RF100) & EFREHE
HhEHERFTENBRAT A&
& & B 1% 5 18 A% 38 0 =R
#91,274,0008 T (ZF — R F:
562,000/ 7T ) o M i s ) A
I EET A E-

N EBEREDTEREFRES
ERFERRBEEMET W E
FERRBZBMEYREIETE
S E T A 2 F =@ 100E 2,
WA MEEEEHEE T —
EEEEERBE N EA S
BEH T G- DM HRE-T
—hAFEREERETT

209

2015/2016 ik HEMEERZERFRLA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z—Z

—NF=ZA=1F—HIFEZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

(iv) Foreign currency risk management

The group entities collect most of the revenue and
incur most of the expenditures in their respective
functional currencies. The directors consider that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group’s
transactions are denominated in the functional

currency of each individual group entity.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

United States Dollars
(‘USD”)
Renminbi (‘RMB”)

210

43. R T R (&)

(b) LRRABREEENRBE (&)

Assets

(iv) SHE/mEREE

EE

ESACETA))

AR (TARE])

2016

—B-RF

HK$'000
TE7

164
31

IE"‘“LM& EENTREER

FREB D oy Wz B E A KE D
E’JE‘%SE HRARENEERS
AR AR EEERNINEEE
FHE REERR/AEENINE
B B o

AEBRBERRAIMNEHEZ
EREERERABZREEN

B
Liabilities
=L

2015 2016 2015
—hF | ZE-xF | ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FHT
) - 163
1,370 - 158
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SRAREEBENRBUR (£)

(Continued)

(iv) Foreign currency risk management (Continued) (iv) SERBREE (&)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis I RS 57 T
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group does not MARATHEE TN  AEEE
expect any significant foreign currency exposure e EBITH I EXRE
arising from the fluctuation of the HK$ to USD i B A (AT BRSNS LB - A U
exchange rates. As a result, the directors of the RARREERRAEEHETH
Company consider that the sensitivity of the Group’s FE T2 TR INE [ R B BURRE
exposure towards the change in foreign exchange BRI -

rates between HK$ to USD is minimal.

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of ARrETEMEHAREESTE
fluctuation in RMB. Fr 45 2R &9 @ Bz o

2015/2016 % +wEFEERERERAT 211



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z - F—NNF=-A=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv) Foreign currency risk management (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$
against RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes
outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit or equity where the HK$
strengthen 5% (2015: 5%) against RMB. For a 5%
(2015: 5%) weakening of the HK$ against RMB,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit or equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Profit or loss (note) w A B (AaE)

Note:
This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on

monetary items denominated in RMB not subject to cash flow
hedge at the end of the reporting period.
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43. R T R (&)

(b) LRRABREEENRBEEK (&)

(iv) SMERBREE (&)

IMNE GRS T ()

TRFAVNEEAEBRHNBITL
ARBEX ET RN (ZF
—HF 5% ) ZHREE -HRE
DM BIEAREEL BAINEHE
MEKIER - N7 2 E&ERRH
BILTHAREABES (ZF—H
F:5%) + Bm Ak iz 1En -
WBETHAREBRZEBEYS (ZF
—RF:5%)  Blg 5T kA
mELASHEARARHFE M T
PSR ERaE-

Impact of RMB
2016 2015
—B-RF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(2) (60)

Hiat

It BB AN R EHE i AR A S
HARZREMEBH ARG 2 E¥IER 2
e



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RIT A (&)

(b) LRRABREEENREEEK (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(v) Other price risks (v) EmEREREE

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities quoted in the Stock Exchange. In
addition, the management of the Company monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If the equity price had been 5% higher/lower
(2015: 5% higher/lower), post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$317,000 (2015: approximately
HK$606,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

AEBEZEFBN ETRAE

CERESHEAZBRERR -8
EBEBERTRRER IEEHEE
NERB I ER R NEE 2 RE
HBE%%$%%X%$E2&
RFESH o WIN NRAIBEREER
BRER TEREREERZER
E I R B 3 o

REGURE W

TXZ2EREDTTIERRE
R P TED Y 2 B (B TR gz 1 B E

WARE L TBE5% (ZF—

FEF S TEE%)  BIEZE=
E—RF=ZA=F+—HIFE
ZHBRREEEBBERD NG
817,0008 L (ZE—HF: 4§
606,000 7C) - TR B BER
BAFEARZEREEZ AT
BEEEFTE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

214

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively.

The fair values of derivative instruments are
calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for
the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives.

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding those described above) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

43. R T R (&)

(c) EMIAZAFE

TREEREBMBEZAFETIEA
TERIEE :

N

AR BRI RAR LR RS
SEECTREERERMAE
D2 EREmEERERE
REEEQTE-

s PTEIAZAFEERBEFE-
HARBEESBBER RIAIFH
BOTAETAZ TEBRAERE
B AR DA N BB DT A T A HY
REBRIETHRRASRED
#r o

e HieMEENMEBEE(TE
BElE) 2 A FEDIREER
MARERENT L BXRMNTE
EREAEE-



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their

43. €T A (#&)

(c) eMIAZAFE (&)

BRTRAFLEIN RRABEERS
REFEMBERRPERCEREER
TRABGBEZHRAEREAFERS:

fair values:

Financial liabilities tRERE
Convertible notes REEE
Promissory note BEALRE

2016
“E-RF

Carrying
amount Fair value
REE AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
211,482 174,972
40,995 31,341

2015
“T-1F

Carrying

amount Fair value

FREE ATHE
HK$ 000 HK$000

FET FET
203,326 167,128

38,080 26,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

216

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

e |evel 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

e |evel 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

e |evel 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

CNC HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

43. R T R (&)

(c) EMIAZATE (&)

RiGE BRI &R 2 FlEG

y--§

TREJINVTERRIZRAFEFE
ZEMIANN XREERFER
BEREDRFEEF=45:

o FMBIRAFEFEERTS
ARREELBEZRE (KK

HE)

s FMHAFEFTEIFAE—
MR MEAINATEZE (BNEE
RS EE (BREER)REE
SEEERNBAER: R

o F=ARBIAFEFERBILIEA
ABEMSHBBEREMR C EER
BEHBAEH (TABEENEA
BRI BER %



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 43. €RIT A (&)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

At 31 March 2016

R-ZB-—ARE=ZA=+—H

(c) eMIAZAFE (&)

RiGE BRI & AR 2 FEG

8 (#&)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—RA EZHRE E=HA @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value ZBEZEAFEAR
through profit or loss LERMEE 6,344 - - 6,344

At 31 March 2015 R-—E—RAF=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H5 E—m3 F=MAI FeE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value ERBRBEATEAE
through profit or loss LERMEE 12,117 - - 12,117
20152016 & cEFEBRERERAT 217




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

(c) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the

43. R T R (&)

consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair

value at the end of each reporting period. The following

table gives information about how the fair values of these

financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used).

Financial assets

THEE

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

BRBEERATE
ARZEREE

Fair value as at

RUTBE#ZzAFE
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
= —2-afF
=B=+-H =A=+—H
Listed equity Listed equity
securities in securities in
Hong Kong: Hong Kong
- HK$6,344,000 - HK$12,117,000
REE LT REE LT
e PR3 75
—6,344,00078 7T -12,117,000/8 7T

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for both

years.
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(c) EMIAZATE (&)

REGE BRI &R 2 FlEG

2 (#&)

AEERBDEMEEREREHRL
NP EFE TREHBEHIAEE
ZETREEAFEZEN (LHEZ
PIERA 2 BETERBARIER)

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
HEFER

DFEER FERAYE

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
active market

EF—& TE)E BB TI5 PR A
EAE

PREFE F—HFE R 2B
TS o



43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets

At the beginning of the year
Disposal during the year

At the end of the year

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior years.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes trade and other payables, finance lease payables,
employee benefits, bank overdraft, promissory note and
convertible note, net of cash and cash equivalents) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share

capital and reserves.

INE)
FALE

RER

43. €T A (#&)

TREEE=-FAFEFEBZHE

Unlisted equity securities

FLETRARS
2016 2015
—E-XE —“ZE—-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
- 400
- (400)

4. EXERER

AEBEREARAZRE RRERNEEFE
& 2 BE N PARI R B A [0 3 I A L b i
BRA AT RS s ARGRF &R ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
Z*%L‘Aﬁ’l\:éleiﬁkzﬁ ZIS'%@Z%‘%E

RERIFBENGEE AEE A RTH
PRy E B E AR DB -

AEFBZEREEEREER TR (BREE
5 R E b fE /I8 - g & M & e B
EBEEH RITEX AHLEBRRAIBRKRE
B MR\ RReFEY) RARAHEE
AEEER (BRERAREE) -
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FEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continueq)

The Group’s risk management reviews the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period
was as follows:

4. EXERERE (&)

AEEZERAREBABRSYEZEER
FEARARBERAEMZ —Ho BF
B R RE AR K B b B2 5 B ANAE B AE R
‘;jﬁio

R|EMRZER FHREER 2 L E
T

Debt (note (a))

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Equity (note (b))

Net debt and equity

&% (Hit(@))
BB RBREeEEY

B HE
&z (Mat®))

B F 8 Mt e

Net debt to equity ratio B FRREARE R b R

Notes:
(@ Debt comprises trade and other payables, finance lease payables,

employee benefits, bank overdraft, promissory note and convertible
notes as detailed in note 29, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 respectively.

(o)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to the owners of
the Company.
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2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
372,228 349,684
(127,377) (62,166)
244,851 287,518
4,631 (28,966)
249,482 258,552
98% 111%

HrsE:

@ FEEEEZSIERHEMENRE RERERE
NHIE - BERA - RITEX AR ZERA
MIRERR - 5EIE D RIS A M5E29 - 80 31
32 -33%34 -

b)) REBFEMERLEEGAREERKLH
e



45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 February 2016, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with independent third
parties pursuant to which a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company will acquire 100% equity interest in
Shenzhen City Century Culture Creative Limited* (%%
JImtt a2 3L BIZEHPR A F)) at a total consideration
of HK$600,000,000. The consideration will be partly
settled by cash and partly by the issue and allotment of
consideration shares. The primary business of Shenzhen
Culture Company and its subsidiary is the operation
and management of Shenzhen City Culture Creative
Park* &I X{E&IEE) in return for rental income
including management fee. The proposed acquisition
has not yet been completed as at reporting date. Further
details of the proposed acquisition are set out in the
announcement of the company dated 3 June 2016.

On 2 June 2016, the Company entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”) with Tian Mai Ju Yuan (Beijing) Technology
Company Limited* (XIRFR (IER) B HEBER A
A]) (the “Cooperation Partner”), pursuant to which the
Company and the Cooperation Partner established a
cooperation partnership so as to jointly develop the
television e-commerce business and the exclusive and
originated emerging mode of development of television
business to expand the revenue of the Group. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 2
June 2016.

* For identification purpose only

45. EHEREE

R-E—RNF-_A-H AEEHEF
VE=ZRIVNEERE B AR
Alz—HE2ENBRARBIRANRE
600,000,000/ yT Yz g 7= Y1 Tt 42 321k
BIE AR A E]Z100%%E - KBS
DB SEE R0 EATIT REE
REBROZAREE - RYISER A
REWBRARI X EXBREERE
BRIImeal ZEE - & U A
(BREERE) RHREAH EB K
BEHNATK EZRKEEFE#E
—SHBHRARFBRAE-T—X
FRNAZBZRHEAR-

R-ZT—RNENA-H  AAFIEX
REBR (ER)BIRBERAR ([G1E
7RI BB EHE ([ERSE 1B
&) B ARRHEIEAELE
ERHBAR RHARAREERE[/E
BERAGE HRARAZEEE 2 ERE
BERRFTE HERASERFIZHE -
HER2MARRBHA T —X<F
NAZBHZRAMe
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*  For identification purpose only

BREEAR
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46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 46. XARFTEMB LRI ZFHE
THE COMPANY
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the RARIMB AR REHAR 2 FIBEHHIM
reporting period are set out below. 5 8
Percentage of equity
Place and date interests and voting
of incorporation and power attributable to Nominal value
Name of subsidiary form of business structure the Company of issued share capital Principal activities
ENGEEZ S
TEM AR 32 3 R B BRAEHER
) NTEE REBEBRA REEBDH BRTRAEE FEXK
2016 2015
—E-RXE —Z-1%
% %
Direct subsidiaries
EEMBLR
TYW (BVI) Limited BVI, 2 July 2009, 100 100 United States Dollars (‘US$")  Investment holding
limited liability company 50,000, divided into
50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1.00 each
EERAEE —ETNEL 50,000%7 ([Ex]) AR REER
AZR AREMERH 50,000/ &R EE1.00%
L2 EER
Shenzhen Qianhai Xinhua TV Cultural ~ PRC, 30 May 2013, 100 100  Registered and paid up Advertising business in PRC
Development Limited* limited liability company capital of RMB30,000,000
A EEHESEIULERERAR FE —T—=FRA=1H" AMERBREARARE NGB ES
BREMRR 30,000,0007T
Indirect subsidiaries
BENEAR
Tsun Yip Civil Construction Hong Kong, 16 July 2000, 100 100 HK$20,000,000 Holding of motor vehicles,
Company Limited limited liability company provision of waterworks
and laying of water pipes
EXTARTERERAA &5 ZTTZFELATRH- 20,000,000 7 REER REKBIER

BRKE



46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 46.
THE COMPANY (Continued)

RARMERMBMAR 215 (&)

Percentage of equity
Place and date interests and voting
of incorporation and power attributable to Nominal value
Name of subsidiary form of business structure the Company of issued share capital Principal activities
ENGIEEZ S
LA 3L 3t % B BRAERR
L) PNTEE REBRBEX REERDM BRTRAEE FEXK
2016 2015
ZE-RF ZZT-5fF
% %
Indirect subsidiaries (Continuea)
BENBAR (£
Tsun Yip Waterworks Construction Hong Kong, 6 February 1996, 100 100 HK$25,000,000 Provision of waterworks and
Company Limited limited liability company laying of water pipes
EXKBRERRAA B —AWAAEZARA: 25,000,000/ 7T REKBIRRBRKE
AREEAT
Xinhua TV Asia-Pacific Hong Kong, 22 December 100 100 HK$10,000 Television broadcasting
Operating Co., Limited 2009, limited liability business in the Asia-Pacific
company region (excluding the PRC)
MEBRTARELERAA B ZETNETZA 10,000/ 7T ReARE (TaEHE) S

“+ZB AREARA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affect the results of the assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

BERENES

BEM B AR R ERETEMEBZES

AAREERALRASIAEEZHEL
ANTEYEAEEEELBEONEL
A AAREERA WIIHEHBELRZ
HEESATBRITE -
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. KRB 2B RRERKREE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y HE K& 1,956 3,514
Investments in subsidiaries RHTE AR Z"E 76,529 76,529
78,485 80,043
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and deposits HEappIa kL e 174 178
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NGRS 61,760 106,093
Cash and cash equivalents HehkReEEY 41,932 13,474
103,866 119,745
Total assets HWEE 182,351 199,788
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and other payables — FE&T 7 St K E b fE {7 A 21,147 24,150
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN NGRS ] 3,049 9,394
24,196 33,544
Net current assets RBEEFE 79,670 86,201
Total assets less current liabilities BREERABAR 158,155 166,244
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Non-current liabilities
Convertible notes
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Zhang Hao
RERE
Director

EF

FRBEE
AR R IR
EXLERIBRE

mEfE

BEEH

EXRREE

LN
G

47. AR R ZMBRR KRR HEE (&)

2016 2015
—E-AE “T-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
211,482 203,326
7,421 12,161
218,903 215,487
243,099 249,031
(60,748) (49,243)
4,055 3,693
(64,803) (52,936)
(60,748) (49,243)

EZSER T R"FRAATRTAMER
Rt EyBHRER YA TIALRRE

FERE:

Mr. Zou Chen Dong
BERRFEE
Director

EF

2015/2016 ik FEMESRZERERD A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z_=—F—NF=HA=+—HIFFZE

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. AR B 2 MBRR KRB (&)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves AAF 2 EEES
Convertible
Share Capital  notes equity Other  Accumulated
premium reserves reserves reserves losses Total
TRRERE
REE BhRRE BLnfE Hitnfate RHER aRn
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FETL FET FET FETL FET
At 1 April 2014 R-E-NEMA—A 795,912 - 15,663 23,647 (1,246,903) (411,681)
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRBERZEBRESE - - - - (60,130) (60,130)
Issue of shares pursuant to placing REREBTRN 83,390 - - - = 83,390
Transaction costs attributable to issue of RERERTLER
ordinary shares pursuant to placing EERZHA 2,118 - - - - 2,118
Issue of shares pursuant to conversion of REAATARZE
convertible notes R 277,829 - (7,731) - - 270,098
Transfer to accumulated losses upon HRERRIARERE
mature of convertible notes ZHER - - (7,932) - 7,932 -
Recognition of convertible notes equity reserves ERTARZERER
on extension of convertible notes ARREEEREE - - 80,844 - - 80,844
Deferred tax liability arising on ERABREREEZ
extension of convertible notes ELRERE - - (13,339) - - (13,339)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE-RF=A=+—-ARk
“Z-AFMA—A 1,155,013 - 67,505 23,647 (1,299,101) (62,936)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRBERZABREE
for the year - - - - (92,933) (92,933)
Issue of shares pursuant to placing REREZTRN 64,740 - - - = 64,740
Transaction costs attributable to issue of REREETTER
ordinary shares pursuant to placing EER SRA (1,655) - = = > (1,655)
Issue of shares pursuant to conversion of convertible 1R A A AR E i
notes R 20,097 - (4,874) - - 15,223
Capital contribution from a shargholder —BRFEEE - 2,758 - - - 2,758
At 31 March 2016 R-B-AEZA=t+-R 1,238,195 2,758 62,631 23647  (1,392,034) (64,803)

48. COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION 48. LE BB 1% E #
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform ETHRBEFTEENBE] URFEAFE
with current year’s presentation. B Z2#m% o

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 49. #LAEBERRK

226

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 15 June 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B % =

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the financial position of the Group

for the last four financial years, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, is set out below.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
For the year ended 31 March

Revenue Yz

Cost of services FRE KA

Gross profit EH

Other income HiA

Other gains and losses Hioim REE

Amortisation expenses BHRAR

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERX

Administrative expenses THRAX

Changes in fair value of financial assets at far ~ ZBEFHALEAEZE
value through profit or loss REELATEE

Profit/(loss) from operations BERT/ (BE)

Finance costs BEKA

Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRR REER

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill 5t & 2 # A 2 BEE B

Impairment loss on intangible assets BRAEZREER

Impairment loss recognised in respect of FAENESHEERER
available-for-sale financial assets REEE

Loss before income tax BRETIS AT B 1R

Income tax FR1H

Loss for the year attributable to the owners of AR AR ABIEFERER
the Company

PR

N6 BB A U E R BF B 2 RE R SR
2B E TR 2 KERMBRE - &#FIm

—Fo

mER&
BE=A=+—HIFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RE —T-AF —T-E —T-ZF —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(LE5) (m=5)

370,939 369,635 324,331 203,034 218,961
(302,288) (346,553) (274,231) (248,252) (197,190)
68,651 23,082 50,100 44,782 21,771

906 4,136 30,961 28,829 217
1,950 10,083 (3,307) 488 ®)
(23,598) (24,088) (59,463) (60,474) (17,694)
(97) (226) (85) (423) -
(34,992) (33,121) (29,706) (27,615) (32,732)
(5,773) 502 - _ _
7,047 (19,632) (11,500) (14,413) (28,441)
(34,276) (25,720) (42,041) (41,425) (13,852)
(2,238) = (9,469) = =
- = (151,194) = (665,683)
(19,751) = (269,309) = =
- - - (66,741) =
(49,218) (45,352) (483,513) (122,579) (707 ,976)
2,775 3,629 52,221 6,390 3,079
(46,443) (41,723) (431,292) (116,189) (704,897)
2015/2016 £ tEFEBRERERAT 224



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MHEHE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 March

Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets
Less: Current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Less: Non-current liabilities

Total net assets/(liabilities)/total equity

FRBDEE
mBEE

REE
B ORBAE

BEERRDAR
B IERBAE

BEE/(8B)FE/

miEs

mEMBRR
R=A=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE-RE “T-RF —T—E —T-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT FET
(Restated)
(E7)
139,972 181,872 208,624 674,380 788,289
278,868 184,740 124,333 104,966 92,209
418,840 366,612 332,957 779,346 880,498
130,832 111,637 707,433 88,498 84,451
288,008 255,075 (374,476) 690,848 796,047
283,377 284,041 33,463 726,951 725,554
4,631 (28,966) (407,939) (36,109) 70,493
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